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Corporate Structure

NCIES

As at 30 September 2020
1202059 A30H
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BABEREZERERAF
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(AR H5% - 1693)
BGMC Malaysia Limited
BGMC Holdings Berhad
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Sdn Bhd BGMC Energy Sdn Bhd
80% 51% 95%
KAS Built-Master Headway BGMC BRAS
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Sdn Bhd Sdn Bhd Sdn Bhd Sdn Bhd
Built-Master
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Engineering
Sdn Bhd

Note: Unless otherwise stated, all subsidiaries are wholly-owned by BGMC International Limited.
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Dear valued shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors (“Board”) of BGMC International Limited
("'BGMC" or “Company’) and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”), | hereby
present to you the Company’s annual report for the financial year ended 30
September 2020 (‘FY2020").

The storm brought by the outbreak of coronavirus (“COVID-19") has had
a significant impact on people and economies worldwide, that adjourned
countless ongoing projects and putting the business at an all-time low. The
extensive and recurring lockdowns imposed have curtailed business activities
and dampened revenues.

For the FY2020, the decrease in the Group’s revenue was due to lower
construction work done as a result of the Movement Control Order (“MCO”)
implemented by the Government of Malaysia on 18 March 2020 to curb the
spread of COVID-19. In addition, it was a challenging year for BGMC, particularly
with the extended Recovery Movement Control Order ("RMCO”) as well as the
border control which is still in place had also impacted our performance of
construction sector and resulted in disruption to both construction activities and
consumer demand.

All these have disrupted business activities, impacted the quality of life, and
increased the risks of doing business. Looking ahead, 2021 will remain challenging
largely resulting from economic uncertainties arising from the unprecedented
COVID-19 pandemic. It is also expected to have an adverse impact on the
Group's financial performance in the coming financial year. Nonetheless, with the
relaxation of the MCO and businesses slowly returning to normalcy in Malaysia,
BGMC expects that business conditions will hopefully reinvigorate within these
upcoming years along with the Government's economic stimulus packages
towards strengthening the country’'s economy.

Industry Outlook

The global economy is projected to register negative growth in 2020, hampered
mainly by the ongoing COVID-19 pandemic. Thus far, Malaysia has weathered
the health crisis well by quickly identifying COVID-19 clusters through contact
tracing as well as preventing the spread of the virus by implementing movement
restrictions, temporary business closures, and restricted social conducts. Such
measures although are necessary to minimize outbreak recurrences, the
measures have weighed heavily on the local economy.

Bank Negara Malaysia reported a 17.1% contraction in Malaysia’s Gross Domestic
Product ("GDP") in the second quarter of 2020, the worst since the Asian Financial
Crisis in 1998 when the growth shrunk to 11%. The hardest hit sector was
construction which contracted by 44.5%, on account of declined construction
activities in civil engineering, residential and special trade subsectors. Mining and
quarrying dropped by 20%, followed by manufacturing and services at 18% and
16.2%, respectively. Agriculture, the sole sector to post growth, registered a 1.0%
output increase.

Chairman’s Statement
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Chairman’s Statement

ERHE

Our operations that were halted during the Government-imposed movement
restrictions have since recommenced activities and our project sites are operating
at near-optimal capacity, in compliance with the new health as well as safety
procedures.

In the near term, the outlook for the coming financial year would remain
challenging with the after effect of the COVID-19 pandemic and global economic
uncertainties. Nevertheless, the Group has embraced the “New Norm” and
has since adapted to the new normal of doing business. The Board remained
cautiously optimistic to cope and overcome global, regional and domestic
challenges.

Acknowledgement

I'would like to thank Tan Sri Dato’ Sri Goh Ming Choon who resigned as Chairman
and Executive Director of the Board on 7 October 2020, for his invaluable
contribution during his tenure. | would also like to thank Ir. Azham Malik Bin
Mohd Hashim who resigned as our Executive Director, as well as Mr. Ng Yuk
Yeung and Ms. Chan May May, who resigned as our Independent Non-Executive
Director. Taking this opportunity, | would like to welcome Mr. Ching Hong Seng as
our Executive Director and Chief Financial Officer, as well as Mr. Kua Choh Leang
who joins the Board as the Independent Non-Executive Director. Last but not
least, | would like to thank all the fellow members of the Board for inviting me to
join the Board of the Company.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to express my
appreciation to all our valued shareholders for your faith and support all these
years. My sincere thanks to my fellow Board members as well as the Management
and staff for their hard work, dedication and loyalty to the Group in the past year,
especially for their swift and coordinated response to the COVID-19 pandemic.

Also, my personal gratitude to all our customers, strategic partners, financiers,
suppliers, and the Government of Malaysia and various regulatory authorities for
their continuous support and confidence in our Group. The Group values and
looks forward to this continued support in our journey ahead.

We hold the responsibility that you have entrusted to us in high regard and with
the joint effort from all parties, we shall endeavour to keep creating values to our
Shareholders while growing the Group’s business for the financial year ended
2021.

Datuk Kamalul Arifin Bin Othman
Chairman and Independent Non-Executive Director
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Business Review

BGMC is a full-fledged, integrated solutions provider operating in two business
sectors. One of them is the Construction Services sector (comprising Building and
Structures segment, Energy Infra-structure segment, Mechanical and Electrical ~ #f -
segment, and Earthworks and Infra-structure segment) which undertakes
primarily construction service contracts not exceeding five years. The other is the
Concession and Maintenance sector which undertakes Public Private Partnership

("PPP") contracts with a duration of around 20 years.

Management Discussion and Analysis

BEBNWR DN

LR

BHNBEEREAEZEEXBATRERER  KMEXS
BHEE - HE-REERBEH(HBFREED
REREZDE EHEEFOMUARL T RE

”*B%EZ) TEARTHBAOLFNEERES
#) o A— RFFHEERREE RS - ARLO0FH

RILER([PPPIEL -

Core Business

BT

Segment/Model
28, X

What BGMC does
ERERER TR

Construction

Services

BEERTS

Building and Structures
segment

BT REE B

Focuses on construction of low-rise and high-rise residential and commercial
properties, factories, as well as government-led infra-structure and facility projects.
SEPREERSBEETMEEDE  THARBN T EERERNREEB
ML -

Energy Infra-structure
segment

BEREE D EP

Has two previously independent businesses: (a) design and construction of
medium and high voltage power substations; and (b) installation of medium and
high voltage underground cabling systems. Is also responsible for developing and
constructing the utility scale solar povver plant.

BAEMIBSLAELNER @R RBETBERSBEEY - Kb EP@
K= B TAAR R Hﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁé’é)ﬁﬂki&g)ﬂ%ﬁﬁﬁﬁmb%@

Mechanical and Electrical
segment

Wt 2 B+ 53 8D

Focuses on bringing value-added engineering expertise to the installation of
mechanical and electrical components and equipment for buildings and infra-
structure, drawing on its all — round capabilities from design and planning to
installation of the mechanical and electrical facilities.

’iﬂPﬁAFﬁEF&% BRI BT MR BN L
BRENRERENRTERBSINER

EEIRMIRE TR FE M
B HAFERE -

Earthworks and Infra-
structure segment

75 RERS B

Maintains a fleet of machinery for carrying out detailed earthworks, including site
clearing, building platform preparation, road and drainage systems, and other infra-
structure installation.

BERBWREBAEITIER i?‘ilﬁ‘% C BIESIEIE  BEMAERE  BRK
HOKZEG R B A B R K -

Concession and
Maintenance

FraTAS 1 S M e

Build, Lease, Maintain and
Transfer ("“BLMT") model

s e gEREE
([BLMT ) E =

A concession to build a campus over a three-year period and to lease it to UiTM for
a period of 20 years, and to provide asset management services for 20 years.

The Group had however entered into a share purchase agreement to dispose the
entire shareholding in the subsidiary that own this concession on 16 November
2020.

—IERAHRERE  HRR=FHRNBERBETEEBEE FUTM - BE20
F o WRH0FEEEERY -

A AREBER20205F 11 B16 BRI ERT Z - A EREZ T L LR
Z B A RIEY 2 EBAAE -

Build, Own and Operate
("'BOO") model

B EENEE
(IBOO )&=

A concession to build a solar power plant, and to generate and to sell such power
generated from the plant to national utility company for 21 years.

—IBER SR EAREARGRERER  WEAZEEMEEREEER
BHFRERRARXRGEAF » BHA21E -
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWR DM

Construction Services Sector

The Construction Services sector contributed RM180.2 million, or 59.7%, to the
consolidated revenue of the Group in FY2020, against RM334.9 million, or 97.5%,
in FY2019. These substantial decreases are directly impacted by the imposition
of the Movement Control Order (“MCQ"), Conditional Movement Control Order
(“CMCO") and Recovery Movement Control Order ("RMCO") by the Government
of Malaysia to contain the spread of COVID-19 pandemic. During the MCO period
which spanned from 18 March 2020 until 12 May 2020, all our construction
sites remained closed and not operational. It has not only halted our ability to
generate work done and revenue, but has also directly prolonged the duration
needed to complete our projects.

Our projects are, however, given the green light to resume works on site on 4
May 2020 subject to each of our project sites following the standard operating
procedure (“SOP”") imposed by the Construction Industry Development Board
("CIDB"). The SOP carries the principle of social distancing and is put in place
to avoid the spreading of COVID-19 disease. One of the major requirements for
resuming works at project site is to carry out swab test for all the workers entering
the project site while operating hours have also been adjusted to reduce the
effective working hours on site. Our project sites have since resumed work at
different date as the swab test results are delivered over a period of time due to
limitation in laboratories capacity.

In view of the above, all our projects are in need of a revised completion date.
Together with the delays that have not been granted with extension of time
(“EOT"), we have estimated the liquidated ascertained damages (“LAD") for all
the major ongoing projects. These estimations are however recoverable upon
the Group obtaining the EOT for each individual project.

During the year under review, the Construction Services sector secured 7
contracts of total worth RM18.4 million. It is also with regret that the Group had
received Notice of Termination by Customer A. The total contract sum for the
terminated projects is RM515.9 million. As at 30 September 2020, we will be kept
busy with an outstanding order book of RM597.4 million (2019: RM1.2 billion).
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The Group'’s major ongoing projects are as follows:

Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENmRDN

REENEREAREBERNT :

PROJECT NAME AND DESCRIPTION

HEEEREN

The Sky Seputeh: Construction of two 37-storey towers with 290
apartment units, car parks and other facilities at Taman Seputeh, Wilayah
Persekutuan, Malaysia.

The Sky Seputeh @ 7 55 2 75 28 Taman Seputeh, Wilayah
Persekutuan 2 X M EE37 BRI RIE - BIE20ERE ~ 2

Bangsar 61: Construction of Earthworks, Basement and Associated Works
for a 4-storey basement car park at Bangsar, KL, Malaysia.

B35 M EADERHE o
=

&6l RERALETEREZN RIABHERESER
77 wERMER TR

Setia Spice: Construction of a 26-storey building with a 19-storey hotel
(453 rooms), a 3-storey car park and 4-storey hotel facilities, plus a 2-storey
basement car park at Setia Spice, Bayan Lepas, Penang, Malaysia.

Setia Spice : A 5 2R 70 52 f8 1 2 /< 7 Setia Spice % —
IR6BHIET - BIEES19BREE (453EFEH) - 2
S3EMEES  Ee4ERNBEERERES2ENME
1FH5 -

TNB Worker's Quarters: Construction of one block of eight-storey
executive quarters (24 units), three blocks of nine-storey non-executive

TNBEIEE : RERATERRIARER —RE
SN\BHRITHRAEES (MEEMNL) =ZRESNLED

quarters (160 units) and other facilities of Kuala Berang, Terengganu,
Malaysia.

FEITBABTEE (1601BBAL) K H 35 o

Building and Structures

As the leading segment of the Construction Services sector and the Group as
a whole with sizeable contracts on hand, Building and Structures contributed
RM132.7 million, or 44.0%, to the Group's consolidated revenue in FY2020,
compared to RM291.6 million, or 84.9%, in FY2019 (restated). Such decrease
was mainly due to: (i) the impact of lower recognition of work done due to the
temporary stop work order in conjunction to the MCO; (i) the impact of imposing
the estimated LAD in all the major ongoing projects capturing the delays caused
by both activities on the sites and the closure of all sites by the impositions of
MCO; and (jii) the Sentral Suites project was terminated by Customer A.

During FY2020, this segment has not secured any new project as the Group
switches its focus to (i) comply to the SOP imposed by the Government of
Malaysia and resume work at the project site emerging out from MCO; (ii)
increase the productivity and work done for the existing ongoing project as
challenges are ahead with the new normal; and (iii) the limitation imposed by our
difficult financial position. The immediate objective is to deploy more resources
to implement the existing projects at a faster pace and therefore reduces any
delay that is currently recorded. Besides aiming to complete the project soonest,
these steps may also increase the contribution towards the revenue recognition
in the immediate future. Meanwhile, the Group is also in the midst of obtaining
the necessary EQOT to cover the delays caused by both the activities at the sites
and the MCO.

As at 30 September 2020, the Building and Structures segment had an
outstanding order book of RM520.8 million (2019: RM1.1 billion).

BFEREE

BFREBRRERFEERASERENEED
B EEREFESY  BAASER20200BEE
BARE Wax B RN 132.7 B 8BRS Frsk44.0% + 1201987
HEFEZ R A201.68 BMEFH4.9% (AL ET) o 3%k
LEBRARN  VEATBEFNSBELNERREIS
BRBEATIERIOTE  (FERIHES K
HATEE IS ER 2 2 TR M ERAERK
RUIEH B BT E N ESHEE - Ki) Sentral
SuitesTHE R P AL o

20208 BFE - %0 B AREUSEMFIER -
RN B BB () ()8 T 5 2R 7h 50 B HE L O AR
EEERFRRITHEHCHERNIAR THET
(e EE N RIB TR T (R E R E el
7)) R PIFBERZHRORS - Z/1EIRE
REZZWERBABREMALELZER - 1EMmE
KB TSRS HEMER - (REERRTKIEBIN
ZEXRITARETAKR KRR ER KRS TEBME
Bl e AR AEBNMEASRKOFOERETH
AR BRI E B AT B E ) S A RO RERR

F2020F9 8308 @ BF MBS SRR TR TIE2ET
B A5208FEMEIRF(20195F 1 11BMER) ©

5§ 2020 EFERRERERATR



10  ANNUAL REPORT 2020

Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWR DM

Energy Infra-structure

During FY2020, the Energy Infra-structure segment has contributed a revenue of
RM36.5 million or equivalent to 12.1% of the Group's consolidated revenue, as
compared with RM21.1 million or 6.1% of the consolidated revenue for FY2019
(restated). This increase is due to (i) the changes of the revenue mix of the
Group; (i) the completion of the installation of major equipment at the power
substation project PMU 275/132 kilovolt ("kV") Damansara Heights; and (iii) the
work progress at two 132kV underground cabling works contracts, namely PMU
Sri Hartamas to PMU Matrade and PMU Shah Alam 18 to PMU Sirim projects.

During FY2020, this segment has not secured any new project. As at 30
September 2020, Energy Infra-structure segment had an outstanding order book
of RM29.3 million (2019: RM59.8 million).

Mechanical and Electrical

The Mechanical and Electrical segment has recorded a revenue of RM10.6 million
or 3.5% contribution to the consolidated revenue for FY2020, as compared with
RM14.9 million or 4.3% contribution to the consolidated revenue for FY2019
(restated). The decrease is recorded as most of the ongoing projects are still in
the early stage of progress.

During the year under review, the Mechanical and Electrical segment has
secured 7 contracts of total worth RM18.4 million. As at 30 September 2020,
the Mechanical and Electrical segment recorded an outstanding order book of
RM47.2 million (2019: RM79.1 million).

Earthworks and Infra-structure

The Earthworks and Infra-structure segment has recorded a revenue of RM0.4
million for FY2020, or 0.1% of the consolidated revenue, as compared with RM7.3
million or 2.1% contribution recorded in FY2019 (restated). The decrease of the
segment revenue was mainly because all the projects have been completed and
the Group are proceeding to prepare the final account for the projects. Activities
in this segment will be minimal going forward while the resources will be
redeployed to other segments.
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Concession and Maintenance Sector

BGMC has two PPP contracts currently, namely a concession contract with
UiTM which is operated under the BLMT model, and the Solar Power Purchase
Agreement signed with Tenaga Nasional Berhad (“TNB"), a sole power distributor
for Peninsular Malaysia, which is operated under BOO model.

BLMT Model - UiTM Campus

There are two sources of income derived from this concession contract, namely
the imputed interest income, and building maintenance service income. During
FY2020, the BLMT model has brought a total income of RM53.2 million to the
Group, as compared with a total income of RM52.8 million for FY2019.

As at 30 September 2020, the remaining period of the concession stood at 15
years and 2 months. The outstanding imputed interest income and contract
value for the building maintenance services as at 30 September 2020 stood at
RM733.4 million (2019: RM788.5 million) and RM163.7 million (2019: RM173.8
million) respectively, receivable over the remaining period of the concession.

The Company’s proposed sale of concession rights of UiTM Campus through
disposal of KAS Engineering Sdn Bhd ("KAS Engineering”) was approved in the
extraordinary general meeting (‘EGM”") on 30 December 2020. For details, please
refer to the Company’s circular dated 11 December 2020.

BOO Model - Large Scale Solar Photovoltaic (“LSSPV”) Power Plant

This new concession contract that the Group has entered into is a contract to
build a LSSPV plant, to generate and to sell the power generated from the plant
to TNB. The plant has an output capacity of 30 megawatts alternate current
(‘MWa.c.") located at Kuala Muda, Kedah, Malaysia.

Currently, the Group is working towards the commercial operation date ("COD")
so as to enable the plant to begin with the supply of electricity. The COD will
now be revised to the 1t quarter of 2021 as compared to the original date of 30
September 2020. The revised date is required as the project came across with the
disruption to the supply chain caused by the outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic
and also the suspension of construction works due to imposition of MCO by the
Government of Malaysia.

During FY2020, the BOO business model has a revenue of RM111.1 million (FY2019
(restated): RM4.3 million or 1.3%), representing 36.8% of the consolidated revenue
of the Group.
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Financial Review
Revenue

The Group's total revenue decreased from RM343.4 million in FY2019 (restated)
to RM301.6 million. The decrease in revenue was mainly due to a lower
contribution from the Construction Services sector. The Construction Services
sector contributed RM180.2 million to the consolidated revenue of the Group in
FY2020 against RM334.9 million in FY2019 (restated) as the imposition of MCO
has impeded the work done carried out at project sites. The Concession and
Maintenance sector, however, contributed RM111.1 million in FY2020 compared
to RM4.3 million in FY2019 as the construction of LSSPV plant has progressively
moving towards the completion.

Gross Loss

The Group recorded gross loss of RM76.7 million in FY2020 as compare to RM17.7
million in FY2019 (restated). Such adverse change was mainly attributable to
(i) the impact of lesser revenue after the deduction of the LAD for all the major
ongoing projects caused by the activities at construction site and the imposition
of the MCO; (ii) further project cost adjustment as a result of the need to comply
to the new SOP for prevention of COVID-19; and (iii) provision for loss making and
terminated projects;

Administrative and Other Expenses

Administrative and other expenses decreased from RM53.4 million in FY2019
(restated) to RM38.8 million in FY2020, mainly due to decrease in staff cost from
RM33.5 million in FY2019 to RM24.1 million in FY2020.

Finance Costs

Finance costs for FY2020 were RM6.7 million compared to RM4.1 million in
FY2019. There is only a marginal change to the previous year. Majority of the
finance costs is incurred for short term borrowings for financing working capital
of the Company and also for the interest accrual for redeemable preference
share.

Income Tax

Income tax credit reversed from RM4.9 million in FY2019 (restated) to tax
expense of RM5.6 million in FY2020, mainly due to reversal of deferred tax
asset amounting to RM3.6 million and under provision of income tax expenses
amounting to RM2.0 million recorded in financial year ended 2020.
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Liquidity, Financial Resources and Capital Structure

Net gearing ratio of the Group (calculated by dividing the net debts by equity
attributable to owners of the Company) is recorded at 0.25 time as at 30
September 2020 as compared to 0.89 time as at 30 September 2019. This
decrease was mainly due to the reclassification of bank borrowings of KAS
Engineering Sdn. Bhd. to liability associated with non-current asset held for sale.

Cash and bank balances (including fixed deposits) stood at RM44.7 million as at
30 September 2020 as compared with RM63.9 million as at 30 September 2019,
representing a decrease of RM19.2 million.

Net Current Liabilities

Net current liabilities of the Group stood at RM62.4 million as at 30 September
2020, as compared with net current liabilities of RM61.7 million as at 30
September 2019, representing an increase of RM0.7 million.

The Board regularly reviews the maturity analysis of the Group’s contractual
liabilities and concludes that there is no liquidity issue that may cast significant
doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

Treasury Policies

The Group's financing and treasury activities are centrally managed and
controlled at the corporate level. Bank borrowings of the Group are all
denominated in RM and on a floating - rate basis. It is the Group’s policy not to
enter into derivative transactions for speculative purposes.
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Capital Expenditure

Capital expenditure mainly consisted of procurement of construction machinery
and equipment such as aluminum formwork system, which was funded by hire
purchase, the net proceeds from its global offering completed in August 2017
and internally generated funds. During FY2020, BGMC acquired RMO0.1 million
worth of construction machinery and equipment compared with RM2.3 million
for FY2019.

Foreign Exchange Exposure

The functional currency of BGMC's operation, assets and liabilities is RM.
Therefore, the Company is not exposed to significant foreign exchange risk
and has not employed any financial instrument for hedging, except for HK$
denominated bank balances.

Significant Investment Held

Save as disclosed in Notes 22 and 23 to the consolidated financial statements, the
Group did not hold any other significant investment during FY2020.

Material Legal Proceedings

During FY2020, the Company has been involved in several legal proceedings, the
details of which are disclosed in Note 45 to the consolidated financial statements.

Employees and Remuneration Policies

As at 30 September 2020, the Group had 229 employees as compared to 408 as
at 30 September 2019. Total staff costs incurred in FY2020 were RM24.1 million
compared to RM33.5 million recorded in FY2019. The reduction is due to the
rationalization program that we have carried out since 2019 and also in response
to the COVID-19 pandemic.

Remuneration is determined by reference to prevailing market terms and in
accordance with the performance, qualification and experience of each individual
employee. Periodic in-house training is provided to enhance the knowledge of
the workforce. Meanwhile, external training programs conducted by qualified
personnel are also attended by employees to enhance their skills set and working
experience.

The Group has adopted a share option scheme which became effective on 9
August 2017, being the date of listing of the shares of the Company on the Stock
Exchange, to enable the Board to grant share options to eligible participants
giving them an opportunity to have a personal stake in the Company. As at 30
September 2020, there was no outstanding share option granted under the share
option scheme.

BGMC International Limited

= ENE

BEARMST X ERERBEEERMERE - nigER
R HAME - R2017F8 Ak 2B ENAE
FEFELRADEEERREES o R20208 BF
E - BFBEBRUWEEEN BEMNE IFMEERR &
JE - M09 FFR B2 3B BT -

47 BEE L st

BRNERNESE BERBENDREEBANE
B e Bt - RRBENERAZ B RIMNERR - B K
EREMEFPERT A - EABTTAHERRTTAR
BRON

FRGEARE

BB BERERME22RMF3MFEEN - B
2020 ERFE - NEBWEFEEMEMERSE -

BHORER

P00 BFE - ARARE S RBFERFR - &
IBINERE TG IRRM T4 TIREE

BERFMBUER

M2020F9A30H - REBBS T AHAE229A i
20199 A30H A408 A ° 20208 BUF [E /) B TR
A4 B EME R - 20198 BF[E BIJER15335
BEMNER - BROMREZHEME2019F ARFRE
MEBIAHER  RNSBEATEY2019ERASH
EIBRIAMRAT ©

FM2ERTMSERARBEE TR ORI
BERERET - ROTEPREAEI - RS
EEHOHMBKYF - Al - HPINEET2MBESE
RABRERMINEDIEIIAR - LEETHREMREE
TRERR

REBCRM—IBEARESTE - WN201758 HoH
(BPARRIBRMARBM R EMZB) AR A[EES
FRESERSHEERTERE  BUESIRAR
AIEEAEARLRE - 72202099 8308 » WEREIE
EEFEIE LB M RTTER IR -



The Company and Audit Committee’s View on the Disclaimer of
Audit Opinion

The Board and the Audit Committee have reviewed the disclaimer of opinion

in the independent auditors’ report, and are confident that the Group will have

sufficient liquidity to finance its operations for the next twelve months and

therefore is of the view that the Group would be able to continue its businesses

and operations as a going concern and the going concern issue will be fully

resolved in due course:

(@)

As set out in the Company's circular dated 11 December 2020, the Group's
proposed sale of KAS Engineering for approximately RM93.8 million is
subject to fulfilment of conditions, which are (1) obtaining approval at
the EGM as required under the Listing Rules to approve the transactions
contemplated under the share purchase agreement; (2) obtaining written
approval of the Malaysian Government through UKAS for the Purchaser
to acquire the Sale Shares and for the changes to the shareholders and
the shareholding structure of KAS Engineering; (3) all representations,
undertakings and warranties given by the Seller under the share purchase
agreement are and shall remain true, accurate, correct and complete and
not misleading in all material respects up to the Completion Date. As of the
date of this annual report, condition (1) has been fulfilled as the proposed
sale was approved in EGM held on 30 December 2020. The Group is in
the course of obtaining government approval to fulfil condition (2), and
is confident that conditions (2) and (3) will be fulfilled by the Long Stop
Date (16 February 2021, being 3 months after the date of share purchase
agreement) according to the share purchase agreement. The Board is
optimistic that, after utilizing part of the sale proceeds to settle the overdue
amount, the Group would be able to improve its credit ratings and hence
obtain support from the banks who will provide additional bank facilities to
enhance the Group’s liquidity. With such financial support, the Group would
be in a position to deploy more sub-contractors to speed up the existing
construction progress.

There are certain legal proceedings still ongoing, but the outcome and
length of proceedings are uncertain. The Group will closely monitor the
said proceedings and engage competent legal professionals to defend the
cases. These are not expected to adversely affect the Group’s operating
activities.

Customer A has commenced legal proceeding against the Group to forfeit
the performance bonds of approximately RM25,797,000 and the Group
made an impairment loss on trade receivables and contract assets of
approximately RM9,278,000. The Group expects to obtain the judgment on
its application against the proposed forfeiture in early 2021 and accordingly
can only provide an accurate and clear audit evidence as to the amount
of adverse judgment (if any). Even if the performance bonds above are
forfeited, the Group expects that the sale proceeds of KAS Engineering
and the anticipated bank facilities as referenced in paragraph (a) would be
sufficient to off-set the adverse impact.
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Customer B and Customer C were currently in financial difficulties and failed
to settle amount due to the Group, and the Group for prudence sake has
provided for an impairment loss on trade receivables and contract assets
of approximately RM22,290,000 as at 30 September 2020. Although no
legal actions have been taken, the Group considers it more cost-efficient to
initiate legal actions after the pandemic situation improves and Customer B
and Customer C would then be more probable to have financial resources
to settle the amount due to the Group. The Group believes that such
estimates of impairment losses are reasonable and will not further adversely
affect the Group's operating activities.

(d) A construction project was halted because the contracting party is not
responsive to the Group’s enquiry about construction implementation and
progress payment, which is believed to be due to the reason that the said
customer’s holding company is in serious financial difficulties. Accordingly,
the Group has stopped construction work and therefore is potentially liable
to an estimated LAD as it falls behind schedule. However, since the Group
stopped work due to the said customer’s failure to give instructions, hence
the Group is unlikely at fault for the exposure of estimated LAD. The Group
is in the course of seeking legal advice on the appropriate course of action
and opinion so that a more sufficient audit evidence can be obtained to
prove the position above and the Group’s entitlement to lawful termination.

Future Prospect

FY2020 has so far been a really tough and challenging period for BGMC. The
spill-over impact from the sluggish property market and the global economic
turbulence in year 2019 has continued to plague both the Group’s top and
bottom lines. The Group's projects were also affected by the disruption to the
supply chain of building materials when China imposed a lock down of their
major cities to contain the spreading of COVID-19 pandemic. This disruption has
partially caused a slowdown in the progress of all our major projects particularly
the construction of large-scale solar plant. As the lock down in China started by
the end of January, the manufacturers are not able to deliver some of the key
equipment as planned and has pushed back the delivery plan. The situation is
made more complicated when the Government of Malaysia imposed the MCO
to contain the spread of COVID-19 pandemic, effectively ceasing all construction
activities at our projects site except for those necessary maintenance task.
Notwithstanding with the resumption of works at project sites, the Government's
effort in introducing the new normal and new SOP to the community has
created a new sphere and working conditions for all our operations. Though they
are much better comparing to the time when all the project sites suspended
operation, the new moves have also complicated the day to day works on site
and off site.
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The Board and management of BGMC recognise the challenges along the path
ahead, especially with all the challenges that are all beyond our control and have
formulated feasible strategies to keep BGMC survive this tough situation. Our
immediate focus will be to manage our operating cost more efficiently while
deploying the right resources to speed up the progresses at all major ongoing
projects. In the meantime, negotiations to procure the necessary extension of
time for the projects will continue until satisfactory results are achieved.

While extra cares given to manage the projects, we will also focus on meeting the
Group's financial needs during this exceptional time. This is of utmost important
as the Group's finances were facing challenges before the outbreak of the
COVID-19 pandemic as losses were recorded in the previous financial year. More
hiccups and setbacks have appeared since suspension of works at project site
and therefore zero income have been recorded during the MCO period. Troubled
by the zero income, more capital is needed to restart the works at the project site
post MCO amid with requirements to comply to all the new SOPs. Strengthening
the Group’ liquidity will therefore be paramount to ensure the Group's ability to
sail through this turbulence. To bolster the Group’s position to repay borrowings
and to meet the working capital need, we will strategize to monetise the Group's
asset. Not only will this move assist in generating cash to the Group, it may also
help the Group in realising its long-term investment immediately.

We reckon we are sailing against the high tide going forward, we will
nevertheless strive to do better than staying perseverance. With more than 20
years of experiences and as an integrated solutions provider in the construction
services industry, BGMC will stay committed to ensure we have what it takes to
ride through this challenging period.
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Directors
Dato’ Mohd Arifin Bin Mohd Arif, Vice-chairman and Executive Director

Dato’ Mohd Arifin Bin Mohd Arif (“Dato’ Arifin"), aged 57, was appointed as a
Director on 18 November 2016 and is now the Vice-chairman of the Board and
an Executive Director. He is a chairman of the Risk Committee of the Board. Dato’
Arifin is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. In addition, he is a
director of Kingdom Base Holdings Limited which holds about 7.9% of the issued
Shares.

He is primarily responsible for overall management, corporate development and
strategic planning of the Group. Dato’ Arifin has over 26 years of experience in
the construction field. From 1993 to 2006, he was a director of Ehsanibu Sdn.
Bhd., a Malaysian construction company. Since June 2007, he has been a director
of KAS Engineering Sdn. Bhd. ('KAS Engineering"), an indirectly wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company and he facilitated KAS Engineering to secure the
Universiti Teknologi MARA (“UiTM") Project in 2012. Dato’ Arifin sat for the Joint
Examination for the Sijil Pelajaran Malaysia and General Certificate Examination in
1980 and obtained a Grade Three Certificate.

Dato’ Teh Kok Lee, Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer

Dato’ Teh Kok Lee (“Dato’ Michael Teh"), aged 37, was appointed as a Director
on 18 November 2016 and is now the Chief Executive Officer and an Executive
Director. He is also a member of each of the Nomination Committee and Risk
Committee of the Board. Dato’ Michael Teh is currently the chief executive
officer and a director of BGMC Corporation Sdn. Bhd. (‘BGMC Corporation”),
an indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. He is also a director
of certain subsidiaries of the Company. He is primarily responsible for overall
management, corporate development and strategic planning of the Group. He
graduated from the University of the West of England, Bristol in the England with
a Bachelor's degree in Law in July 2006. Dato’ Michael Teh is a nephew of Tan
Sri Dato’ Sri Goh Ming Choon (who resigned as the Chairman and an Executive
Director on 7 October 2020), a controlling shareholder of the Company. In
addition, he is a director of Seeva International Limited which holds about 19.1%
of the issued Shares.

Dato’ Michael Teh has over 13 years of experience in the construction field.
Prior to his joining of BGMC Corporation as its project director in April 2011, he
joined B&G Concept Property Sdn. Bhd., a housing and commercial property
development company in Malaysia, in September 2006, as a personal assistant
to the managing director for about five years. He was responsible for providing
guidance on contract and commercial practices and procedures to the managing
director, project managers or other operational staff.

BGMC International Limited
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Ching Hong Seng, Executive Director and Chief Financial Officer

Ching Hong Seng (“Mr. Ching"), aged 47, was appointed as a Director on 16
July 2020 and is now the Chief Financial Officer and an Executive Director. He
is primarily responsible for supervising and overseeing the overall financial
management of the Group. Mr. Ching graduated with a Bachelor of Accounting
with Honors from the University of Malaya, Malaysia in 1998.

Mr. Ching has over 22 years' experience in accounting and financial management.
He gained his early experience with in PricewaterhouseCoopers in Malaysia, had
been the audit principal of Khoo & Co., an independent non-executive director of
Merces Holdings Berhad and general manager (finance) of Kumpulan Hartanah
Selangor Berhad. Mr. Ching was an alternate director in MCT Berhad which is
listed on the Main Market of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad from 13 August
2018 to 15 April 2019. He is a member of the Malaysian Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and the member of the Malaysian Institute of Accountants.

Tan Sri Dato’ Seri Kong Cho Ha, Independent Non-executive Director

Tan Sri Dato’ Seri Kong Cho Ha (“Tan Sri Kong"), aged 70, was appointed as an
INED on 3 July 2017. He is the chairman of the Nomination Committee and a
member of each of the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and Risk
Committee of the Board. He is primarily responsible for supervising and providing
independent advice to the Board. He graduated from the University of Malaya in
Malaysia with a Degree of Bachelor in Science in June 1974 and graduated from
the science, technology and innovation policy executive education program at
the Harvard University's Kennedy School of Government in the United States in
November 2006.

Tan Sri Kong has several years of experience in public service. From April 2009
to June 2010, he served as the Minister of Housing and Local Government in
Malaysia and from June 2010 to May 2013, he served as the Minister of Transport
in Malaysia. From April 2014 to May 2018, he was the deputy chairman of Invest
Perak (Investment Council in the State of Perak). From August 2014 to May 2018,
he served as the chairman of Port Klang Authority.

Directors and Senior Management
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Directors and Senior Management

EEREREERRE

Kua Choh Leang, Independent Non-executive Director

Kua Choh Leang (“Mr. Kua"), aged 56, was appointed as an INED on 3 July
2020. He is the chairman of the Audit Committee and a member of each of the
Remuneration Committee and Risk Committee of the Board. He is primarily
responsible for supervising and providing independent advice to the Board.
His experience as auditor will add to the Board's expertise in the areas of
performance, risk management and reporting.

Mr. Kua obtained his Malaysian Higher School Certificate from Tarc College in
1983. Mr. Kua has over 35 years' experience in auditing and business advisory. Mr.
Kua held various positions with Ernst & Young since 10 December 1984 up to 30
September 2019, where his last positions were executive director since January
2005 up to December 2008, and partner since January 2009 up to September
2019.

Mr. Kua was a member of the Malaysian Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and Malaysian Institute of Accountants since 1991 and 1993, respectively, up to
present.

Datuk Kamalul Arifin Bin Othman, /ndependent Non-executive Director
and Chairman

Datuk Kamalul Arifin Bin Othman (“Datuk Kamalul Arifin"), aged 60, was
appointed as an independent non-executive director and Chairman on 7
October 2020. He is the chairman of the Remuneration Committee of the Board
and a member of each of the Audit Committee, Nomination Committee and Risk
Committee of the Board. He is primarily responsible for supervising and providing
independent advice to the Board.

Datuk Kamalul Arifin has years of experience in the real estate sector, including
but not limited to property valuation, property investment and property
management. Datuk Kamalul Arifin was appointed by the Malaysian Government
as the Group Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer of Pelaburan
Hartanah Berhad from 2006 to 2018. Datuk Kamalul Arifin is currently an
independent non-executive director of MRCB-Quill REIT, a real estate investment
trust ("REIT") listed on Bursa Malaysia under the stock name MQREIT.

Datuk Kamalul Arifin obtained his Bachelor of Estate Management from Universiti
Teknologi MARA and his Master of Business Administration from Ohio University
in the United States of America. Datuk Kamalul Arifin is a fellow of the Royal
Institution of Chartered Surveyors, United Kingdom, the Royal Institution of
Surveyors Malaysia, and the Malaysian Institute of Property and Facility Managers.
He is also a registered property manager with the Board of Valuers, Appraisers,
Estate Agents and Property Managers.

BGMC International Limited
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Senior Management
Dato’ Michael Teh, Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer, 37 years old

Dato’ Michael Teh is primarily responsible for supervising and overseeing the
overall business of the Group. Please refer to the paragraph headed "Directors” in
this section above for his biography.

Chiang Wai Lam, Project Director, 41 years old

Chiang Wai Lam is a Project Director of the Group and BGMC Corporation and he is
primarily responsible for supervising and overseeing the construction projects of
the Group. He graduated from the University of Sheffield Hallam, England with a
Bachelor's degree in Building Construction Management in September 2002. He
has around 13 years of experience in the construction field. Prior to joining BGMC
Corporation as a project manager in April 2011, he held the position of quantity
surveyor at Modular Construction, a construction company in Malaysia, from
October 2002 to July 2007, where he was responsible for cost estimation and
contract documents. In October 2007, he joined B&G Concept Property Sdn. Bhd.,
a construction company in Malaysia, as a senior quantity surveyor/cost planner
for 3 years. He was responsible for contract documents, cost estimation and cost
planning.

Ee Kian Yiaw, Project Director, 43 years old

Ee Kian Yiaw is currently a Project Director of the Group and BGMC Corporation
and he is primarily responsible for supervising and overseeing the construction
projects of the Group. He graduated from the University of Hertfordshire in
the England with a Bachelor's degree in Engineering in June 2000. He has
over 18 years of experience in the construction field. Prior to his joining BGMC
Corporation in April 2011, Ee Kian Yiaw joined Mie Industrial Sdn. Bhd., a
construction company in Malaysia, in November 2000 as a trainee engineer and
was subsequently promoted to project engineer. He was responsible for planning
and implementing construction projects. In February 2004, Ee Kian Yiaw joined
Best Ventures Sdn. Bhd. as a project engineer for 7 years. He was responsible for
supervising and monitoring the construction projects.

Mr. Ching, Executive Director and Chief Financial Officer, 47 years old

Mr. Ching is primarily responsible for supervising and overseeing the overall
financial management of the Group supervising and overseeing the overall
business of the Group. Please refer to the paragraph headed “Directors” in this
section above for his biography.

Directors and Senior Management
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
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ANNUAL REPORT 2020

About this Report

This environmental, social and governance (“ESG") report is prepared in
accordance with the “Comply or explain” provisions of the ESG reporting
guide ("Guide”) as set out in Appendix 27 to the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities (“Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“Stock Exchange”). Environmental key performance indicators
("KPIs") were calculated and presented in the form of intensities, where
the amount calculated is divided by either the total construction floor area
("CFA") or the office area that contributes to the KPI. Social KPIs, on the
other hand, were calculated using the relevant universal formula.

This report presents the environmental and social performance of BGMC
International Limited ("Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively “Group”
or "BGMC") for the reporting period of financial year ended 30 September
2020 ("Year").

During the Year, all of the Group's operations were located in Malaysia,
hence the relevant laws and regulations mentioned in this report are those
legislated in Malaysia.

Sustainability Management Objectives, Strategy
and Approach

The Group aims to instil the ESG concepts in its business and growth and
to continuously improve its performance in each relevant subject area of
the Guide. It does this by adopting ESG objectives, policies and procedures,
allocating good resources for ESG, embedding ESG objectives into the
Company's Qube System, and creating an ESG identify for the Group.

BGMC International Limited
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2.1.

2.2,

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Adopting ESG Objectives, Policies and Procedures
The Group has adopted the following ESG objectives:

To ensure the company’s operations are environmentally
sustainable.

ii.  Toensurethe company’s operations are socially sustainable.
iii.  To ensure the company's operations adhere to good corporate
governance practices.

The Group has in place the following set of policies and procedures
aimed at achieving the above ESG objectives.

Waste Reduction Policy
ii.  Emission Reduction Policy
ii. ~ Personal Data Protection Policy
iv.  Intellectual Property Protection Policy
v.  Anti-Bribery and Anti-Corruption Policy
vi.  Policy against Child Labour and Forced Labour
vii.  Set of procedures on workplace environment, safety and health
viii. ~ Set of procedures on quality management
ix.  Set of corporate governance policies
Policies and procedures above mentioned explained in this report
under their respective related ESG aspects. The Group’s Corporate
Governance policies are described separately in the Group’s Corporate
Governance Report.
Allocating Good Resources for ESG
The Company's board of directors (“Board”) has overall responsibility
for the Group's ESG strategy and reporting. In line with the Corporate
Governance Code in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules of the Stock
Exchange, the Board is responsible for evaluating and determining the

Group's ESG-related risks and ensuring that appropriate and effective
ESG risk management and internal control systems are in place.

For The Year Ended 30 September 2020
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2.3. Embedding ESG into the Qube System 2.3. BESGH A Qube &£t
The Group has a proprietary system called the Qube System 2.0. There REBERB R R/Qube RF20MWEF R
are eight elements in the Qube System 2.0 that drive the everyday o Qube ZF20E B NIBILE « HIRFA
efficiencies that stack up as quality, time and cost advantages for the AEITESR  SBE—RAEE EAR
Company's stakeholders. Two of the eight elements are in line with RIN S ABES FREE - KEMKARE
the Group’s emphasis on ESG. They are: B o NIATT R A I8 BN & [F ¥ ESGHY
BRA- BER
a) “Sustainability’ - Conducting business responsibly in the a) [KEBRE | ERANEBEEFHE
environments, economies and communities the Group operates HEEANIRIERE KEERENUE
in for the benefit of today's and future generations. ESHRL  EEESHEURT—
Ko
b) “Governance’ - Balancing the interests of all stakeholders to by [QARERI—RIEMBF=MEETH
operate with accountability, fairmess and integrity. FIZFE - UBE - A FNBENR
AR AR]
2.4. Creating an ESG Identity 2.4. RIZESGH 1t
To garner greater awareness and unite all stakeholders towards BT EEENFI I8 A A KRS
achieving ESG objectives, the Group has adopted a stand called “Better BB MIEE — R EK HLRIMESGE F - &
Together” — a movement that creates an identity for the collaborative SEZERETERIEBEFUEINES - &2
nature of its ESG activities. Under the "Better Together” movement, the BIEESCEERBIER S HAES) - /£ 15
Group has the following three specific mottos: ?E&iﬁj BB %@@JT CAREERE T
ZERFRIES ¢

SUSTAINING PROSPERING CARING
TQSETHER TQSETHER TQSETHER

(3) “Sustaining Together’ — The Group uses this motto to promote @ [EFEXKERR|-LAEELKESHE
environmental sustainability. It is associated with initiatives to BIREMAIFEER - WEEHEFR
reduce emissions of air pollutants and greenhouse gases, as well BAORB A ER S AR = RS
as to reduce hazardous and non-hazardous wastes. (TGHG ) HERK - ARE A BEMEE

MBERYEL -

(b) "Prospering Together’ — The Group uses this motto to (b) HE?%%J—ZF%@W\EH&?T‘E}%H
promote social and economic sustainability. It is associated RESHEO R FHEERE - LEBER
with efforts in balancing the interests of all stakeholders and @lﬁﬁ’t‘ﬁ?ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂm*ﬁEﬁﬁﬂ'\ﬁ”i§$
operating with accountability, faimess and integrity. & ME - AFAMHERNRAEE

NS

(0 “Caring Together’ - The Group uses this motto to promote © [BFEE]-AREEALESHERT
community investments as part of social sustainability. It B8 - ERtgn iit%’*)?zﬂ’]ﬁ\q:'
is associated with initiatives such as supporting charities, —IR o ILEBEREBIE T IR

g - HEBKEBIA &1@%%& %IJ

o

community sponsorships, and employee welfares.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

3. Stakeholder Engagement

The Group recognises that the expectation and feedback from its
stakeholders are vital to the sustainable development of the Group. An
effective communication with stakeholders is maintained through daily
operations, such as regular meeting, corporate website, written/electronic
correspondence, training etc,, to develop open and honest relationships
with stakeholders. Key stakeholders of the Group include government,
shareholders/investors, customers, suppliers, subcontractors, industry
players, employees and community etc.

We engage with all stakeholder groups regularly through a structured
mechanism. An effective communication with stakeholders is maintained
through daily operations, such as regular meeting, corporate website, social
media, written/electronic correspondence, training etc., to develop open
and honest relationships with stakeholders.

While senior management is primarily consulted during the preparation of
this statement, its contents are aligned with stakeholder interests whenever
possible.

Identifying key stakeholder groups helps us gauge the actual or potential
impacts our business has on them and vice versa. Key stakeholders of the
Group include government, shareholders/investors, customers, suppliers,
subcontractors, industry players, employees and community etc.

For The Year Ended 30 September 2020
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4., Materiality Assessment

The Group has assessed the materiality of each ESG subject area, aspect

and KP! listed in the Guide. As a result, some KPIs under the Guide’s “comply

or explain” provisions have been determined to be immaterial to the

Group's business and hence are not measured and disclosed in this report.

They are explained in Figure 1. Meanwhile, some KPIs under the Guide’s

“Recommended Disclosures” have also been excluded from this report.

They are listed in Figure 2.

4, EEMFIMA

AEBYFAERESIENE —EESGHE
EMKPIR)E R MEETT T aHE - BRE - AKE
IR LEKPIFERE S| [ B ST RLERIE [ IR T
WHE BB ARENEBZERM - Bt
BETAEARBEBREARET (FEBRE
HE—PRIE) o BRI - ARSI 2
BIRER | E 5 H) FELLKPITR A HE R FE AR SR 5 2 S
(FIAEEXR2) °

ASPECT COMPONENT UNDER THE “COMPLY OR EXPLAIN”
ORKPINO. PROVISIONS THAT IS NOT REPORTED WHY IT IS NOT REPORTED
EEs
KPIF5% [TETFHRBRIGR T RE 2N REHRER
A1 Emission data from gaseous fuel consumption. The Group uses a very insignificant amount of gaseous fuel.
SRESIAELE B B BE B - REBEEMAIET L ENRBIE
A1.2 Hydrofluorocarbons (‘HFC”) and perfluorocarbons (“PFC")  The head offices of the Group use a centralized chilled-
emissions from refrigeration/air-conditioning. water air-conditioning system that does not require HFC
or PFC as refrigerants. Other locations use very insignificant
amount of refrigerant.
g/ ERAZGHNIERICO(THFCH AR 2RI ANEBEBRAZHANEPRAZNLAKEFAZR
(T PFC]) HEi - 5 R FAHFCHPFCARYAT - Hitbhb25AI6E R
H o BRBATH -
GHG removals from newly planted trees. The Group did not plant any trees in the Year.
AR AR RGHG - REBRARFRE I EIE o
Indirect emissions from purchased gas. The Group uses a very insignificant amount of purchased
gas.
SN SR BB RV BERR AREBEEMIEFIENINERE
Other indirect emissions from electricity used for The amount of sewage produced from the Group's
processing sewage by government departments. operations is very insignificant, as most of the fresh water
used by the Group goes into the public drainage system.
BUFESFIEE AR IB) 5 /KB REMEENEMEE ANEEXBAELRSKIERE M T EME - mA
HER - EEFTEAMBRE D AKEIEE A HPKRFAE -
A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products per The completed works of the Group do not require
unit produced. packaging. Although the Group sometimes protect the
finished parts with materials such as paper, plastic, and
plywood, these are usually salvaged from construction
wastes.
BHEE—ARmTEIERNBEME - AEBTIMEREZTERREME - MEAEESR
R &8 A — L WRHREN @ - AR - BRARBS
R REEE R B RS
B6 Information on policies and compliance with relevant laws The Group does not advertise or label its products or
and regulations that have significant impact on the issuer  services.
relating to advertising and labelling.
HRESEEMNERE  BURISHEETAGRE IEESAYEMIMEETESTS HENRTFH -
FENBRE BN ETHAERNIER -
Figure 1: Unreported KPIs under the “Comply or Explain” Provisions of the Guide and Their BT . FEESI A T FRAFFE K TR E #Hey

Explanations
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ASPECT OR KPI NO.

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
For The Year Ended 30 September 2020

BRI e RERKRE
BE2020F9 4300 LEFE

COMPONENT UNDER THE “RECOMMENDED DISCLOSURE” PROVISIONS THAT IS NOT REPORTED

[EE S KPIF 5 [EBEE RA T RE2HRNBS
B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region.
i 8 D HHEREE -
B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, number of suppliers where the practices are being
implemented, how they are implemented and monitored.
EEAEHERRENERRUE EETZRENHERAR - A EHERETIAKREE -
B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls for safety and health reasons.
HzrREREOREAMKARNEEHEBHERGRERBENADL °
B6.2 Number of products and services related complaints received and how they are dealt with.
PR E S n MRTSAERE IR R B B ANRBRIE = -
B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and recall procedures.
HESRFIBEUR G BRZARGLR o
B8.2 Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the focus area of community investment.
HEHWENHTEBRREM T HNER (NS ERRE)
Figure 2:  Unreported KPIs under the ‘Recommended Disclosure” of the Guide BlZ2 :  fEIES| B[ T R TR 2 FRAIKPI
Sustaining Together: Environmental Aspects 5. BFKEZRRE  REEER

5.1. Aspect A1: Emissions and Wastes

5.1. BHA1 : iU R EEYER

Policies and Targets BUREBEEZ

The Group has an emission reduction policy to reduce the emission REEE—ERLBEBMRIEEE - DUk
of air pollutants and GHG. The policy includes incorporating greener LR AYFIGHGHE A R BE - ZBRE
options into the maintaining efficient vehicles and machinery; 1R T TEHERS R I ES 09 = R Y BRI 0
conscious use of air-conditioning, electricity and paper; and setting up ABEIRRAGEIE  @EMFERATH - &
rainwater harvesting systems at project sites. JIAAR + RAEEE IR IRKEER
The Group also has a waste reduction policy to reduce its hazardous REBDE —ERMDEEMHBER - ful
and non-hazardous wastes. The policy includes reducing the spillage TR BEARBEEEEYHRE -
of hazardous waste by using methods like dip trays and bund walls, ELREPE T ERRKIERMERSS
reducing the use of hazardous substances by exploring alternatives, ERIBEBREYRME  BAERESE
as well as reducing, reusing, and recycling products that result in non- MELZHERm - LIRS - ERAE

hazardous wastes.

WHbL @ EL BEERMNEMR °

5§ 2020 EFERRERERATR
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RBIR - HERERES
BZ202049A30R LLEE

Laws and Regulations

Emission of air pollutants and handling of hazardous and non-
hazardous wastes are governed by the Malaysian Environmental
Quality Act 1974 and amendments, with which the Group complies.

Air Pollutants

In accordance with the Environmental KPI Guide, air pollutants refer to
nitrogen oxides (“NOy"), sulphur oxides (“SOx"), and particulate matter
("PM"). The main sources of air pollutants in the Group's operations
are construction machinery and motor vehicles used. Figure 3 below
shows the amounts and intensities of air pollutants emitted by the
Group's operations during the Year and in the financial year ended
September 2019 (‘FY2019").

KPI Description
KPIZ 83

RS

ERERSEYBERN A E A N EERE
EYNEIERRAEE —KETHERA
74 FIRIBERE A M EEFTAER ©

ZRERY

RIFIRIBKPIFE S| » ZERISEMIENER
ey (INox]) ~ Hra b ([sox]) A &
BRYI(TPM]) - REBEEESENZE
FSRMEBR AN TR EIA Rk
BEFEA - L TNERIBETRASELEAF
EREZE2019F9 A IEH BEFE (201981
FOMEBREENZTZRSEYPERE
EE

KPI Results KPI Results
during the Year for FY2019
KREFEEKPIFER 201981 FKPIAS

Amount of air pollutants
ZERITRMPINE
Amount of air pollutants per CFA

CFAR M ZE RS LY BEE

0.99 tonnes 2.61 tonnes
0.991 26108
1.94 grammes/m? 2.53 grammes/m?

1.94% 7K 25353, F I K

Figure 3:  Air Pollutants Emitted by the Group’s Operations During the Year and in
FY2019

Greenhouse Gases

In accordance with the Environmental KPI Guide, GHG emissions refer
to the sum of carbon dioxide ("CO,") emission and the CO, equivalent
emissions of methane (“CH4") and nitrous oxide (“N.0"). GHG
emissions are categorized into direct emissions and indirect emissions.

The main sources of direct emission of GHG in the Group's operations
are motor vehicles used for employee commuting and transporting
goods, as well as machinery and power generators for construction
activities. The main sources of indirect emission of GHG in the Group's
operations are the use of purchased electricity and paper waste
disposed at landfills.
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EFR3 - KEE R FE R 20198 F 59 2 7B
RN =R TR

RIEIRIBEKPIFES| © GHGHYBEIRIEM R =&
et ([Co ) BERRE ~ B ([CH ) TR
LA ([N0]) HERCO2MBEE /48
N o GHGHIBERRF] LA S B B B A Rl 2
BERR o
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Figure 4 below shows the amounts and intensities of GHG emitted by
the Group's operations during the Year and in FY2019.

For The Year Ended 30 September 2020
RIE - HEBRERBRE
BIE2020F9R30B LFE

AT BIRAFBRASE B ERFE K20198 F R %
TSP A HGHGEE B MR E -

KPI Results KPI Results
KPI Description during the Year for FY2019
KPIGE A REEKPILR 2019014 KPI%S
Direct GHG emissions due to mobile and stationary combustion 1,459.82 tonnes 2,207.90 tonnes

(motor vehicles, machinery and power generators)

BBV EE R A AIRE P B E R GHGHE PR (MBI B - MR A B B ) 1,459.82f 2,207,900
Indirect GHG emissions due to consumption of purchased electricity 473.40 tonnes 399.98 tonnes
EHEGHGHE I (B MFAREE /) 473.40% 399,981
Other indirect GHG emissions due to paper waste disposed at landfills 50.38 tonnes 4790 tonnes
EEREHER NS EENEBE M REGHGHER 50.38H] 47 90MA
Total GHG emissions 1,983.60 tonnes 2,655.79 tonnes
GHGHIHH# 8 1,983.600 2,655.79M
Total GHG emissions per CFA 0.0039 tonnes/m? 0.0032 tonnes/m?

(3.9kg/m?) (3.2 kg/m?)

CFARMIGHGH AR

0.0039Mf Ak 0003208, F K
(3.9F% FAK) (32F%/FhHXK)

Figure4:  GHG Emitted by the Group’s Operations During the Year and in FY2019

Hazardous Wastes

Hazardous wastes from the Group's operations are mainly unwanted
hazardous substances includes diesel oil, lubricants, paints, and
coating, contaminated soil due to spillage, empty drums or containers
previously contained hazardous substances. Figure 5 below shows the
amounts and intensities of hazardous wastes produced by the Group’s
operations during the Year and in FY2019.

B4 . KEBEERFER 20198 F 1) T ATHE
JREIGHG

BERREY

REEEBEENEEEENEEEN
EEENAESME(BIELH - HEH -
MARRAERE) Bt RmM 5 &M LE -
REREREEEMENZTERAEE - LT
B & 5B R A S E A A E 20198 G 8
RBFEENEEEEMHENRE -

KPI Results KPI Results

KPI Description during the Year for FY2019
KPIZ AR EEKPIZER 201981 FKPIAE R
Hazardous Wastes Produced by Project Sites 0.21 tonnes 0.51 tonnes
HIRE IHREAN A TREEY 0.21M 0.51M8
Hazardous Wastes Produced by Project Sites per CFA 0.00000041 tonnes/m? 0.00000049 tonnes/m?
(0.41 g/m?) (049 g/m?)

CFARTEIR B THFTEE B EREEY) 0.00000041M, 752K 0.00000049MF " F 75K
(0.415%% FF5K) (0495, FFK)

Figure 5:  Hazardous Wastes Produced by the Group’s Operations During the Year and
in FY2019

EIFs :  KEEFELRFER20198] F B ZEATE
L HEEEY)
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BiE HERERRE

B ZE2020F9A30HLLFE
Non-Hazardous Wastes BEBREY
Non-hazardous wastes from the Group'’s operations include all other AREBEGEENEZEEEYBERE
domestic and construction wastes like paper, plastics, wood, and FMIFRREZEY) - WHRsR ~ BBk - RM AR
metal. Figure 6 below shows the amounts and intensities of non- B UTEROBERAEBEERAFE K
hazardous wastes produced by the Group’s operations during the 0190 FMEBFTEENBEZREENHE
Year and in FY2019. MogE o
KPI Results KPI Results
KPI Description during the Year for FY2019
KPIZ% AR EEEKPIER 201981 FKPIAS
Non-Hazardous Wastes Produced by Project Sites 584.901 tonnes 1,753.85 tonnes
B THE AR EREEY 584.901/f 1,753 8508
Non-Hazardous Wastes Produced by Project Sites per CFA 0.0011 tonnes/m? 0.0017 tonnes/m?2
(1.1 kg/m?) (17 kg/m?)
CFANTEIE B T PRE AN EEEEY 0.0011Mf 5K  00017M8,/F 75K
MAFREHRK) (7F=/FHK)
Figure 6:  Non-Hazardous Wastes Produced by the Group’s Operations During the Year EZe6 -  AKEBFLRFERI0198FH)EFEATE
andin FY2019 EHEZEEY
5.2. Aspect A2: Use of Resources 5.2. BMEA2 : ERMEA
Energy Consumption HERHFE
The Group consumes energy in the form of electricity for both its ZK’*IZ—E#}J#’“*&I%}PW@EHE@ ERETE
office and worksite. It also consumes energy generated from diesel oil B EHTE@EFH SMEEENIR{E T2
for construction machinery. Whenever possible, the Group taps into ﬁ c REEEEENERBENE HHE
the existing electricity supply network to power worksite operations AR THE 1ﬁ§'§ BXom A FEREL
to minimize the usage of diesel oil which emits more GHG. Figure 7 BEGHGHSH c LM TBR/BETAEE
below shows the amounts and intensities of energy consumed by the ERFE M 20198 FHZEIEF R REFREE
Group's operations during the Year and in FY2019. BE e
KPI Results KPI Results
KPI Description during the Year for FY2019
KPIZ A KEEKPIER 201981 FKPIAER
Energy Consumed by Project Sites (purchased electricity and diesel oil) 5,427,690.69 kWh 10451,587.39 kWh
BB TR rE(BEMSH) 5427,690.69T FLB 1045158739 T FLbs
Energy Consumed by Project Sites (purchased electricity and diesel oil) per CFA 10.64 kWh/m? 10.16 kWh/m?
CFAREIIE B TR (BEMEH) 1064T R/ FHX  1016TRE/Fhk
Energy Consumed by Offices (purchased electricity) 96,715 kWh 123,735.78 kWh
MAERE(EE) 96,715F Fubs 12373578 T FLB%
Energy Consumed by Offices (purchased electricity) per Office Floor Area 39.37 kWh/m? 50.28 kWh/m?
RREEETENORAERREESE) 3037FRE/FAHK  S08TEE/Fhk
Figure 7: Energy Consumed by the Group's Operations During the Year and in FY2019 EZ7 :  AKEBEERFRER20198] F LA E
BEFE
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5.3.

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Water Consumption

The Group consumes water for its worksite construction activities.
The amount of water used at its offices are very insignificant and
immeasurable as the head offices share the building’s public
restrooms. Figure 8 below shows the amounts and intensities of water
consumed by the Group’s worksite operations during the Year and in
FY2019.

KPI Description

KPI Results during the Year

For The Year Ended 30 September 2020
RIE - HEBRERBRE
BIE2020F9R30B LFE

FKE

AEEN T TEB A ERRK o M
NRENFKEANRB DM BEEEEN
ERABEENARHAETHXRTREX
BORNHBER - LTERSBETRAEE
FEAREEE J 201984 5 00 T b 3 75 O FE 7K
BMRE -

KPI Results for FY2019

KPIZ B8 KEEKPIER 201984 KPS
per CFA per CFA
CFAR CFAA
Fresh Water Consumed by Project Sites 11,972.00 m3 0.023 m3/m? 49,466.01 m? 0.048 m3/m2

HE Ti#kE 11972005  0.023% 53K /F K 494660135 K 00483 K/ Tk
Figure 8:  Water Consumed by the Group'’s Worksite Operations During the Year and in EF%8 :  AEBIEARFER20198 F iy THhZ 7

FY2019
Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources

As part of the clients’ requirement, some of the Group’s activities
involved clearing lands, exposing slopes, and handling of hazardous
substances. Heavy vehicles are also prone to tracking mud and silt.
Construction sites are also notorious for producing wastes. If the
above is not well contained and controlled, it will contaminate and
pollute the surroundings environment.

To reduce impacts on the environment, the Group provides more
localized systems and protections such as slope protection, dip trays
and bund walls to contain hazardous spillage, washing bays for heavy
vehicles, rainwater harvesting, solar-powered floodlights, and ample
waste bins. Where relevant, these systems and protections adhere
strictly to requirements of the Malaysian Department of Environment
under the Ministry of Environment and Natural Resources. To further
reduce impacts on the environment, the Group has also implemented
the 3Rs exercise (Reduce, Reuse and Recycle) at site wherever possible
such as replaced the usage of timber to aluminum formwork for
scaffolding.

5.3.

HFEIFEK E
BHEA3 : BERKXAER

REER—LEZETRAEREFHFERM
WEHR THEE  HENENRIEEE
M IIEREE) - SREREESHE5R
FREMIZE - RETAM - THE—EgE
EREEYRMTT o M EMIERTINEE8
B RIES] - AERBSEWSR -

RREHRENTE  ARERHES
LM ZRFMREREE - PINERTRE B
B LA = RE R YR I & R K TR M 28
fe - BREETER - RKEE - K56
RHEREAZHBRME - EEABR
T EERRARE R GBS ERS
RS B R EREIRIT AR B R IR
BEFIM E R - i — BIHEHIRBNT
£ AEENFAENRTHER=ASE
(LA BAA - BRANA) - RAEs
TR VERD F2RAERA AR ©
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BZ202049A30R LLEE

6. Prospering Together: Social Aspects

6.1. Aspect B1: Employment

The Group strives to provide its employees with decent working
environments with fair opportunities to grow with the Group. During
the Year, all of the Group’s employees were based in Malaysia.
Therefore, the Group adopts employment policies that comply
with the Malaysian Employment Act 1955 and Malaysian Industrial
Relations Act 1967 (and their latest amendments), among other
Malaysian laws and regulations that govern employment practices.

The Group’s employment policies are merit-based with a structured
compensation system. Employees’ individual performances are
transparently reviewed in a systematic appraisal process. The Group
practices fair and non-discriminatory recruitment, promotion and
other employment policies where all candidates are given equal
opportunities (See Note A below). Diversity of employees is a
significant factor in establishing workplace policies, in order to ensure
such policies do not pose unfair advantage or disadvantage to any
particular group of employees. Benefits and welfare such as annual
and sick leave entitlement, medical and dental fees reimbursements,
marriage and bereavement allowances, and insurance coverage that
are above and beyond the minimum statutory requirements are also
provided. The Group adopts fair dismissal provisions where employees
are fully informed of their rights with respect to termination of
employment, and takes great measures to ensure dismissal cases
are handled ethically, sensitively, and cordially. Above all, the Group
provides a clear and unobstructed employee grievances channel
where employees have free and convenient access to high-level
management and the Group’s human resources department (“HR
Department’) to channel their grievances.

Note A: Construction services being one of the Group’s main core businesses, it is
natural that a larger percentage of the Group’s employees are males.

ANNUALREPORT2020 BGMC International Limited

6. BFEL HEEME

6.1. EMB1 : EfE

AEEBRNRETRERFHTIFRE
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FHARME - Bt - ARBMETHER
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Figures 9 to 10 below show the total workforce and turnover rates by
gender and age group during the Year and in FY2019.

For The Year Ended 30 September 2020
RIE - HEBRERBRE
BIE2020F9R30B LFE

UWTBRIZI0ERANEBRERNFE K
2019 FIZ R EF R ABRIE DM B T4
ANE R ETRAR

Gender No. of Employees Turnover Rate (%)
5 EEAH BITREAE®)

During the Year FY2019  During the Year FY2019

REFE 201981 RAREE 20198145

Female 92 113 462% 2.14%
Lo
Male 253 303 4.34% 2.06%
ES

Figure 9:  Average Number of Employees During the Year and in FY2019 (by Gender) &
Average Monthly Employee Turnover Rate During the Year and in FY2019 (by

B9 . AKFEZR20198F I IEFIE 7 B F 15
F1EE A ERAFEZ 201981 FIZE S

Gender) 2|50 A S LnkE
Age (Years) No. of Employees Turnover Rate
FiR(BR) EEAH BIRAXR
During the Year FY2019  During the Year FY2019
REFE 2019815 RAREE 2019815
181030 125 164 5.60% 2.99%
18Z305%
311040 129 140 3.75% 1.54%
31E405%
411050 54 71 3.54% 1.06%
41 508%
Above 50 37 41 4.05% 2.02%
50K A &

Figure 10:  Average Number of Employees During the Year and in FY2019 (by Age Group)
& Average Monthly Employee Turnover Rate During the Year and in FY2019
(by Age Group)

BF10 © FKFERR20198 FILF i /EE| 5 HI-F1
FHIEBAERAEEZR20198] FIgFE
BB E| 7Ry FIGFA B T k&

3§ 2020 BEBRERERERAR
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6.2. Aspect B2: Health and Safety 6.2. [EMB2 : REHEZE

The Group’s Environment, Safety and Health (“ESH") Division is
dedicated to managing all workplace health and safety matters. It
strives to provide a healthy and safe working environment for the
Group's employees as well as sub-contractors. A comprehensive set
of policies and procedures on workplace safety and health is strictly
enforced by a team of qualified safety and health officers, supported
by dedicated safety and health personnel, that form the Group’s ESH
Division.

The Group complies with the latest safety and health laws and
regulations including but not limited to the Malaysian Occupational
Safety and Health Act 1994, Malaysian Factories and Machinery Act
1967, and Malaysian Construction Industry Development Board
("CIDB") Act 1994 (and their latest amendments). The compliance
includes providing the necessary personal protective equipment
to all employees, training on good workplace safety and health
practices that are tailored specifically to the nature of work and
working environment, training on ergonomic habits and practices
at the workplace, ample safety and health signages, inclusion of
other organizations’ employees in the Group’s safety and health
programmes for better effectiveness, and providing adequate first-aid
boxes.

Figure 11 below shows the number of work-related fatalities and lost
days due to work injury During the Year and in FY2019.

REBMBY TERE - T2 HEEFE(TESH])
IFY - EFIAEEEME LIESMMER
HEZ2RH  BOALAEEEERSBHE
REFERRZ2NTIERE - XEBRF
EBMAE  EXSNIIESMETREERRK
FERR B HAERNLEHEES
BEIEHT WEBBNEEABERR
X35 — ERRAEBAIESHEDPT o

AEEBTHAL2BAEEHBRNER
G - BIEETRAC19945F F R A
B 2 HEEES) - 1967F 52K
TR B AR E 2 VA R {1994 4F F5 2R PE 88 T
¥%ER([CADB))ES) - ZEAREH
BIEBTRRAE B TIRHEARER
& BEIEEERIERENBEEE
EBERRT ISR EBEEEEN
2 BB TSR AE ARBIEN
BEMEBRNEI - £ AZF IR
AT EEERANSTE  BEMW
HABHETINMTIABSEAEENZ 2N
fERRATEIE LR ST Bl Ak ES - LA AT
NEMIEFTEHEZRAE -

AN BIR VBRI A S E R 20198 F THF
HEAGTEHREBE ULATEEIINMIER
M TVEREL

KPI Results KPI Results
KPI Description during the Year for FY2019
KPIZ B3 REEKPIFR 20198 FKPIHER
No. of Work-Related Fatalities 0 0
TR BT ERAR
No. of Lost Days Due to Work Injury 0 0

R TEESNMBRE TIERE

Figure 11: Work-Related Fatalities and Lost Days due to Work Injury During the Year and
in FY2019
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6.3. Aspect B3: Development and Training

The Group, via the HR Department and respective heads of divisions,
ensures that its employees are provided with sufficient development
and training. A systematic procedure is in place to determine the
training and development needs of each employee. The Group
sponsors its employees to attend training courses as well as
continuous professional development courses which enables them to
upgrade their knowledge and skills.

Figures 12 and 13 below show the percentages of employees trained
and average training hours completed per employee by gender and
employee category During the Year and in FY2019.

For The Year Ended 30 September 2020
RIE - HEBRERBRE
BIE2020F9R30B LFE

6.3. BMEB3 : R &EF

AEEBBANERBFARESBHAEE
RSB TIRH B MM BR AL - A&
BHEE - ERRARNEFATEE (L8
THIRIEEROFTL - ARESEHE
T2 NEEMERTTH AP B ALV EEFIFRIZ A
RIsEERERRIE -

AT ER 122138 RAFE N 20198 Fi%
HRIEEERBIBISHZINE TH DA
N B TE R FIIEIREL

Percentage of Average Training Hours

Gender Employees Trained Per Employee
5 RIETESHE BB TR (/)

During the Year FY2019  During the Year FY2019

REFE 2019815 RAREE 20198145

Female 5.97% 18.04% 4.14 443
=z
Male 2.14% 6.28% 6.79 7.69
eS|

Figure 12: Percentage of Employees Trained During the Year and in FY2019 (by Gender)
& Average Training Hours Completed per Employee During the Year and in
FY2019 (by Gender)

BF12 0 FKFERR2019 FIZIMEFIE 789758
T BB RERFEER20198] FIZ LR
B DT B T B 5 ryF 151550 2

Percentage of Average Training Hours

Category Employees Trained Per Employee
S]] ZIBTEHS®E BB T PRI ()

During the Year FY2019  During the Year FY2019

RAEFE 201981 N 2019815

Management 5.18% 10.21% 7.10 835
EIRHEE
Executive 2.55% 9.29% 5.67 5.95
TTERBE B
Non-Executive 4.19% 9.69% 3.1 412
FETTIRFE [E

Figure 13:  Percentage of Employees Trained During the Year and in FY2019 (by
Category)

B3 - AFERR20198 Fi1ZEERFIEZH)Z

FIET A
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6.4.

6.5.

6.6.
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Aspect B4: Labour Standards

The Group has a strict policy against employing illegal child labour
and forced labour, in line with the Children and Young Persons
Employment Act 1966 of Malaysia (and its latest amendments). It
ensures that all of its employees work voluntarily for the Group and
are not intimidated or threatened to enforce employment.

Employees may voice out any contravention to this policy via
employee grievances and whistleblowing procedures as set out in the
Group's employee handbook. The Group restricted its supplier or sub-
contractor to employs illegal child labour or forced labour, the Group
will instruct the supplier or sub-contractor to cease the use of illegal
child labour or forced labour immediately, report the supplier or sub-
contractor to the relevant authorities, and blacklist the said supplier or
sub-contractor from all future projects.

Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management

During vendor selection, the Group considers the distance that the
supplier will travel to deliver items to project sites especially when
the items will be delivered at high frequencies while weighing other
feasibility factors such as product specifications, vendor performance,
and after-sales service.

Most products used by the Group for construction projects are pre-
selected or pre-specified by its clients. However, whenever possible,
and subject to feasibility, the Group will use environmentally friendly
products sourced from responsible suppliers. The Group also
promotes the use of such environmentally friendly products to its
clients and consultants.

Aspect B6: Product Responsibility
Quality, Health and Safety

The Group has a team of quality assurance and quality control
("QAQC") personnel that ensures construction and installation works
are carried out in accordance with clients’ specifications. The Group's
ESH Division, on the other hand, ensures construction services are
carried out in a safe and healthy manner. The Group also has in place
a quality management system (“QMS”) certified under ISO 9001:2015
that aims to consistently achieve client satisfaction. Client complaints
are properly recorded and monitored until such actions have been
taken to address said complaints. Root cause analysis is also carried
out to prevent recurrence.

BGMC International Limited
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6.7.

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Intellectual Property Rights

The Group observes and protects its clients’ intellectual property
rights in accordance with intellectual property laws and regulations
(and their latest amendments) such as the Malaysian Copyright Act
1987, Patents Act 1983 and Trade Marks Act 1976. As per the Group's
written policy, it is committed to respecting the intellectual property
of others, and requires its employees, consultants, professional service
providers, sub-contractors and other agents to use legal and ethical
resources to prevent the tainting of the Group’s operations with
improper introduction of proprietary information of third parties.

Privacy Rights

The Group has a personal data protection policy that complies with
the Malaysian Personal Data Protection Act 2010. The policy includes
information on the type of personal data that the Group may collect,
why and how the personal data are collected, the parties with whom
the Group may share the personal data, the possible transfer of
personal data outside of Malaysia, the choices the Group offers its
stakeholders, responsibilities on personal data protection, retention
period, and stakeholders’ consent.

The Group assures its stakeholders that personal data collected are
wholly for the purpose of properly carrying out its obligations to its
stakeholders, that it does not unnecessarily disclose personal data to
third parties, that it protects personal data with its best endeavors, and
that its stakeholders have options to control how their personal data
are used.

Aspect B7: Anti-Corruption

The Group complies with the Malaysian Anti-Corruption Commission
Act 2009 and its latest amendments. It has in place an anti-bribery
and anti-corruption policy which forms part of the Group’s employee
handbook. This is intended to set out minimum standards to assist
such persons in recognizing circumstances which may lead to or give
the appearance of corruption or unethical business conduct.

In addition, the Group has in place a whistleblowing policy as part
of its employee handbook which explains the provision of a secure
whistleblowing channel for its employees that leads directly to the
Group's compliance officer. The policy also protects whistleblowers
against unfair dismissal, victimization or unwarranted disciplinary
action even if the concerns turn out to be unsubstantiated.

As of 30 September 2020, there has been no confirmed non-
compliance incidents related to bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering within the Group.
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BiE - HERERRE
BIZ2020%F9H30HILFE

7. Caring Together 7. BFEE

7.1. Aspect B8: Community Investment

The Group endeavors to contribute its resources to the wellbeing
and sustainability of the community in various ways through
communication with the stakeholders including customers, suppliers,
employees, social media through different channels and platforms
to understand their needs and promote its environmental awareness
to the community. In addition, we encourage our staff to actively
participate in charitable activities and volunteer works, especially on
those related with environmental protection.

The Group organised charity visitation on 30 December 2019,
employees of the Group visited the Promise Home, a shelter in
Kota Kemuning, Shah Alam for underprivileged Orang Asli children,
bringing the “back to school” needs which consists of uniforms,
stationeries, shoes, consumable dry foods and dinner to the residents.
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Visit to Promise Home on 30 December 2019

2019F 1230 H#a % L2 5

7.2. Employee Care

The Group aims to ensure that its employees feel included,
appreciated, and valued. Various activities have been organised via
the Group’s human resources department and sports club to provide
platforms where employees were able to unwind and connect with
each other amidst enjoyable environments.
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1.

Corporate Governance Report

Corporate Governance Practices

BGMC International Limited (“Company”) is committed to fulfilling its
responsibilities to its shareholders (“Shareholders”) and protecting as well
as enhancing Shareholders’ value through good corporate governance.
The Company has adopted the principles contained in the Corporate
Governance Code ("CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited ("Stock Exchange” and “Listing Rules’, respectively), as its code of
good corporate governance, which the board of directors of the Company
("Directors” and “Board’, respectively) recognises as essential to the

success of the Company.

The Board periodically reviews and continues to enhance the Company'’s
corporate governance policies and practices, and the Company has
complied with all the applicable code provisions as set out in the CG Code
throughout the financial year ended 30 September 2020 (“Year").

Board
2.1. Roles and Responsibilities

The Directors, individually and collectively, must act in good faith, with
due diligence and care, to discharge their duties in the best interests
of the Company and its shareholders. The Board is responsible for the
overall management of the Group's business and affairs by establishing
the overall strategies, setting objectives and business development
plans.

The Board has delegated its powers to the management on the day-
to-day management of the Group’s operations. Under the leadership
of the executive Directors (“EDs") of the Company, the management is
responsible for implementing the strategies and plans established by
the Board and the implementation of the internal control systems and
risk management.
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Corporate Governance Report
TEERRE

2.2. Composition of the Board 2.2, EEGARK
The members of the Board during the Year and up to the date of IR EEREEAFERT AN ESS
publication of this annual report are set out below: KEEHHWT

Executive Directors (“EDs")

BTES(HTES))

Dato’ Mohd Arifin Bin Mohd Arif (‘Dato’ Arifin") (Vice-chairman)
ZEMohd Arifin Bin Mohd Arif([ &€& Arifin |) (51 £ /%)

Dato’ Teh Kok Lee (“Dato’ Michael Teh") (Chief executive officer)
EEEEF([EBWMEAER ) (77EEZ)

Mr. Ching Hong Seng (“Mr. Ching") (Chief financial officer) (Appointed on 16 July 2020)
RBEE(REE D (BEAFE)(7R2020F7 16 AEZRE)

Ir. Azham Malik Bin Mohd Hashim (“Ir. Azham Malik”) (Resigned on 16 July 2020)
Ir. Azham Malik Bin Mohd Hashim ([ Ir. Azham Malik |) (572202097 A 16 A &#T)

Tan Sri Dato’ Sri Goh Ming Choon (“Tan Sri Barry Goh") (Chairman) (Resigned on 7 October 2020)
MRS ENBRAE(ARBERBE ) (F/E)(KR2020F10A78 BHE)

Independent Non-Executive Directors (“INEDs")

BYFHTES(BUFIITES])

Tan Sri Dato’ Seri Kong Cho Ha (“Tan Sri Kong")
PR TEE(I FHEIHEE])

Kua Choh Leang (“Mr. Kua") (Appointed on 3 July 2020)
fFRE([#5E4E |) (7202057 A3HEZRT)

Datuk Kamalul Arifin Bin Othman (‘Datuk Kamalul”) (Chairman) (Appointed on 7 October 2020)
2B Kamalul Arifin Bin Othman ([ £&Kamalull) (£/Z) (722020510 A7HEZT)

Ng Yuk Yeung (“Mr. Ng") (Resigned on 3 July 2020)
RIBFG ([ R5%% 1) (72202057 A3HEHE)

Chan May May (“Ms. Chan") (Resigned on 7 October 2020)
FREE(THRZ £ J) (7202010 A7 HEHE)
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2.3.

During the Year and up to the date of publication of this annual
report, there are 2 INEDs resigned and replaced. The composition of
the board for the subsequent reporting year with 3 INEDs appointed
make up half of the Board.

Dato’ Michael Teh, an ED and the chief executive officer of the
Company (“Chief Executive Officer”) is a nephew of Tan Sri Barry
Goh, the former Chairman and Tan Sri Barry Goh is the uncle of Dato’
Michael Teh. Save for the aforementioned relationship between the
Chief Executive Officer and the Chairman, there was no financial,
business, other family or other material relationships among the
members of the Board during the Year and up to the date of this
annual report. Tan Sri Barry Goh resigned as chairman from 7 October
2020 and replaced by Datuk Kamalul Arifin.

The biographical information of the Directors is set out in “Directors
and Senior Management” section of this annual report. An updated
list of the Directors identifying the EDs and INEDs, and the roles
and functions of each Director, is also maintained on the respective
websites of Stock Exchange and the Company.

The Company reviews the Board composition regularly to ensure that
it has a balance of expertise, skills and experience appropriate for the
needs of the business of the Group.

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance coverage in respect
of any legal action against the Directors and the senior management
of the Group.

Meetings of the Board and the Shareholders and Directors’
Attendance Records

The Board is scheduled to meet four times a year at approximately
quarterly intervals with notice given to the Directors at least 14 days
in advance. For all other Board meetings, notice will be given in a
reasonable time in advance. All Directors are given draft agenda for all
matters for deliberation and resolution at the meetings.

The company secretary of the Company (“Company Secretary”)
is responsible to prepare and circulate the abovementioned draft
agenda and board papers. All Board meetings’ minutes recorded in
sufficient detail of the matters considered and decisions reached will
be kept by a duly appointed secretary of the meeting. Draft and final
versions of the minutes are circulated to the Directors for comments
and records respectively within a reasonable time after each meeting
and the final version is open for the Directors’ inspection.

23.

Corporate Governance Report
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Corporate Governance Report
TEERRE

Thirteen Board meetings and one annual general meeting of the AARFERBEENFRHZEBE - KAF]
Company (“AGM") were held during the Year during the Year and up BRI TZAESgeRN —XREBEF
to the publication of this annual report. Their meeting attendance Ae((REEERE)) EFHEESES
at Board and Board committees’ meetings is evidenced by the eENEELeeeR A NRAELHFEE
attendance record set out in the table below. ﬁ'}%.ﬂ
Meetings Attended/Held
HE/ BaNEE
2020 Annual
Audit Remuneration  Nomination Risk General
Name of Directors Board Committee Committee Committee Committee Meeting
2020F
BEitg Exe ENZBEE HMWZEE REZEE ERZEE RREEFAS
EDs
HTES
Dato' Arifin (Vice-chairman) 1213 - - - 4/4 v
SBNifn(8/F/E)
Dato' Michael Teh (Chief Executive Officer) 13/13 - - 5/5 4/4 v
SEERN TR ##)
Mr. Ching (Chief Financial Officer) (Appointed on 16 July 2020) 17 - - - - -
REE(BRAFE)(RN0ETR16BEER)
Ir. Azham Malik (Resigned on 16 July 2020) 6/6 - - - - v
I Azham Malik(F82020%7 A 16 B EHE)
Tan Sri Barry Goh (Chairman) (Resigned on 7 October 2020) 7/8 - 3/4 - - 4

FBRBE(ZE) (020510778

INEDs

BUFUTES

Tan Sri Kong 13/13 6/6 2/2 5/5 4/4 v
HETEE

Mr. Kua (Appointed on 3 July 2020) 9/9 33 44 - 373 -
AIRE(R020%F7 A3 RRZER)

Datuk Kamalul Arifin (Appointed on 7 October 2020) 4/4 22 22 I 22 -
S BKamalul Arfin (2020510 7B BZAE)

Mr.Ng (Resigned on 3 July 2020) 33 33 22 - 1/1 v
RS (R00F7 A3IRRHE)

Ms. Chan (Resigned on 7 October 2020) 8/8 4/4 4/4 3/3 212 v

B L (2020510778 8HE)
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2.4. Induction and Continuing Professional Development

The Company has from time to time arranged relevant trainings at
the Company’s expense to all Directors to develop and refresh their
duties and responsibilities. All Directors have provided the Company
with records of the trainings attended by them during the Year.
According to the training records maintained by the Company, the
types of trainings received by each of the Directors during the Year are
summarised as follows:

Corporate Governance Report

EEERKRE

24. \BRIFEEXERR

ARRETE RSB ESLZHHRME
NERMEHRRENBHE MBS - BAH
ARBIZN - 2REFCDRARFRHEA

FREBEMHFEE

FIEECER » RIZA QA

FEMFIIRE  SESNAFERXHN

EHBERI SR T

Attending
seminars/reading
materials relevant
to the director’s

Name of Directors duties
HEHEA
EERBH
wae BIE
BEEpnE HEEEM
EDs
HITES
Dato’ Arifin (Vice-chairman) v
EBAfin(F/F/E)
Dato’ Michael Teh (Chief Executive Officer) v
SBEER| (7T &)
Mr. Ching (Chief Financial Officer) (Appointed on 16 July 2020) v
RS E(BEAMEE) (7202057 A6 A EEE)
Ir. Azham Malik (Resigned on 16 July 2020) v
Ir. Azham Malik(#2202047 A 16 B & F)
Tan Sri Barry Goh (Chairman) (Resigned on 7 October 2020) v
FHTR RIAEE () (1202010478 BHE)
INEDs
BAFHTES
Tan Sri Kong v
FHTEIIEZ
Mr. Kua (Appointed on 3 July 2020) v
54 (7202047 A3 B EEE)
Datuk Kamalul Arifin (Appointed on 7 October 2020) v
2B Kamalul Arifin (72020510 A 7B E & 1(T)
Mr. Ng (Resigned on 3 July 2020) v
RS54 (18202057 A3 A EHT)
Ms. Chan (Resigned on 7 October 2020) v

B 42+ (FA20205E10 A7 H BHT)

Each of the Directors complied with code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code.
BEEECHFIEEDTAITANKRKACS ©

SE$R 2020
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3.
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EELA®RE

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

During the Year, Tan Sri Barry Goh acted as the Chairman and Dato’ Michael
Teh acted as the Chief Executive Officer. The Chairman performs the
management of the Board and the Chief Executive Officer performs the
day-to-day management of the Group's businesses. Clear division of their
respective roles and responsibilities is in place and set out in writing to
ensure a balance of power and authority. The Chairman is responsible for
supervising and providing independent advice to the Board.

INEDs

INEDs are appointed on a term of one year.

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, all Directors (including INEDs)
appointed by the Board shall hold office only until the first general meeting
of the Company after his/her appointment (in the case of filling a casual
vacancy) or until the next following AGM (in the case of an addition to the
Board), and shall be eligible for re-election at that meeting.

All Directors shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every
three years and the retiring Director shall be eligible for re-election.

During the Year, the Chairman, being an ED, held one meeting with the
INEDs without the presence of other EDs.

The Board as well as the Nomination Committee have reviewed the annual
written confirmation of independence from each of the INEDs and based
on such confirmations, the Company considers that all the INEDs are
independent and have met the independence guidelines as set out in
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules during the Year and up to date of this annual
report.

BGMC International Limited
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ERRE
5. Board Committees 5. EEZE8T

The Board has established four Board committees, namely the Audit EEeENDRYUNELZES Eﬂ%ﬁ?%
Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the Nomination Committee and @ HFEE®  EL ?,\ eMEMEES
the Risk Committee to oversee particular aspects of the Company'’s affairs. AEFEJ EEARRTRAAEMNIEEEE &S
The Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to discharge ZESEREHATERABITERE - WEZ
their duties. The list of members of the four Board committees are as ELEEKERENT :
follows:

Board Committees’ Composition

EEZEEMNAN

Audit Remuneration Nomination Risk
Name of Directors Committee Committee Committee Committee
BEEng ENEEE FMEEE REZET EBREEE®
EDs
ITES
Dato’ Arifin (Vice-chairman) - - - Chairman
SBAfin(5IF/E) £
Dato’ Michael Teh (Chief Executive Officer) - - Member Member
SEWBER(7THAEE) B8 D=
Mr. Ching (Chief Financial Officer) (Appointed on 16 July 2020) - - - -
BRSE(BEMEE) (72020567 A6 HEEE)
Ir. Azham Malik (Resigned on 16 July 2020) - - - -
Ir. Azham Malik(74202057 A 16 B B#E)
Tan Sri Barry Goh (Chairman) (Resigned on 7 October 2020) - Member - -
FHT B RABE(EL/E) (70202010 47 B EHE) (4=
INEDs
BIKHTES
Tan Sri Kong Member Member Chairman Member
FHTR)TIEE D= D= FE 8
Mr. Kua (Appointed on 3 July 2020) Chairman Member - Member
RI5E 4 (720205F 7 A3 B EE ) TiE Dg=| D=
Datuk Kamalul Arifin (Appointed on 7 October 2020) Member Chairman Member Member
2B Kamalul Arifin (2020810 A 7B EZ1T) k8 B KE I24=!
Mr. Ng (Resigned on 3 July 2020) Chairman Member - Member
RS (78202057 A3 B EHE) TiE Dg=| D=
Ms. Chan (Resigned on 7 October 2020) Member  Chairwoman Member Member
BRZZ T (FA20205F10 A7 B BHE) D= TR B8 8
The composition and the terms of reference (“ToRs”) of the Board EEZEgMAKLEEGE((RESE]) s
Committees are reviewed and updated regularly to ensure that they remain R REH - UWRRZEZESRFBEE
appropriate and in line with the Company’s business and changes in MAZ’»‘“?%W&?/DEEXE’]M@J BFZ
governance practices. The written ToRs of the Board Committees excluding Bg(TaERREE S ) S B E N i
the Risk Committee are published on the respective websites of the Stock RET AR ﬂ?ﬁiﬁi‘l—'”%{ °

Exchange and the Company.
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5.1. Audit Committee 51. BEREEE

The Audit Committee consists of three members who are all INEDs
and is delegated with the authority from the Board primarily to
oversee the Group's financial reporting and internal control systems,
and the adequacy of the external and internal audits. Details of the
authority and duties of Audit Committee are set out in the Audit
Committee’s term of reference, which has been published on the
respective websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

The Audit Committee has performed the following works during the
Year:

Reviewed the appointment and remuneration of ZHONGHUI
ANDA CPA Limited ("ZHCPA") as the Group's During the Year
and up to the date of this annual report, external auditors;

ii. Reviewed the audit plans, scopes, methods and reporting
formats proposed by ZHCPA;

ii.  Reviewed the external audit reports by ZHCPA respectively, and
the management’s response to the reported findings;

iv.  Reviewed the internal control audit report by external Consultant;

v.  Reviewed the adequacy of qualified accountants in the Group;

vi.  Reviewed the continuing connected transactions conducted by
the Group;

vii.  Reviewed the interim and annual financial statements, reports,
and results announcement of the Group for the Year prior to
publication;

viii. Reviewed the internal controls policies and procedures across
the Group, including those for accounting and reporting; and

ix.  After due deliberation, recommended the appropriate outcomes
of the above reviews for the Board's approval.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the disclaimer of opinion in the
independent auditors’ report and the basis thereof. The management
of the Company has reviewed the impact of the disclaimer of opinion
and the action plan as disclosed in the “Management Discussion and
Analysis” section of this annual report. There was no disagreement
between the views of the Audit Committee and the management in
respect of (i) the disclaimer of opinion, and (i) the Company’s plan to
address the disclaimer of opinion.
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5.2.

The Audit Committee held six meetings during the Year. The
attendance of individual Directors at meetings of the Board and its
committees is set out in the table on page 42.

The Company has engaged an external consultant to establish an
internal control audit function during the Year. The external consultant
worked closely with the ICRM Division and has assisted the Audit
Committee in carrying out an independent review on the adequacy
and effectiveness of the risk management and internal control system
of the Group.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee consists of three members, which
comprises at least two INEDs and is delegated with the authority
from the Board to establish, review, and make recommendations to
the Board on the Group’s remuneration policy and practices. Details
of the authority and duties of Remuneration Committee are set out
in the Remuneration Committee’s term of reference, which has been
published on the respective websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company.

During the Year and up to the publication of this annual report the
Remuneration Committee had performed the following works:

Reviewed the performance of individual EDs and senior
management, and recommended their discretionary bonus and
remuneration package;

ii. Reviewed the remuneration of non-executive Directors;

ii.  Reviewed the Group's remuneration policy and annual bonus
policy;

iv.  Reviewed the management’s analysis on performance bonus
funding methods, and its underlying principles and metrics to
be used;

v.  Reviewed the remuneration bands of Directors and the senior
management; and

vi.  After due deliberation, recommended the appropriate outcomes
of the above reviews for the Board’s approval.

The Remuneration Committee held seven meetings during the Year
and up to the publication of this annual report. The attendance of
individual Directors at meetings of the Board and its committees is set
out in the table on page 42.
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5.3. Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee consists of three members, which
comprises one executive Director and two INEDs and is delegated
with the authority from the Board to formulate and implement the
policy for nominating Board candidates for election by Shareholders
and assess independence of independent non-executive Directors.
Details of the authority and duties of Nomination Committee are set
out in the Nomination Committee’s term of reference, which has been
published on the respective websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company.

The Nomination Committee has adopted a Nomination Policy which is
set out under the Section 6 “Nomination Policy” of this report.

During the Year and up to the publication of this annual report, the
Nomination Committee had performed the following works:

Reviewed the structure, size and diversity of the Board. No changes
were recommended in view that the Board’s composition is still

in line with the Company's corporate strategy;

ii.  Reviewed the confirmation of independence by the INEDs;

ii. Reviewed the re-election of the retiring Directors at the AGM

held on 2 June 2020;

iv.  Reviewed the time commitment of the Directors for performance
of their responsibilities;

v.  Reviewed the Company’s succession plan for the Board; and

vi.  After due deliberation, recommended the appropriate outcomes
of the above reviews for the Board's approval.

The Nomination Committee held five meetings during the Year
and up to the publication of this annual report. The attendance of
individual Directors at meetings of the Board and its committees is set
out in the table on page 42.
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5.4. Risk Committee

The Board has established a Risk Committee with written ToRs that
complies with the CG Code. The principle roles and functions of the

Risk Committee include but are not limited to:

Vi.

Vil.

Viii.

Advising the Board on the Group's risk appetite and risk
principles;

Advising the Board on other risk-related issues including
corporate actions and proposed strategic transactions such as

mergers, acquisitions and disposals;

Overseeing risk management framework and reviewing its
effectiveness;

Approving the Group's risk policies and risk tolerance;

Considering emerging risks relating to the Group’s business and

strategies;

Reviewing risk reports and breaches of risk tolerances and
policies;

Reviewing the Group's capital adequacy and solvency levels; and

Monitoring stress testing results of the Group’s key risk
exposures.

During the Year and up to the publication of this annual report, the

Risk Committee had performed the following works:

Reviewed enterprise risk management ("ERM") reports;

Reviewed a risk analysis report for a new business segment of

the Group;

Reviewed the Group's risk management policies; and

After due deliberation, recommended the appropriate outcomes
of the above reviews for the Board's approval.

The Risk Committee held a total of four meetings during the Year

and up to the publication of this annual report. The attendance of

individual Directors at meetings of the Board and its committees is set

out in the table on page 42.
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RERW|E

Nomination Policy

The Board has delegated its responsibilities and authority for selection
and appointment of the Directors to the Nomination Committee of the
Company. Without prejudice to the authority and duties of the Nomination
Committee as set out in its ToRs, the ultimate responsibility for selection
and appointment of the Directors rests with the entire Board.

The Nomination Committee will evaluate, select and recommend
candidate(s) for directorships to the Board by giving due consideration
to the selection criteria which include, but are not limited to, diversity
of the Board, commitment for responsibilities, qualifications on both
accomplishment and experience, independence of INEDs, reputation for
integrity, potential contributions to the Board, and any plan(s) in place for
the orderly succession of the Board.

The Nomination Committee will recommend to the Board for the selection,
appointment and reappointment of a Director, including an INED in
accordance with the following procedure and process:

A.  The Nomination Committee:

may take measures that is appropriate in identifying or selecting
suitable candidates, with due consideration given to prescribed
selection criteria and broad range of candidates who are in and
outside of the Board's circle of contacts;

ii.  may adopt any process it considers appropriate in evaluating
the suitability of the candidates, such as interviews, background
checks, presentations and third-party reference check;

ii. — will provide the relevant information of the selected candidate
to the Remuneration Committee for consideration of the
remuneration package; and thereafter make recommendation to
the Board;

iv.  The Board may arrange for the selected candidate to be
interviewed by the members of the Board who are not members
of the Nomination Committee and the Board will thereafter
deliberate and decide the appointment as the case may be; and

v.  All appointment of Directors will be confirmed by the filing
of the consent to act as Director of the relevant Director (or
any other similar filings requiring the relevant Director to
acknowledge or accept the appointment as Director, as the case
may be) with the relevant regulatory authorities, if required.
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The Nomination Committee will recommend to the Board for the re-
election of a Director including an INED in accordance with the following
procedure and process:

The Nomination Committee will review the overall contribution and
service, and the level of participation and performance of the retiring
Director during the period of service.

ii. ~ The Nomination Committee will review and determine whether the
retiring Director continues to meet the criteria as set out above.

ii. ~ The Nomination Committee will provide the relevant information
of the selected candidate to the Remuneration Committee for
consideration of the remuneration package of such candidates.

iv.. The Nomination Committee will then, on the basis of the
recommendation made by the Nomination Committee and
Remuneration Committee, make recommendation to Shareholders
in respect of the proposed re-election of Director at the following
general meeting.

Where the Board proposes a resolution to elect or re-elect a candidate
as Director at the following general meeting, the relevant information
of the candidate will be disclosed in the circular to Shareholders and/or
explanatory statement accompanying the notice of the relevant following
general meeting in accordance with the Listing Rules and/or applicable
laws and regulations.

Board Diversity Policy

The Company has a Board Diversity Policy whereby it recognises and
embraces the benefits of having a diverse Board, which enhances the
quality of its performance by achieving a sustainable and balanced
growth towards the attainment of its strategic objectives. It endeavors
to ensure that the Board has a balance of skills, experience and diversity
of perspectives appropriate to the requirements of the Company’s
business. The design of the Board’s composition shall consider a range of
diversity perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service.

All Board appointments will continue to be made on a merit basis with due
regard for the benefits of diversity of the Board members, as well as the
measurable objectives.

The Nomination Committee will continue to review the Board Diversity
Policy from time to time to endure its continued effectiveness.
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RAFELRRAFHRIERY  EFEh %
BEEEMK - TRE— */FEEJ 2R i 1 3% B AR

During the Year and as at the date of publication of this annual report, the
Board comprises six Directors. The following tables further illustrate the

ANNUAL REPORT 2020

diversity of the Board members as of the date of publication of this annual EEERNENZITLIE
report:
Educational Professional
Name of Directors Age Ethnicity Background Experience
EEpE FiR Bk BERER HXELR
Dato’ Arifin (Vice-chairman) 57 Malay Science and/ Construction/
(Malaysian) or Others Property
2B Afin(F/F/E) S7H% MRS MR BE/FHE
(AR aE#E) S CEAD
Dato’ Michael Teh (Chief Executive Officer) 37 Chinese Law Construction/
(Malaysian) Property
SBEBRN (7TEEEH) 375% HEH ERE OBE/RE
(A E#E)
Mr. Ching (Chief Financial Officer) (Appointed on 16 July 2020) 47 Chinese Accountancy Auditing
(Malaysian) and Finance
R (BEHIEE) (52020567 A 16 HERE) 475% HEE =E A
(AR TEAE)
Ir. Azham Malik (Resigned on 16 July 2020) 54 Malay Engineering Construction/
(Malaysian) Property
Ir. Azham Malik(742020%F7 A 16 A BHT) 545% R TR 2% /RiE
(BRI TE#E)
Tan Sri Barry Goh (Chairman) (Resigned on 7 October 2020) 56 Chinese Engineering Construction/
(Malaysian) Property
FHT R REAE (F/E) (7R20206F 1087 HBHE) S65% =R TR @EE/RiE
(BRI TAE)
Tan Sri Kong 70 Chinese Science and/ Public Service
(Malaysian) or Others
M RIIEE 708% EE 2R, NERS
(AR aE %) S CE At
Mr. Kua (Appointed on 3 July 2020) 56 Chinese Accountancy Chartered
(Malaysian) Accountant
RIS 4 (7202057 A3 A BEE ) 565% 5 g5t FrRTEETEm
(AR aE#E)
Datuk Kamalul Arifin (Appointed on 7 October 2020) 60 Malay Estate Real Estate/
(Malaysian) Management/ Chartered
Real Estate Surveyor
E B Kamalul Arifin (7420204 10 A7 B EZ(T) 607% R BEER, BiE,
(A E#E) B E TR RD
Mr. Ng (Resigned on 3 July 2020) 47 Chinese  Accountancy and Auditing and
(Hong Kong Science and/ Finance
Resident) or Others
RS (20207 A3 B EHE) 4758 =i SR RRIE Fit k2R
(BEER) R,/ S E A
Ms. Chan (Resigned on 7 October 2020) 54 Chinese Law Law
(Malaysian)
PR 22+ (722020510 A7 HBHE) 545% =5 ER ER
(AT aE#E)
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8. Dividend Policy

The Company has a dividend policy (‘Dividend Policy”) that sets out the

principles and guidelines that the Company intends to apply in relation to

the declaration, payment or distribution of its consolidated net profits as
dividends to the Shareholders.

8.1.1.Principles and Guidelines

The Company may declare and distribute dividends to the
Shareholders, provided that the Company has a distributable
reserve and records a consolidated profit after tax and that the
declaration and distribution of dividends does not affect the
normal operations of the Group. The recommendation of the
payment of any dividend is subject to the absolute discretion of
the Board and any declaration of final dividend will be subject to
the approval of the Shareholders.

Itis the policy of the Board, in considering the payment of
dividends, to allow Shareholders to participate in the Company’s
profits whilst preserving the Company'’s liquidity to capture
future growth opportunities. In proposing any dividend payout,
the Board shall also take into account, among other things,
financial results and conditions, cash flow situation, business
conditions, strategies and cycle, operations and earnings,
general economic and political conditions, capital requirements
and expenditure plans, interests of Shareholders, any restrictions
on the payment of dividends, and any other factors that the
Board may consider relevant.

Any payment of the dividend by the Company is also subject
to any restrictions under all applicable laws (including the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands), the rules, codes and
regulations, accounting policies/financial reporting standards
that the Group has adopted as well as the Articles of Association.

If the Board intends to declare or recommend any dividend
payment for a particular financial year, such dividend payout
ratio will not be less than 30% of the Group’s audited
consolidated net profit for distribution to the Shareholders/
equity owners of the Company for the financial year, subject to
the criteria set out in the Dividend Policy.

The Dividend Policy will be reviewed from time to time and
there is no assurance that a dividend will be proposed or
declared in any specific periods.
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9. Corporate Governance Functions 9. {EEERMEE

The Board recognizes that the Directors should be collectively responsible EFCARAEEREERAAELEERESE -

for the corporate governance duties. Such duties include but are not limited FHEBERFEETRY

to:
Developing and reviewing the Company'’s policies and practices on FIE MR AR EE AR NER
corporate governance and making recommendations to the Board; NaEEgRNES

ii.  Reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous professional i e REREENSREEENEIINE
development (“CPD") of the Directors and senior management; EEERR([BESERE])

ii.  Reviewing and monitoring the Company’s policies and practices on il. BRI RERAARETEAEREERTEN
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements; BER M ER

iv.  Developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct and iv.  HIE - EHMEEERE ﬁﬁﬁMEE&i%E’]TT
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and the Directors; ASTRINAEFMnE)
and

v.  Reviewing the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and v. BEARRRESTEEESRTAMBRRE
disclosure in this report. TREFRHEEER o

During the Year and up to the publication of this annual report, the

Board has reviewed and performed the abovesaid corporate governance

functions.

10. Audit and Accountability

10.1. Independent Auditor’s Remuneration

54  ANNUAL REPORT 2020

ZHCPA has been engaged as the Group's independent auditor for the
Year and prior to the appointment of ZHCPA, Deloitte PLT was the
former auditor of the Group.

The Board confirms that Deloitte PLT has not commenced any audit
work for the Year and thus Deloitte PLT did not receive any fee for the
Year. The remuneration paid/payable to ZHCPA for reviewing the Year
is set out below:

RAFEREEAFRTIZEAS  EFEEF
%I%ﬂ?‘fiﬂﬁ% E./l:l H&Hu °

10. Bt REMFE
10.1. B X BN BN £

RAEE @ REREERSAEEBIZ
2D o PIEZZR LR © Deloitte PLTA
R 5= B RO A EAZ 2RAD

BEEEHER ' Deloitte PLTRAFEE I K E
FEMZEET TIE © FE it Deloitte PLTAZRF
EWERKBERER - EAFEEZIE
B EN P EZENTME I T

Fee paid/payable

Services to ZHCPA

R B ERRA
(HKD)
(387)

Statutory audit services and review of annual result announcements for the Year 800,000

FEEEZRE N ERAFENFREEERNS

Review of continuing connected transactions 30,000

BERSERERSD

Total 830,000

st
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10.2. Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Statements

It is the responsibility of the Board to present a balanced, clear and
comprehensible assessment of the annual and interim reports,
inside information announcements and other financial disclosures
required under the Listing Rules, and reports to regulators as well as
information required to be disclosed pursuant to applicable statutory
requirements, such that they give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Group. The Board also confirms that the Company has
an effective process for financial reporting and compliance with the
Listing Rules.

Material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern are disclosed in Note 2 to the consolidated financial
statements.

In addition, ZHCPA has stated in the independent auditor’s report its
reporting responsibilities on the Company's consolidated financial
statements for the Year.

11. Appointment and Re-election of Directors

Each of the EDs has entered into a service agreement with the Company
for a term of one year while each of the INEDs has entered into a letter
of appointment with the Company for a term of one year. Any Director
appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office until the first
general meeting of the Company after his/her appointment and be subject
to re-election at such meeting and any Director appointed by the Board
as an addition to the existing Board shall hold office only until the next
following AGM and shall then be eligible for re-election.

All the Directors, including INEDs, are subject to retirement by rotation and
eligible for re-election in accordance with the Articles of Association. At
each AGM, one-third of the Directors for the time being (or, if their number
is not a multiple of three, the number nearest to but not less than one-
third) shall retire from office by rotation provided that every Director shall
be subject to retirement at the AGM at least once every three years. A
retiring Director shall be eligible for re-election and shall continue to act as
a Director throughout the meeting at which he/she retires. The Directors to
retire by rotation shall include (so far as necessary to ascertain the number
of Directors to retire by rotation) any Director who wishes to retire and
does not offer himself/herself for re-election. Any further Directors so to
retire shall be those who have been the longest in office since their last re-
election or appointment and so that as between the persons who became
or were last re-elected Directors on the same day, those to retire shall (unless
they otherwise agree among themselves) be determined by lot.
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12. Remuneration of Directors and Senior Management 12, £ % 5 H &1 [E 1 & B

Particulars of the Directors’ remuneration for the Year are set out in Note 14 EFNAFENFNEBENEETEREM
to the consolidated financial statements. 144

Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, the remuneration of the RIECEEATRERISKNTRIKRY &4
members of the senior management (other than the Directors) by band is EIBE (EHBBIN) HENE T -

set out below:

Number of
Remuneration band (in HKS) Individuals
FrfAa Bl (BT) AE
Nil to 1,000,000 3

Z£%1,000,000

13. Model Code for Securities Transactions 13. EITRFXZNWEESFA
The Company has adopted a model code (“Securities Code”) for securities RAFIERNEZRAEREBERARTIANREHEE
transactions by the Directors and the employees likely to possess inside HEE([BEEER)ETESR S RIZESTH
information of the Company ("Relevant Employees”) on terms no ([F#HF=FRI)) - HEHITER EmARHER0
less exacting than the required standard as set out in the Model Code M) LT AESETBE SR HMIRLEST
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as contained in AIFFEk R A SPR2E ([ <RAL ) -

Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (“Model Code”).

Following a specific enquiry made by the Company on each of them, all KARNBIVEL BB EE %ﬁ%i%ﬂﬁ@w
Directors confirmed that they had complied with the Model Code and the REFEANDETRETARESTH - XA
Securities Code during the Year. No incident of non-compliance with the WEBEREENEMEETE ?Eé%#ﬁ‘]ﬁﬁ?
Securities Code by the Directors and the Relevant Employees was noted by o
the Company.

14. Company Secretary 14. REIME
The Company Secretary was Sir Kwok Siu Man KR (“Sir Seaman Kwok”). NAMERIKXRANFLBHE((HBHE]) -
Sir Seaman Kwok was nominated by Boardroom Corporate Services (HK) ;ﬁﬁj]iﬁ’fEEl EECERK(EE)ARAR(HE
Limited (‘Boardroom”) to assume such position and Boardroom has been FEE DIRBETEZEL - EREEEEBAAR
providing certain corporate secretarial services to the Company pursuant to HEEEITVHNERRG AR AFRMEE T
an engagement letter entered into between the Company and Boardroom. FEMERT ©
Sir Seaman Kwok resigned as the Company Secretary with effect from 8 BB F 20208 A HBEFE R AIFUE o Rk
August 2020. Mr. Chen Kun was appointed as the company secretary with FEB2020F 8 ASHBEZEARTIWE - &
effect from 8 August 2020. For details, please refer to the announcement BB R AN A A2020F8 A7TH ZAE

dated 7 August 2020.
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15. Constitutional Documents

There was no change in the constitutional documents of the Company

during the Year. A copy of the latest version of the Company’'s

Memorandum and Articles of Association is available on the respective

websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

16. Shareholders’ Rights

16.1.

16.2.

Procedures for Shareholders to Convene an EGM

Any one or more Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than 10% of the paid-up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company
("Eligible Shareholder(s)") shall at all times have the right to require
an EGM to be called by the Board or the Company Secretary for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition, including
making proposals or moving a resolution at the EGM by written
requisition ("Requisition”).

The Company will verify the Requisition; if found to be proper and in
order, the Company Secretary will ask the Board to convene an EGM
and/or include the proposal(s) made or the resolutions proposed by
the Requisitionist(s) at the EGM within two months after the deposit
of the Requisition.

If within 21 days of the deposit of the Requisition the Board fails to
proceed to convene such meeting, the Requisitionist(s) himself/herself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the Requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of
the Board shall be reimbursed to the Requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Procedures for Shareholders to Send Enquiries to the
Board

Shareholders may send their enquiries and concerns to the Board
by addressing them by post to the principle place of business of the
Company in Hong Kong (presently at Unit 2413A, 24/F, Lippo Centre,
Tower One, 89 Queensway, Admiralty, Hong Kong) or by email to
info@bgmec.asia for the attention of the Company Secretary.

Shareholders may also make enquiries to the Board at the annual
general meeting ("AGM") of the Company.
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EELA®RE

16.3. Procedures for Putting Forward Proposals at Shareholders’
Meetings

There is no provision allowing Shareholders to make proposals or
move resolutions at the AGMs under the Articles of Association or the
laws of the Cayman Islands. Shareholders who wish to make proposals
or move a resolution may, however, convene an extraordinary general
meeting (‘EGM") in accordance with the “Procedures for Shareholders
to convene an EGM” set out below.

17. Investor Relations

18
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The Company has been striving to maintain high transparency and
communicate with the Shareholders and the investors of the Company
through diversified communication channels. The website of the Company
contains the latest data and information of the Group so that the
Shareholders, the investors and the public can view/get the information
about the Company in a timely manner. The Company’s website address is
www.bgmc.asia.

Internal Control and Risk Management

The Board is responsible for the Company’s internal control system and
risk management. The system is designed to manage rather than eliminate
the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or
loss.

During the Year, the Company has implemented a framework with defined
levels of responsibility in the Company’s risk management system. On the
strategic level, the Board, via its Risk Committee, determined the strategic
and departmental objectives of the Group’s business, and set the risk
appetite for the Group ("Risk Appetite”). Based on these objectives, the
Group's risk management working group (‘RMWG”), which consists of the
Chief Executive Officer as the chairman and the senior management as well
as the manager of internal control and risk management division of the
Group ("ICRM Division"), determined the associated financial, operation,
reporting and compliance risks, possible root causes, and existing
mitigations. With due consideration of such existing mitigations, the RMWG
then assessed the risks by giving them ratings and compares them to the
Risk Appetite. Any risks that were rated higher than the threshold in the
Risk Appetite were further assessed to determine additional mitigation plan
to further reduce the risks until they fall within the acceptable level of Risk
Appetite. The entire process and its outcome were documented and will be
reviewed by the Risk Committee at least twice every year.

BGMC International Limited

163. ERRAG LRERBNER

RIBEESERARNBRSHEEN - BE
BEXAFFRRRBRRBFAS LIRE
HBEE - A - ARRERZXBZNRK
RATRIR TSP R A FBCR BT B
SRR | BRRRENRS ([RREH
K& -

17. REEBIEZ

18

RAARBHRBEERE - EARTRMBAE
CERRRARANIREEER - NARIKA
BEHEAKESFNEN KA  #HRE - &
BERABATENMER BEAARINE
K o R BIHAUE Bwww.bgmcasia ©

BRI K% LB B

%%ﬁ‘mﬁﬁ/&ﬂﬂ’ﬁﬂﬁﬁ? HIRGRERERER

c R E B EMIPHRAREERER B IR
E’\Jﬂfﬂfﬂ BEAREARERAKERELE
IEMIEBEERE ©

ﬁ/—
=N

FA - ARBERARFRERE EE/\,
—EAEAEBESRNER - XNKREBETHE -
Exg5BA ﬁ?i;\?ﬁmﬂi‘%@%i‘xﬁﬁ“ B
KEBFIB R - I 5] E AN R B A R R A2 BE 1
(TERBEZED]) - REZFEEF - ARER

eEETHENME(RRERIANMDBETHR

RE(EEXR) SARERBRASENAL

b 2 L e 3 AP P ([ o B 22 46 e L B B 2R D
PR - WEEREIMY - &8 - WS
K& HEg ‘*%EM?I&IEE AP RATE -
BANZRIZEREF &S BREET
TR/ NBAE T B4 TRE D &E‘ﬂiﬂ 7¥<i‘§%ﬁf’ﬁ

H B MR G R o AR D SRR AR AL
7‘JF'EM§*E’JJ—LIZ A — P RHE - AETERRINT

BErE - E—FRERE EZEEARR
7¥<i‘ﬁﬁﬁﬁ’l—l§‘§‘\7}<$ﬁt BEEBERER
#BHERREEegFETRDMANIERE MR
5 e



The Company has engaged an external consultant to establish an internal
control audit function during the Year. The external consultant worked
closely with the ICRM Division and has assisted the Audit Committee in
carrying out an independent review on the adequacy and effectiveness of
the risk management and internal control system of the Group.

During the Year, the external consultant has carried out internal control
audits in accordance with the audit plan approved by the Audit Committee,
which covered all functions of the Group. The reports, findings, and their
corresponding management’s response were presented quarterly to the
Audit Committee meetings for its review and approval. In addition, the
Audit Committee and the Risk Committee also review the Groups' internal
control and risk management policy at least once a year.

As such, the Board confirms that during the Year and up to the date of
this annual report, the Board, through the Audit Committee and the Risk
Committee, has conducted a review of the effectiveness of the internal
control systems and risk management of the Group and considers them
adequate and effective.
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Directors’ Report

EEEWRE

The directors of the Company (‘Directors”) are pleased to present the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries ("Group”)
for the year ended 30 September 2020 (“Year” or “FY2020" and “Consolidated
Financial Statements’, respectively).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal activities of the
Company's subsidiaries during the Year are set out in Note 44 to the consolidated
financial statements.

GROUP REORGANISATION AND GLOBAL OFFERING

The Company was incorporated on 18 November 2016 (“Incorporation Date") as
an exempted company with limited liability under the Companies Law, Cap. 22
(Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) in the Cayman Islands. To rationalize
the corporate structure of the Group in preparation for the listing of the shares
of the Company (“Shares”) in issue on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange” and “Main Board’, respectively), the
companies now comprising the Group underwent the corporate reorganisation
("Reorganisation”), pursuant to which the Company became the holding
company of the Group on 6 December 2016. For details of the Reorganisation,
please refer to the sub-section “Reorganisation” in the section headed “History,
Development and Reorganisation” in the prospectus of the Company dated 31
July 2017 ("Prospectus”).

The issued Shares have been listed on the Main Board since 9 August 2017
("Listing Date” and “Listing”, respectively).

BUSINESS REVIEW

The discussion and analysis of the Group’s business during the Year, future
business development and the risks and uncertainties facing the Group are set
out below and in the “Chairman’s Statement” and the “Management Discussion
and Analysis” ("MD&A”") sections of this annual report.

The Group's financial risk management objectives and policies are set out in
Note 6 to the consolidated financial statements. The MD&A section also provides
a detailed analysis of the Group's financial performance during the Year using
financial key performance indicators.

Details regarding the Group's compliance with the relevant laws and regulations

that have a significant impact on the Group, are set out on page 63 of this annual
report.
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RISK MANAGEMENT

Under the Group's risk management and internal control framework, the risk
committee of the Company (‘Risk Committee”) determined the strategic and
departmental objectives of the Group's business, and set the risk appetite for
the Group (as stated in the sub-section “Risk Management and Internal Control”
in the Corporate Governance Report of this annual report). Based on these
objectives, the Risk Committee assesses its likely impacts and evaluates the risks
in order to develop effective internal control activities for mitigation of the risks.

Principal Risks

The Group's financial risk management objectives and policies are set out in
Note 6 to the consolidated financial statements. The principal risk factors that the
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Group is exposed to and the key mitigation strategies are summarised below: BEEA an T -
Principal risks Mitigation Strategy
TERMB R R

Unfavourable economic environment and occurrence
of global pandemic

TRWEBERRER2RARITHHRE

Due to sluggish market condition and global pandemic
outbreak, the Group's business and operation has been affected
and is experiencing intense competition in securing future
projects.

TR 55 R 2R IEATTTHVRE - KEE A E
BREEGZEZE  EFKA KRR 7 HEREAR

Diversify client base.

BRZITCNEFES -

Renew business model to adapt to current economic situations.
AEEEERX - BEERKELY -

Emphasis on concession business to generate stable concurrent
income.

BEBERSIIKEEER - FBUHERIBERA -
Explore the stimulus package by local government and find project
which suit our capability.

BRA BT BRI E R e ERFae TR IER -

Selective in tender that meet the Company’s size and technical

objectives.
BRPUEN & AR AR KA B IRRHEIRIER -

Insufficient credit facilities and unstable finance

FEEETRERUBIRE

Due to global economic slowdown in construction/property
industries and insufficient/ineffective financing facilities, the
Group has been affected by collection issue and difficulty in
replenishing order book as clients delay new property launches.
HR BB EME - NETREBERERBEFEZTE
RN - RNEEZEAEEZE - AR E P EE
FrEfE  frm B T2 87 EESNE o

To ensure sustainability and continuity of business by monitoring
order book.

BB TIZA] EMERES RO R FHE N SUB B I -

Engaging with more bankers regularly to widen the financing options.

HE ZIRITERES - WEIDRERETE -

Building cash reserves by getting financing facilities ready.

BEERRERE  BRASHE -

To establish short-term, mid-term and long-term financial planning
against economic slowdown.

HEEEREBR S EREY - IR RS -
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EEERE

Principal risks

TERR

Mitigation Strategy
AR AR SR B

Inability to adhere to work program
BEERIERR resources.
Due to the implementation of Movement Control Order
(“MCO’) issued by the government to curb the Covid-19
pandemic and cashflow constraint, the Group has been allocation.
affected by reputational implication by delay in completing
the construction project and financial implication by imposing
liquidated ascertained damages (‘LAD”) by client.

HI BT #3728 #1201 978 i Z i R IG B i BT T8 &
#([TTHEHT ) RZE T ERE - K EERFE
BETTHEEIRE MBERE  WAEFRTGELEE
2 ([BRBEE )L EZE -

lockdown..

Implement and introduce innovative work method that requires less

SIARERERFERERDHRIF TIETE -

Ensure proper site possession, pre-planning of material and fund

ERAEEA T - RAARVMHARES DR

Close monitor and prompt update to relevant parties that it does not

adhere to the master plan.
BB R A BEARRB BRI NS S HERE T -

Negotiate with vendors for alternative payment plan and arrangement

of subcontractors’ workforce
MHEMRERNRTEEI R B ES T EEETIER

Establish a plan and standard operating procedure (“SOP”) to ensure
continuity of site operations in the event of occurrence pandemic

HIER B IR EEER T ((REEXRRERF ) - BRERBEHEE
THaiDBesrs BBl -

Strictly comply to relevant regulatory and authorities’ requirements.

BRR B TR E ARE R B R EFIMARE

PARTICULARS OF IMPORTANT EVENTS AFTER THE
REPORTING PERIOD

Subsequent to the Year, the Company made an announcement that BGMC
Corporation Sdn Bhd ("BGMC Corporation”), being an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into the share purchase agreement with a
purchaser (“Purchaser”), pursuant to which BGMC Corporation will sell the entire
issued share capital of KAS Engineering Sdn Bhd, which is an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company to the Purchaser. For further details, please
refer to the Company’s circular dated 11 December 2020.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The board of Directors (“Board”) has overall responsibility for the Group’s
environmental, social and governance ("ESG") strategy and reporting. The Board is
responsible for the Group's ESG risk management and internal control systems to
ensure that the ESG strategies and reporting requirements are met.

The details of ESG are set out in the Environmental, Social and Governance Report
on pages 22 to 38 of this annual report.
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COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group has adopted risk management and internal control policies to monitor
the on-going compliance with relevant laws and regulations.

During the Year, as far as the Board is concerned, the Group has complied in
material aspects with the relevant laws and regulations that have significant
impacts on its business and operations.

However, up to the date of publication of this annual report, the Company was
not able to timely comply with the financial reporting provisions under the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”) in (i)
announcing the interim results for FY2020; and (ii) publishing the interim report
for FY2020. Such delay has constituted non-compliance with Rules 13.49(6) and
13.48(1) of the Listing Rules.

KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES, CUSTOMERS
AND SUPPLIERS

The Group maintains a good relationship with its employees and certain policies
have been implemented to ensure that its employees are provided competitive
remuneration, good welfare benefits and continuous professional training.
The Group also maintains good relationships with its customers and suppliers,
without whom success in the Group's production and operation would be at risk.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

(@) On 28 March 2019, the Company received a writ of summons together
with an indorsement of claim dated 19 March 2019 in the High Court of
Shah Alam, Malaysia by 47 plaintiffs ("Plaintiffs”) against Kingsley Hills
Sdn Bhd as the first defendant and BGMC Corporation, an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, as the second defendant. Please refer to
the Company’s announcement of 28 March 2019 for further details of the
litigation.

BGMC Corporation had filed an interlocutory application to strike out the
Plaintiffs’ case as well as a counterclaim against the Plaintiffs’ claiming for
alleged additional liquidated ascertained damaged ("LAD") absorbed in
good faith and spirit of the full and final settlement agreement. The striking
out application was first heard on 9 January 2020 and went for a continued
hearing on 5 February 2020. Thereafter, the learned High Court Judge has
set another date for further submission and hearing on 12 May 2020. The
High Court has allowed BGMC Corporation’s application and struck out the
Plaintiffs” writ and statement of claim. 13 Plaintiffs have appealed against
the High Court’s decision to the Court of Appeal. The Court of Appeal has
not fixed a date to hear the appeal as at this annual report.

Based on legal advice, the Directors are of the opinion that it is probable
that BGMC Corporation has a meritable and arguable case to defeat the 13
Plaintiffs’ appeal.
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In the ordinary course of business, Built-Master Engineering Sdn Bhd
("BME"), an indirect subsidiary of the Company, had awarded a sub-contract
for electrical work to a third party in 2018. The said sub-contract was
subsequently terminated by BME due to breach of certain terms and
conditions of the sub-contract on the part of the third party. The third party
initiated a legal action against BME claiming, amongst others, the balance
payment of RM733,000 and interest at 5% per annum from the date of the
Writ, i.e. 21 March 2018 until the date of the full and final settlement on the
basis that the termination was wrongful. BME has entered their defence
denying the claim and thereafter filed a counterclaim against the said third
party. On 22 July 2020, the High Court of Malaysia granted judgment against
BME and dismissed BME's counterclaim. On 6 August 2020, BME has lodged
appeal against the said judgment and the appeal is scheduled for hearing
on 17 September 2021. BME had decided against a conditional stay order
dated 12 October 2020 (which expired on 12 November 2020) wherein the
Court proposed that the judgment sum be placed in an interest bearing
account pending the disposal of the appeal.

The Directors are of the opinion that it is probable that BME has a chance to
overturn the High Court judgment at the Court of Appeal and be successful
in the counterclaim with the quantum to be fixed by the Court.

As disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 30 June 2020, a
subsidiary of the Company, in the ordinary course of business, had disputes
with Customer A.

On 22 May 2020, Customer A served notices of termination of the
construction engagement, alleging that the Group had delayed in
completing the works under two contracts arising out of the same project.
Customer A had sought to forfeit the Group’s two performance bonds in
the amount of approximately RM25.8 million.

On 27 May 2020, the Group has filed for an application for an injunction in
the Court and has obtained an ad-interim injunction order dated 29 May
2020 against the forfeiture of the two performance bonds by Customer
A, pending the disposal of the said application by the Court which is now
fixed for hearing on 25 January 2021.

The Group has also initiated arbitrations on 30 June 2020 to dispute the
validity of the terminations by Customer A and claim against Customer A
for (i) losses of profit of approximately RM35 million (i) return of retention
sum of approximately RM4.4 million and (iii) return of the sums under the
two performance bonds amounting to approximately RM25.8 million.

On 17 August 2020, Customer A issued a counterclaim of approximately
RM126 million in the arbitration proceeding against the Group.

As at the date of publication of this annual report, no hearing has been

fixed and the final arbitration judgment on the dispute between the Group
and Customer A is expected to be granted not earlier than 2022.
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The Directors are of the opinion that the Group has a good arguable case to
convince the arbitrator to rule the facts in favour of the Group.

On 20 November 2020, BGMC Corporation, being a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company and a member of the Group, received a demand
letter from a licensed bank in Malaysia (the “Bank”), in which the Bank
alleged that it had received a demand against a bank guarantee from a
beneficiary (the “Beneficiary”) being a customer of BGMC Corporation,
in the sum of approximately RM5.5 million, and unless the Beneficiary
withdraws its demand or the Bank is restrained from performing its
obligations, the Bank would effect payment of the sum demanded to the
Beneficiary on 24 November 2020.

Based on the demand letter from the Beneficiary to the Bank, the
said demand was related to a performance bond provided by BGMC
Corporation to the Beneficiary for a development project, for which the
Beneficiary alleged that BGMC Corporation has not duly performed its
contractual obligation.

On 23 November 2020, through its solicitors, BGMC Corporation filed an
application (the “Application”) to the Kuala Lumpur High Court against
the Beneficiary, which restrains it from receiving the sum demanded by the
Beneficiary. On 24 November 2020, the Kuala Lumpur High Court granted
an interim injunction in favour of BGMC Corporation, which restrained
the Beneficiary, their respective agents, employees and/or officers from
effecting the claims of the performance bond or receiving the payment
or part payment under the performance bond from the Bank until the
disposal of the originating summons filed by BGMC Corporation against the
Beneficiary, and it was further ordered that an inter-parte hearing for the
Application would be held on 29 January 2021.

For details, please refer to the Company’s announcement dated 24
November 2020.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the Year are set

out in Note 38 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The audited consolidated results of the Group for the Year are set out in the

consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on

page 91 of this annual report and in the accompanying Notes to the consolidated

financial statements.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy (‘Dividend Policy”), pursuant to
which the Company may declare and distribute dividends to the shareholders of
the Company (“Shareholders”), provided that the Group records a profit after
tax and that the declaration and distribution of dividends does not affect the
normal operations of the Group. Details of the Dividend Policy are set out in the
section headed "Dividend Policy” in the Corporate Governance Report.

RESERVES

Details of movements of the Group's reserves during the Year are set out in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 96 of this annual report.

As at 30 September 2020, the Company had reserves amounting to
approximately RM69.4 million (2019: RM104.5 million) available for distribution
as calculated based on the Company'’s share premium and accumulated losses
under applicable laws in the Cayman Islands.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

During the Year, the Group acquired property, plant and equipment totaling
approximately RM0.1 million (2019: RM2.3 million). Details of the above
acquisition(s) and other movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the Year are set out in Note 18 to the consolidated financial
statements.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this annual report are as
follows:

Executive Directors (“EDs"):

Dato’ Mohd Arifin Bin Mohd Arif (“Dato’ Arifin") (vice-chairman)
Dato’ Teh Kok Lee (“Dato’ Michael Teh") (chief executive officer)
Ching Hong Seng (“Mr. Ching") (executive director) (appointed on 16 July 2020)

Ir. Azham Malik Bin Mohd Hashim ("lIr. Azham Malik") (executive director) (resigned
on 16 July 2020)
Tan Sri Dato’ Sri Goh Ming Choon (“Tan Sri Barry Goh") (chairman) (resigned on
7 October 2020)

Independent non-executive Directors (“INEDs”):

Tan Sri Dato’ Seri Kong Cho Ha (“Tan Sri Kong")

Kua Choh Leang (“Mr. Kua”) (@appointed on 3 July 2020)

Dato’ Kamalul Arifin Bin Othman (“Datuk Kamalul Arifin") (appointed on
7 October 2020)

Ng Yuk Yeung (“Mr. Ng") (resigned on 3 July 2020)

Chan May May (“Ms. Chan") (resigned on 7 October 2020)
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Pursuant to article 112 of the articles of association of the Company (“Articles of
Association”), the Board shall have power from time to time and at any time to
appoint any person as a Director either to fill a casual vacancy or as an additional
Director but so that the number of Directors so appointed shall not exceed the
maximum number determined from time to time by the Shareholders in general
meeting. Any Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold
office only until the first general meeting of the Company after his appointment
and be subject to re-election at such meeting. Any Director appointed by the
Board as an addition to the existing Board shall hold office only until the next
following annual general meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible
for re-election. Any Director appointed under this article shall not be taken into
account in determining the Directors or the number of Directors who are to retire
by rotation at an annual general meeting.

Article 108(a) of the Articles of Association provides that notwithstanding any
other provisions in these articles, at each AGM one-third of the Directors for
the time being, or, if their number is not three or a multiple of three, then the
number nearest to but not less than one-third shall retire from office by rotation
provided that every Director (including those appointed for a specific term) shall
be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

Accordingly, Dato’ Michael Teh, Mr. Ching, Mr. Kua and Datuk Kamalul Arifin will
retire from office by rotation at the forthcoming AGM and, being eligible, will
offer themselves for re-election.

In accordance with the requirements of Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules,
each of Mr. Ng, Ir. Azham Malik, Tan Sri Barry Goh and Ms. Chan has confirmed
respectively that he/she has no disagreement with the Board and there is no
matter that needs to be brought to the attention to the Shareholders.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of the Directors and the senior management of the
Company are set out in the “Directors and Senior Management” section of this

annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS AND LETTERS OF
APPOINTMENT

Each of the Directors has entered into a service contract or an appointment letter
("Directors’ Service Contract’) with the Company for an initial fixed term of
one year. None of the Directors who offered himself/herself for re-election at the
forthcoming AGM had a Directors’ Service Contract with the Company or any of
its subsidiaries, which is not determinable within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.
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DIRECTORS'/CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’
INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Saved as disclosed in the sections headed “Group Reorganisation and Global
Offering” and the “Connected Transactions” in this report, no transaction,
arrangement or contract of significance in relation to the Group’s business to
which the Company or any of its subsidiaries or associates was a party and in
which any Director or controlling shareholder (as defined in the Listing Rules)
of the Company or an entity connected with him/her had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at any time during the Year.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

No equity-linked agreements that (i) will or may result in the Company issuing
Shares; or (ii) require the Company to enter into any agreement that will or may
result in the Company issuing Shares were entered into by the Company during
the Year or subsisted at the end of the Year.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to the written resolutions of the Shareholders passed on 3 July 2017, the
Company adopted a share option scheme conditional upon the Listing (“Share
Option Scheme’). The Share Option Scheme became effective on the Listing
Date. No share option under the Share Option Scheme ("Option”) has been
granted since the adoption of the Share Option Scheme and therefore, there was
no outstanding Option as at 30 September 2020 and no Option was exercised or
cancelled or lapsed during the Year.

The principal terms of the Share Option Scheme are set out as follows:
(@) Purpose

The Share Option Scheme is a share incentive scheme prepared in
accordance with Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules and is established as
incentives or rewards for the contributions or potential contributions that
the Eligible Participants (as defined in paragraph (b) below) had or may
have made to the Group.

The Share Option Scheme will provide the Eligible Participants with an
opportunity to have a personal stake in the Company with the view to
achieving the following objectives:

() motivate the Eligible Participants to optimise their performance
efficiency for the benefit of the Group; and

(i) attract and retain or otherwise maintain an on-going business
relationship with the Eligible Participants whose contributions are or
will be beneficial to the long-term growth of the Group.
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(b)

()

(d)

Who may join

The Board may, at its discretion, offer to grant an Option to the following
persons (collectively “Eligible Participants”) to subscribe for such number
of new Shares as the Board may determine at an exercise price determined
in accordance with paragraph (f) below:

(i) any full-time or part-time employees, executives or officers of the
Company or any of its subsidiaries;

(i) any Directors (including INEDs) or directors of any of the Company’s
subsidiaries; and

(i) any advisers, consultants, agents, suppliers, customers, distributors
and such other persons, who in the sole opinion of the Board
will contribute or have contributed to the Company or any of its
subsidiaries.

Acceptance of an offer of options

An Option shall be deemed to have been granted and accepted by the
grantee and to have taken effect when the duplicate offer document
constituting acceptances of the Options duly signed by the grantee,
together with a remittance in favour of the Company of RM1.0 by way
of consideration for the grant thereof, is received by the Company on or
before the relevant acceptance date.

Maximum number of Shares

The maximum number of Shares in respect of which Options may be
granted under the Share Option Scheme and under any other share option
schemes of the Company must not in aggregate exceed 10.0% of the total
number of Shares in issue immediately following completion of the Listing,
being 180,000,000 Shares. As at the offer date of any proposed grant of
Options, the maximum number of Shares in respect of which Options may
be granted is such number of Shares less the aggregate of the following
Shares as at that offer date:

(i) the number of Shares which would be issued on the exercise in full
of the Options or options under any other scheme but not cancelled,
lapsed or exercised;

(i) the number of Shares which have been issued and allotted pursuant
to the exercise of any Options or options under any other scheme;
and

(ii)  the number of cancelled Shares.
The total number of Shares available for issue under the Share Option

Scheme is 180,000,000 Shares, representing 10.0% of the issued Shares as at
the date of this annual report.

(b)

(c)

(d)
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(e) Maximum number of underlying Shares comprised in Options (e) E{Ef—BEERBHEERZHBRENIE

to any one Eligible Participant

The maximum number of Shares issued and which may fall to be issued
upon exercise of the Options and any other share option schemes of the
Company (including both exercised and outstanding options) to each
Eligible Participant (subject to the following paragraph) in any 12-month
period up to the date of grant shall not, when aggregated with:

() any Shares issued upon exercise of Options or options under the other
schemes which have been granted to that Eligible Participant;

(i) any Shares which would be issued upon the exercise of outstanding
Options or options under the other schemes granted to that Eligible
Participant; and

(i) any cancelled Shares which were the subject of Options or options
under the other schemes which had been granted to and accepted
by that Eligible Participant, exceed 1% of the Shares in issue as at the
date of grant.

Options cannot be granted to a substantial shareholder (as defined in the
Listing Rules) of the Company or any INED or their respective associates (as
defined in the Listing Rules) resulting in the number of Shares issued and to
be issued upon exercise of Options granted and to be granted (including
options exercised, cancelled and outstanding) to such person in the
12-month period up to and including the date of such grant:

(i) representing in aggregate over 0.1% or such other percentage as may
be from time to time provided under the Listing Rules of the Shares in
issue on the date of grant; and

(i having an aggregate value in excess of HKS5 million or such other
sum as may be from time to time provided under the Listing Rules,
based on the official closing price of the Shares at the date of each
grant.

Unless provided otherwise in the Listing Rules, the date of the Board
meeting at which the Board proposes to grant the Options to such Eligible
Participant shall be taken as the date of grant for the purpose of calculating
the subscription price of the Shares.
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(f)

(9)

(h)

Subscription price of Shares

Subject to any adjustments on certain circumstances, the subscription
price of a Share in respect of any particular Option granted under the Share
Option Scheme shall be such price as the Board in its absolute discretion
shall determine, save that such price must be at least the highest of:

(i) the official closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange's
daily quotation sheets on the date of grant, which must be a day
on which the Stock Exchange is open for the business of dealing in
securities;

(i) the average of the official closing prices of the Shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange's daily quotation sheets for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and

(i) the nominal value of a Share.

Time of exercise of Option and duration of the Share Option
Scheme

An Option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the Share
Option Scheme at any time after the date upon which the Option is
deemed to be granted and accepted and prior to the expiry of 10 years
from that date. Subject to termination, the Share Option Scheme shall be
valid and effective for the scheme period after which no further Options
shall be offered but the provisions of the Share Option Scheme shall in all
other respects remain in full force and effect to the extent necessary to give
effect to the exercise of any Options granted prior thereto or otherwise as
may be required in accordance with the provisions of the Share Option
Scheme and Options granted prior thereto but not yet exercised shall
continue to be valid and exercisable in accordance with the Share Option
Scheme.

Minimum period for which an Option must be held before it
can be exercised

There is no minimum period for which an Option granted must be held
before it can be exercised except otherwise imposed by the Board.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLAN

As required by the Employees Provident Fund Act 1991 of Malaysia, the Group

makes contributions to the federal statutory body, Employees Provident Fund

(“EFP"), which manages the compulsory savings plan and retirement planning for

employees in Malaysia. Both the employer and employee are required to make

contributions into the employee’s individual account in the EPF at a specified

percentage of the employee’s monthly income. During FY2020, the Group is

in compliance with this requirement. For details, please refer to Note 4 to the

consolidated financial statements.

(f)

(9)

(h)
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF DIRECTORS
AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 30 September 2020, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and the chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance, Chapter 571 of the laws of
Hong Kong ("SFO")), which were required to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions which he/she was taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO), or as recorded in the register of the Company
required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO, or which were required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix 10 to
the Listing Rules ("‘Model Code”) were as follows:

Interests in the Shares

Name of Directors Capacity/Nature of interest

EERERITHRAERA QAR EAGMH
EE 2R HERG REER T 2
mRAR

2020569 A30H * FEZRARAEBITHAER
RAT S HEA A EE(ERRBBENENE
BERBEGN([HBERBE®G ) FEXVED) KA
7« ARG RERER  BERBZHFRBAERK
Bl EEXVER 7 K87 BP/B MG AR 7) K B X i 25
R#e (BRBEES LB RINZERTHEE
IRABEBNEREAE)  AIRBEFFEHAEKR
B EE 3521 B R ARZ R It AR A B & Fe M A A Mo
B HBRE EHRAMSIORESR LR ITAESE
TRFRSHREFAN(ZEESTE ) BHNEARAF]
MRS AR AT -

igrigi

Approximate
Interests in
Sharesoe

percentage of
shareholding

EEpnA B RERME R RERR ) BRRERE D e
Dato’ Michael Tehete 1 Interest of a controlled corporation and 1,208,250,000 (L) 67.1%
interests held jointly with another person

SRR FI (i) ZEREE R R EEM AT HRARE
HHE =
Dato’ Arifintvete2 Interest of a controlled corporation 141,750,000 (L) 7.9%

S8 Arifine2 SIS

“L" denotes long position
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Notes:

(1) On 15 December 2016, Tan Sri Barry Goh and Dato’ Michael Teh entered into a concert party
confirmatory deed (“Concert Party Confirmatory Deed’) to acknowledge and confirm,
among other things, that they had been parties acting in concert with each other with respect
to their interests in or the business of the relevant members of the Group since they became
shareholders of BGMC Holdings Berhad, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
and would continue to act in concert after the signing of the Concert Party Confirmatory
Deed. For further details, please refer to the paragraph headed "History, Development and
Reorganisation — Concert Party Confirmatory Deed” in the Prospectus.

As at 30 September 2020, the 1,208,250,000 Shares interested by them in aggregate consisted of

(i) 864,000,000 Shares beneficially owned by Prosper International Business Limited ("Prosper
International’) which in turn is beneficially wholly-owned by Tan Sri Barry Goh; and (ii)
344,250,000 Shares beneficially owned by Seeva International Limited ("Seeva International’)
which in turn is beneficially wholly-owned by Dato’ Michael Teh. Each of Tan Sri Barry Goh and
Dato’ Michael Teh is deemed to be interested in all the Shares held or deemed to be held by them
in aggregate by virtue of the SFO.

On 7 October 2020, Tan Sri Barry Goh subsequently ceased to be an executive Director.
2) The entire issued share capital of Kingdom Base Holdings Limited ("Kingdom Base”) is owned

by Dato’ Arifin, and therefore, Dato’ Arifin is deemed to be interested in all the 141,750,000 Shares
held by Kingdom Base under provisions of SFO.

(3)  These percentages are calculated on the basis of 1,800,000,000 Shares in issue as at 30
September 2020.

Interest in the Shares of Associated Corporations
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(1) R2016FI12H15H - AHATERHER 2 EEEFFT 7 —
HITEIN 1+ HERE S ([ —HAITEIA L RERBRIR | ) LR
KRR (B BT 1] H L ABGMC Holdings Berhad (7%
RE]—RE2ENE R F)RFAE - AT A EEER

BN AR B HITEMA L - AREF —
HITEIN TR S BE—HTTE) - FZ:F 8BS
BERERNFEL  FRAEBMH— — KT L HERR
1B)—E -

F20206E9 F30H - 1§ EH A 1,208250,000 % % 17 47 1
o BIE)AFLEEEZER LA ([1FEEEES )
B 7 HE B B9 864,000000 8 R 17+ T 1 £ B IR B 2 Al B
P E R E 7 2 EMHA + K(i)H Seeva International
Limited (| Seeva International |) & 75 # 5 #7344,250,000/1%
R 17+ if1Seeva International Bl 1 £ B BV 5] 7| & 7 £ &
B o RIFZFZRHEIEY - SFHERBFER 2 EEZEF
BWHRARBEMIFH AR BRESAIFE ARG
BRI #w o

R2020%F 10778 - AT ERIFEBEEFHEBITES -

(2)  Kingdom Base Holdings Limited(/ Kingdom Base )#) = &5 =
FITRA B S EAIn R + Bl IRIEZ 5 RAEIED] -
2B Arifin 878 751 Kingdom Base B2 &567141,750,00088
RIGFHEE R

(B)  EZEBESETIER20209F9830H.2 1,800,0000005% £
TR 751 E -

RAEREE IR AR

Name of associated Capacity/Nature of Interests in Percentage of
Name of Directors corporations interest ordinary shares shareholding
EEnA HEEE AR B0 EntE IR R 2 BORRBE S
Tan Sri Barry Gohete) Prosper International Beneficial owner 100 100%
FHiT B RER I i) YRR EmBEAA
Dato’ Michael Teh Seeva International Beneficial owner 1 100%

EEHEF

Seeva International

Note: Tan SriBarry Goh subsequently ceased to be an executive Director on 7 October 2020.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 September 2020, none of the Directors or the
chief executive of the Company had any interests or short positions in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO), which were required: (a)
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7
and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which he/she
was taken or deemed to have taken under such provisions of the SFO); or (b)
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be recorded in the register referred to
therein; or (c) pursuant to the Model Code, to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange.

Fist : FHETE R BIERE R 20209F 1057 H BT HTTEE -

B ESCFTIREEE SN © FA20209F9 A308 © BHEAR A
EXYBRETHABRBEQIRER S KRG
EXVEPE T R8H B (B ERIE B F KA E 15H B Bk
NEWEESIRARENESZ AR NEANT R
B2 FT ¢ sk (D) ARIEE 5 M AR E D55 35 2165 8 AZ
IRFTE M A  ORBRETFAMGEAE R
B R FTR AR R Bl sk AR A (T & R
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at 30 September 2020, so far as is known to the Directors, the following
corporations or persons (other than a Director or the Chief Executive had
interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying Shares, which would fall
to be disclosed under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or
which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
section 336 of the SFO:

FERRRAQXTARG REERD 2
BmRIKRE

BARNBERRA - R202089H308 » FHIRAFE
AT (BEERESTBABRIN BRI AR N
FHEBIRIEF S R E GG BEXVEBE 2R3N EHEX
BYRBEOEZITAR  RDLHBREARFEFENR
HEIENEB6IKATE 2 MR - FBWT ¢

Number of Percentage of
Name of Shareholders Capacity/Nature of interest Shares held shareholding¢?
REREH B RnitE R R BRERE L@
Prosper International®ete?) Beneficial owner and interests held 1,208,250,000 (L) 67.1%
jointly with another person
TG BpR ) BB ARES -2 ATHERBENER
Seeva International ete Beneficial owner and interests held 1,208,250,000 (L) 67.1%
jointly with another person
Seeva International ##7) BB ARBES -2 ATHERENER
Kingdom Base Beneficial owner 141,750,000 (L) 7.9%
Kingdom Base E=mAA
“L” denotes long position FEJXTRE
Notes: et -
(1) On 15 December 2016, Tan Sri Barry Goh and Dato’ Michael Teh entered into the Concert Party (1) F20165F 12 15H » AHHTE R 7 2 2 B BB 757 7 —

Confirmatory Deed to acknowledge and confirm, among other things, that they had been
parties acting in concert with each other with respect to their interests in or the business of the
Company and the relevant members of the Group since they became shareholders of BGMC
Holdings Berhad and would continue to act in concert after the signing of the Concert Party
Confirmatory Deed. For further details of the Concert Party Confirmatory Deed, please refer to
“Concert Party Confirmatory Deed” sub-section in the section headed “History, Development and
Reorganisation” in the Prospectus.

As at 30 September 2020, the 1,208,250,000 Shares interested by them in aggregate consisted of
(i) 864,000,000 Shares beneficially owned by Prosper International which in turn is beneficially
and wholly owned by Tan Sri Barry Goh, and (i) 344,250,000 Shares beneficially owned by Seeva
International which in turn is beneficially and wholly owned by Dato’ Michael Teh. Each of
Prosper International and Seeva International is deemed to be interested in all the Shares held or
deemed to be held by Tan Sri Barry Goh and Dato’ Michael Teh in aggregate by virtue of the SFO.

(2)  These percentages are calculated on the basis of 1,800,000,000 Shares in issue as at 30
September 2020.
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Save as disclosed above, so far as the Directors or the Chief Executive are aware
of, as at 30 September 2020, no corporation or person (not being a Director or the
Chief Executive) had any interests or short position in the Shares or underlying
Shares, which would be required to be disclosed to the Company under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which was recorded in
the register required to be kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO.

ARRANGEMENT FOR DIRECTORS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the Year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party
to any arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisitions of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED SECURITIES

During FY2020 and thereafter up to the date of this annual report, the Company
did not redeem any of its listed securities nor did the Company or any of its
subsidiaries purchase or sell such securities.

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its own code of conduct
governing securities transactions by the Directors. Following a specific enquiry
made by the Company with each of them, all Directors confirmed that they had
complied with the required dealing standards set out in the Model Code during
the Year.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE COMPLIANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance in order to achieve sustainable development and enhance corporate
performance especially in the areas of internal control, fair disclosure and
accountability to all Shareholders.

The Company has adopted the code provisions as set out in the Corporate
Governance Code set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules (“CG Code”) as its
own code of corporate governance. During FY2020 and up to the date of this
annual report, the Company has complied with the applicable code provisions of
the CG Code.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, the Directors shall be indemnified and
secured harmless out of the assets of the Company from and against all actions,
costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses, which they or any of them shall
or may incur or sustain by reason of any act alone, concurred in or omitted in or
about the execution of their duty in relation thereto.

The Company has arranged Directors’ and officers’ liability insurance for all
Directors and senior management of the Company, who subject to the applicable
laws, will be indemnified against the costs, charges, losses, expenses and liabilities
for legal action incurred by such a Director or officer in the execution of his/her
duties or otherwise in relation thereto.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

Save for the Directors’ Service Contract or contracts of service that any members
of the Group has entered into with the Directors or any person engaged in
the full-time employment of the Company, no contract by which a person
undertakes the management and administration of the whole or any substantial
part of the Group's business was entered into or subsisted during the Year.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE OF INEDs

The Company has received from each of the INEDs an annual confirmation in
writing of his/her independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and is
not aware of any unfavourably reported incident. Therefore, it considers all the
INEDs to be independent for the Year and thereafter up to the date of this annual
report.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The remuneration committee of the Company ("Remuneration Committee”)
determines the remuneration and other benefits of the EDs (including the
Chief Executive who is an ex-officio member of the Board), and considers and
recommends to the Board the policy and structure for the remuneration paid
by the Company to the Directors (including the non-executive Directors). The
remuneration of all Directors is subject to monitoring by the Remuneration
Committee to ensure that the levels of their remuneration and compensation
are appropriate. Details of the Directors’ remuneration and the five highest
paid individuals in the Group during the Year are set out in Note 14 to the
consolidated financial statements.

BGMC International Limited
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

Save as disclosed below, none of the Directors is interested in any business apart
from the businesses operated by the Group which competed or was likely to
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the Group’s business during the Year
and up to the date of this annual report.

DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

A deed of non-competition dated 3 July 2017 has been entered into by Tan
Sri Barry Goh, Prosper International, Dato’ Michael Teh and Seeva International
(collectively “Controlling Shareholders”) in favour of the Company (“‘Deed
of Non-competition”). Pursuant to the Deed of Non-competition, each of the
Controlling Shareholders has undertaken, jointly and severally, to the Company
that he/it would not, and would procure his/its close associates (as defined in
the Listing Rules) and/or companies controlled by the respective Controlling
Shareholders not to, directly or indirectly, either on his/its own account or in
conjunction with or on behalf of any person, firm or company, among other
things, carry on, participate or be interested or engaged in or acquire or hold (in
each case whether as a shareholder, partner, agent or otherwise) any business
or activity which is or may be in competition with the business of the Group.
Details of the Deed of Non-competition are set out in the sub-section headed
“Non-Competition Undertakings” in the section headed “Relationship with our
Controlling Shareholders” of the Prospectus.

Despite the fact that Tan Sri Barry Goh had acquired his interests with effect from
the end of June 2019 in B&G Capital Resources Berhad ("B&G Capital”’) and its
subsidiaries (collectively “B&G Capital Group”), the Board was satisfied that the
business undertaken by B&G Capital Group was not in a competition with the
Company or its subsidiaries, taking into account the differences in various aspects,
including products and services, external revenue source, customers, suppliers,
management as well as strategy, growth and expansion plan. The following table
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sets forth a brief comparison between the business of the Group and that of the  Capital S B 275~ I ELL & - BUAHBEME 2

B&G Capital Group, which illustrates the business delineation between them: BESES S
Areas in business
operation The Group B&G Capital Group
K 4 2 ) AEE B&G Capital £ =
Products/Services . Principally engaged in the provision of Principally engaged in property development
Bk RE construction services in Malaysia in Malaysia

T B H RS E R LR

TEREHFRAT FHEME

External revenue source . Principally from the provision of various
IR UL 2R HRR construction services
T ER BRI EBEERT

Principally from sales of self-developed
property projects, while external revenue
derived from construction activities
TERBHEBTRENYERE - Mo
L ONEIPNS)iSE 97T

Customers . Principally property developers in Malaysia,
Ly S i.e. Sime Darby Group, MRCB Group, SP Setia
Group, Tenaga Nasional Berhad, Pelaburan
Hartanah and B&G Capital Group
FERERADFERER - BIARIE
£E - MRCBEHE - SPSetia®e[E - Tenaga
Nasional Berhad * Pelaburan Hartanah }2B&G
Capital &£ &

Principally property purchasers and investors
who are normally individuals and companies,
schools and/or end users
I2OMEBERNREE  —RAEAM
NAE) - BRERSEmA R

Suppliers . Principally suppliers of construction materials,
HpER machineries providers and sub-contractors
which engage in specific construction works
in Malaysia

T2RBEMRMLER - MEMREMRE -
MR ERAGRERFTEETIEN D BE

Principally architects, engineers, construction
service companies similar to the Group and
sub-contractors which engage in specific
construction works in Malaysia
TERBOREBERZEM - TR0 - 12
ERB AR LEFRKADREREREET
BEHDEH

Management . No overlapping of senior management with
EEE B&G Capital Group with the exception of Tan
Sri Barry Goh being the former Chairman and
Executive Director of the Group

BRAHTE RAERSAEBAEEERRNIT
BN 2T E E HBRG Capital £ B I

No overlapping of senior management with
the Group with the exception of Tan Sri
Barry Goh being the Chairman and Executive
Director of B&G Capital Group
BT 2 R AR ABRG Capital R B £ EH
HITERI - SREIEEHIBRG Capital &

FEET  BRNBERAESRATHEE
RISET - USKIBRBITHNEE

Strategy, growth and . Continue to focus, grow and expand its Continue to focus, grow and expand its
expansion plan construction services business in Malaysia and property development in Malaysia without
KEg - ERRERTE to seek opportunities to expand into overseas any current plan for overseas expansion
markets FHBREE - BRAET S R HER

% B AN EAEAESMERAT S
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The Company has received an annual declaration in writing from each of the
Controlling Shareholders confirming that he/it had complied with the non-
competition undertakings provided to the Company under the Deed of Non-
competition. The INEDs have reviewed the status of compliance with and
enforcement of the Deed of Non-competition and confirmed that all the
undertakings thereunder have been complied with since the date of the
execution of the same and up to 30 September 2020.

RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related parties transactions are set out in the Note 43 to the
consolidated financial statements. None of the related party transactions as
disclosed constituted discloseable non-exempted connected transaction or non-
exempted continuing connected transaction under the Listing Rules and the
Company had complied with the relevant requirements of Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules during the Year.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the Year, the Group had the following continuing connected transactions:

A. Non-exempt continuing connected transactions subject to
reporting, announcement and independent Shareholders’
approval requirements

(a) Construction services to B&G Capital Group

The Group provided various construction services to B&G Capital
and its subsidiaries for their construction projects in Malaysia. Such
subsidiaries included B&G Superb Property Sdn Bhd, D’ Pristine Medini
Sdn Bhd and Kingsley Hill Sdn Bhd.

During the Year, the Company provided such construction services
to the B&G Capital Group, which included but were not limited
to carrying out the construction works in accordance with the
given specifications and building plans as well as supply of labour,
materials, machineries and tools for the construction works ("B&G
Construction Services’).

As at the date of this annual report, B&G Capital was owned as to (i)
22.6% by Tan Sri Barry Goh; and (i) 77.4% by Syapurna Sdn Bhd which
was owned as to 100% by Tan Sri Barry Goh. Accordingly, B&G Capital
was an associate of Tan Sri Barry Goh and thus a connected person of
the Company under Rule 14A.07(4) of the Listing Rules.
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(a) [EB&G Capital E B2 2 RIS

NEE RBBRG Capital&ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ%%
EEEEI’J@“IE Bt ZIHEER -

% B B A 7] 8 8 B&G Superb Property Sdn
Bhd * D' Pristine Medini Sdn Bhd X Kingsley
Hill Sdn Bhd °

RAREE - AR A ARG Capital £ E IR #t
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On 3 July 2017, the Company entered into a master construction
agreement (“Master B&G Construction Agreement”) with
B&G Capital, pursuant to which the Company would provide the
B&G Construction Services to the B&G Capital Group for a term
commencing on the Listing Date and up to 30 September 2019. The
Master B&G Construction Agreement had expired on 30 September
2019.

In view of the delay of an on-going construction project which
is scheduled to be completed in the financial year ending 30
September 2020 and to continue to regulate the provision of the B&G
Construction Services by the Group to B&G Capital, the Company and
B&G Capital had on 10 September 2019 entered into a conditional
master construction agreement (‘New Master B&G Construction
Agreement”), pursuant to which the Company will provide the B&G
Construction Services to B&G Capital for a term of one year from 1
October 2019 to 30 September 2020.

The entering into of the New Master B&G Construction Agreement
was passed by the independent Shareholders on 18 November 2019.

Transaction amounts

During the following financial years, the Group derived the following
revenue from the provision of the B&G Construction Services to the
B&G Capital Group:

20177 H3H - FAPIEEBRG Capital 5] 32
iz ((BRGEEEME ) - RIS
[FB&G Capital SR EIR HBRGIEELARTS + HAFR
B ETAHEZE2019F97308 ° BRGER
EHH DR 2019F9 A30HER ©

ERNIEERELZ 202099 8308 IEBBUF
ERTHEITHELIBEES  BRESE
#E 7K 5 B [ BRG Capital IRt BRG i £ AR
7%+ ZARA TN BG Capital 2201959 A 10
HEI A iR m stz ([ FTBGHEE S
WiEl) o Bt - AAFEE2019F 1081
B A 202049 A30H [ABG Capitalig it A&
Hi—F HIBRGIZEEPRTS ©

R2019%11 8188 » B IR HALAEFT L HT
BRGAREEA R o

RS &
RUA T BFE - A% BEBLG Capital
IR BRGR AR MBS K10 T -

Transaction amounts

REEH
Financial Financial Financial Financial
year ended year ended year ended year ended
30 September 30 September 30 September 30 September
2017 2018 2019 2020
BZ20175F BZ2018F BZ2019F BZ2020F
9H30H Lt 9H30A Lt 9A30R Lt 9H30A Lt
BERFE BERFE HRFE HERFE
RM million RM million RM million RM million
BEMES BENSS BENESE BHEMNEH
The B&G Construction Services 268.8 2499 785 6.6

BRGIEEARTS
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Annual caps and basis of determination

The following sets forth the annual caps under the Master B&G
Construction Agreement and the proposed annual cap under the
New Master B&G Construction Agreement:
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Annual Caps
FEER

Financial Financial Financial Financial
year ended year ended year ended year ending
30 September 30 September 30 September 30 September
2017 2018 2019 2020
BZ20175% BZ20185F BZ2019%F BZ2020F
9H30H Lt 9H30H Lt 9H30H Lt 9H30RH Lt
MREE MREE MREE MEE
RM miillion RM million RM million RM million
BEMES BENSES BHENSS BEMES
The B&G Construction Services 270.0 370.0 180.0 70.0

BRGIEEEARTE

In determining the above annual cap, the Company has considered,
among other factors, (i) the historical transaction amounts for the
provision of B&G Construction Services by the Group to B&G Capital;
(i) the expected demand for the B&G Construction Services in the
year ending 30 September 2021 in view of the business development
of the Group; (iii) the estimated contract value and any payment
arrangement of on-going project of the Group; and (iv) the estimated
increase in the average market rates charged for similar services due
to inflation and anticipated increase in cost.

Given that each of the applicable percentage ratios, set out in Rule
14.07 of the Listing Rules, applied for determining the classification
of a transaction under the Listing Rules (“Applicable Percentage
Ratios”), in respect of the B&G Construction Services under the
Master B&G Construction Agreement was/was expected to be more
than 5% on an annual basis and the total annual consideration was/
was expected to be more than HK$10,000,000, the transactions
contemplated under the Master B&G Construction Agreement are
subject to the reporting, announcement, annual review, circular and
independent Shareholders’ approval requirements under the Listing
Rules.

As the highest of Applicable Percentage Ratio in respect of the
proposed annual cap for the transactions contemplated under
the New Master B&G Construction Agreement exceeds 5%,
the New Master B&G Construction Agreement is subject to the
reporting, announcement and independent Shareholders’ approval
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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Sub-contracting to EXA Power

The Group sub-contracted part of its electrical works to EXA Power
Sdn Bhd ("EXA Power”") in relation to its construction projects in
Malaysia. During the Year, the Group sub-contracted electrical works
to EXA Power, which included but were not limited to the supply of
material, equipment, labour and tools for the complete installation of
the electrical services in accordance with the relevant drawings and
specifications ("Electrical Works").

As at the date of this annual report, EXA Power was owned as to
(i) approximately 43.0% by Mr. Wong Zheng Kai (“Mr. Wong"), a
brother-in-law of Dato’ Michael Teh, a Controlling Shareholder;
(i) approximately 6.0% by Ms. Lee Chiew Yen (“Ms. Lee"), a sister-
in-law of Dato’ Michael Teh and (iii) approximately 51.0% by an
independent third party. Due to the close relationship of Mr. Wong
and Ms. Lee with Dato’ Michael Teh, EXA Power was deemed as a
connected person of the Company under Rule 14A.21 of the Listing
Rules.

On 3 July 2017, the Company entered into a master sub-contracting
agreement (“Master EXA Agreement”) with EXA Power, pursuant
to which the Company would sub-contract the Electrical Works to
EXA Power for a term commencing on the Listing Date and up to 30
September 2019.

In view of the on-going and new constructions projects on hand and
to continue to regulate the provision of Electrical Works by EXA Power
to the Group, the Company and EXA Power had on 10 September
2019 entered into a New Master EXA Agreement (‘New Master EXA
Agreement’) to renew the Master EXA Agreement, pursuant to
which EXA Power will provide the Electrical Works to the Company for
a term of two years from 1 October 2019 to 30 September 2021.

The entering into of the New Master EXA Agreement was passed by
the independent Shareholders on 18 November 2019.

BGMC International Limited
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Transaction amounts

During the following financial years, the Group incurred the following
amounts of purchases for the Electrical Works provided by EXA Power:
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RUATHEREE + NREBFLEXA Powerfe i
BHIRAFEEYENSTEINT

Transaction amounts

RBLH
Financial Financial Financial Financial
year ended year ended year ended year ended
30 September 30 September 30 September 30 September
2017 2018 2019 2020
BZ2017F B Z2018F B Z2019%F HZ2020F
9A30H 1 9A30H 1t 9A30H 1t 9A30H1E
MHFEE MHEE MEREFE MRFEE
RM million RM million RM million RM million
BEMEE BEMEE BEMNEE BEMER
The Electrical Works 8.1 1.6 28 6.7
BHTRE
Annual caps and basis of determination FELIREETEE

The following sets forth the annual caps under the Master EXA
Agreement and the proposed annual cap under the New Master EXA

AT EFIEXA L B8R T e 2 R R
EXARE IR TR RZFE LR ¢

agreement:
Annual caps
FEER
Financial Financial Financial Financial
year ended year ended year ended year ending
30 September 30 September 30 September 30 September
2018 2019 2020 2021
BZ20185F BZ2019%F BZ20205F BZ2021%F
9H30H Lt 9H30H Lt 9H30H Lt 9H30R Lt
MREE MREE MBEE MEFEE
RM miillion RM million RM million RM million
BEMEE BEMNEE BEMNEE BEMEE
The Electrical Works 55 3.0 214 25
BHIRE

In determining the above annual caps, the Company has considered,
among other factors, (i) the historical transaction amounts for the
purchase of Electrical Works provided by EXA Power; (i) the expected
demand for Electrical Works services in the upcoming years in view of
the business development of the Group; (iii) the estimated contract
value and any payment arrangement of projected new construction
projects to be entered into by the Group; and (iv) the estimated
increase in the average market rates charged for similar services due
to inflation and anticipated increase in cost.

BELMFEE LRI - AARIBEEE(H
REIE)ZSERE  ()VAEEBEREXA
PowerBE AFTIRIME N TR H L
(WEEASENEBEE - RIRFEHED
TERBHERF R (A EREGET L
BITERHETREEIE B AT A N EE R AR
& RvEET RBIR R FERTAA L
o BORG U E KR TEEAFHE -
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Given that each of the Applicable Percentage Ratios in respect of
the Electrical Works under the Master EXA Agreement was/was
expected to be more than 0.1% but less than 5% on an annual basis,
the transactions contemplated under the Master EXA Agreement
were subject to the reporting, announcement and annual review
requirements but were exempt from the circular and Shareholders’
approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

As the highest of the Applicable Percentage Ratios in respect of the
proposed annual caps for the transactions contemplated under
the New Master EXA agreement exceeds 5%, the New Master EXA
Agreement is subject to the reporting, announcement, independent
Shareholder’s approval requirement under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

Exempt continuing connected transactions
Training services by Kingsley Professional

The Group required training services from Kingsley Professional Centre
Sdn Bhd (“Kingsley Professional’) for its staff. During the Year, the Group
continued to require training services from Kingsley Professional, which
included but were not limited to the provision of team building activities or
other technical or soft skill training (“Training Services”).

As at 1 October 2017 and up to the date of this annual report, Kingsley
Professional was owned as to 100% by Kingsley Edugroup Berhad (Malaysia),
an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of Kingsley Edugroup Limited
("Kingsley") (stock code: 8105) whose shares were initially listed on GEM
of the Stock Exchange on 16 May 2018 and were withdrawn with effect
from 24 July 2020. Kingsley was owned jointly 69% by Tan Sri Barry Goh, a
Controlling Shareholder and Dato’ Danny Goh, the brother of a Controlling
Shareholder. Accordingly, Kingsley Professional was an associate of Tan
Sri Barry Goh and thus a connected person of the Company under Rule
14A.07(4) of the Listing Rules.

BGMC International Limited
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Transaction amounts

During the following financial years, the Group incurred the following
amounts of purchases for the Training Services from Kingsley Professional:
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R T BRFEE - &NEEE 4 [ Kingsley
Professionalfg B 153 IRIEM SRR T ¢

Transaction amounts

REEH
Financial Financial Financial Financial
year ended year ended year ended year ended
30 September 30 September 30 September 30 September
2017 2018 2019 2020
BZE20175F HZ20185F BZ2019%F HZ2020F
9H30H Lt 9H30H Lt 9A30H Lt 9H30H Lt
MREE MREE MREE MEE
RM RM RM RM
HER HER HER &S
The Training Services 43,999.0 31,8750 10,000.0 nil
B AR TS a

/A

The terms of the purchases for the Training Services have been arrived
at after arm’s length negotiations between the Company and Kingsley
Professional, by reference to the prevailing market terms chargeable by
other providers comparable with Kingsley Professional. For future Training
Services to be provided by Kingsley Professional, the Group will compare
the terms offered by Kingsley Professional with at least two comparable
quotations from independent third parties before entering into the relevant
transaction to ensure that the purchases for the Training Services will be
conducted on normal and commercial terms. There are no transactions
entered into between the Group and Kingsley Professional during the Year.

8 B 1 9 AR 7 1 16 SR D 8 AN A 7] B Kingsley
Professional & F T B I £ % £ Kingsley
Professional #8 %5 Y B i 4 & 8 Y ER B & A T 35

1§ FRMER - 5 B %&Kingsley Professional # #2 {
WIEIIRBME - AEEGE LAERZ S
#&Kingsley Professionali2 #t BN ERE L 56 = 757
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CONFIRMATION FROM THE DIRECTORS AND INDEPENDENT
AUDITOR

The independent auditor of the Company (“Independent Auditor”) had been
engaged to report on the Group's continuing connected transactions for the
Year. The Independent Auditor had provided an unqualified letter to the Board
containing their findings and conclusions in respect of the Group’s continuing
connected transactions for the Year disclosed above in accordance with Rule
14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the Independent Auditor’s letter had been
provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange pursuant to Rule 14A.57 of the
Listing Rules.

The Board including the INEDs had reviewed the Group’s continuing connected
transactions under the Master B&G Construction Agreement and the Master EXA
Agreement and was of the opinion that the transactions (i) were entered into
in the Group’s ordinary and usual course of business; (ii) on normal commercial
terms; and (iii) according to the said agreements governing them on terms that
are fair and reasonable, and in the interests of the Company and the Shareholders
as awhole.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

The five largest suppliers of the Group accounted for less than 6.1% of the total
purchases of the Group for the Year (2019: less than 6.6%).

The five largest customers of the Group accounted for approximately 54.46% of
the turnover of the Group for the Year (2019: less than 62.5%).

During the Year, the aggregate sales attributable to the Group’s largest customer
and the aggregate purchases attributable to the Group's largest supplier were
approximately 16.18% (2019: 15.5%) and 1.7% (2019: 1.7%) of the Group's sales
and purchases respectively.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors or any of their close associates
(as defined under the Listing Rules) or any shareholders (which to the best
knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share
capital) had any beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest customers and
suppliers.

DONATIONS

During the Year, the Group has not made any donation to charity communities
(2019: RM4,000).

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of Association
or under the laws of the Cayman Islands, being the jurisdiction in which the
Company was incorporated.
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PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information which is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained a sufficient amount
of public float of at least 25% of the issued Shares during the Year and thereafter
up to the date of this annual report as required under the Listing Rules.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the past five years is
set out in the section headed “Five-Year Financial Summary” on page 216 of this
annual report.

REVIEW BY AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the Company has reviewed the draft audited Consolidated
Financial Statements and annual report before presenting them to the Board for

consideration and approval.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief on taxation available to the Shareholders
by reason of their holdings of the Shares. If the Shareholders are unsure about
the taxation implications of purchasing, holding, disposing of, dealing in or
exercising of any rights in relation to the Shares, they are advised to consult their
professional advisers.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

The Consolidated Financial Statements have been audited by ZHONGHUI ANDA
CPA Limited ("ZHCPA") which would retire at the forthcoming AGM and being
eligible, offers itself for re-appointment. A resolution to re-appoint ZHCPA as the
Independent Auditor and to authorise the Directors to fix its remuneration will
be proposed to the Shareholders for approval at the forthcoming AGM. Prior to
the appointment of ZHCPA as the auditors of the Group on 6 October 2020, the
former auditor of the Group, being Deloitte PLT, resigned on 23 July 2020.

On behalf of the Board
Datuk Kamalul Arifin Bin Othman

Chairman and Independent Non-Executive Director

Malaysia, 31 December 2020

Directors’ Report

EFERE

DNREFR

fin

REARRAFABNENLBEESMA - K27
BRELTRANKERAFEREENFRAHS
HF RN AR E R BTROZ25% -

T FREME

AEBBREREFEZREE  BERAGHEHN
RERE26E LFMEHE | —F0 -

EREEEERN

ARABRZ GO EHEERGRAMBRELF
B WEXTEEGEANIE -

BB R

AR B A AR B A D T A S Y A
BRE o MRRTHEEBE K6 L& BEK
10 SRATE B0 A BE BV (T RE R P8 M VIR TS B e
TR BadaREERERNER -

B ZEE

eV BRREHFPEZEGAMEBABR AR
([FERE]EZ  HEREEETHRRBEFK
e HREVHEERBEREET - BRI ERITH
REBFERE LIRERFIEBIEPIELZERE L
RHMEREEESETAMSAVRERSR - REZE
R20205F 10 Ho B EZ F R AR EBZEAN 2 7] - A&
B AT B BT Deloitte PLTHA20205E7 A 23 HBHT -

REESZS
Z%Kamalul Arifin Bin Othman
TEFBTINTEE

B PEs - 202012 A31H

5§ 2020 EFERRERERATR

87



Independent Auditors’ Report
18 3 A% B A R

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF BGMC International Limited

BENEREZERERAA

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Disclaimer of Opinion

We were engaged to audit the consolidated financial statements of BGMC
International Limited and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”)
set out on pages 91 to 215, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 30 September 2020, and consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes
in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

We do not express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements of the
Group. Because of the significance of the matters described in the Basis for
Disclaimer of Opinion section of our report, we have not been able to obtain
sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion on
these consolidated financial statements. In all other respects, in our opinion, the
consolidated financial statements have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion
(@) Material uncertainty related to going concern

We draw attention to note 2 to the consolidated financial statements
which mentions that the Group incurred loss attributable to owners of
approximately RM193,543,000 for the year ended 30 September 2020
and as at 30 September 2020, the Group had net current liabilities of
approximately RM62,424,000. In addition, the Group had outstanding bank
and other borrowings amounting to approximately RM69,286,000 which
would be due for repayment within the next twelve months. The cash and
bank balances, pledged fixed deposits and restricted fixed deposits of the
Group as at 30 September 2020 amounted to approximately RM5,617,000,
RM22,768,000 and RM16,356,000 respectively. Furthermore, we are unable
to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to satisfy ourselves as to the
continuous support of the Group's bankers and the timing of completion of
disposal of KAS Engineering Sdn. Bhd. (“the Disposal’) as stipulated in note
16 to the consolidated financial statements. These conditions indicate the
existence of a material uncertainty which may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. The consolidated financial
statements have been prepared on a going concern basis, the validity
of which mainly depends upon the continuous support of the Group's
bankers and the timing of completion of the Disposal. The consolidated
financial statements do not include any adjustments that would result from
the failure to obtain the bankers’ continuous support and unsuccessful
Disposal. We consider that the material uncertainty has been adequately
disclosed in the consolidated financial statements. However, in view of the
extent of the uncertainty, we disclaim our opinion in respect of the material
uncertainty relating to the going concern basis.
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Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion (continued)

(b) Provision for legal and professional fee and disclosure of
contingent liabilities

We were unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to satisfy
ourselves as to the accuracy and completeness of provision for legal and
professional fee of approximately RM967,000 as at 30 September 2020.
There are no other satisfactory audit procedures that we could adopt to
determine whether the contingent liabilities as disclosed in note 45 is
properly disclosed in the consolidated financial statements and further
provision for legal and professional fee is required.

(c) Provision for performance bonds and impairment loss on trade
receivables and contract assets

We were unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to satisfy
ourselves as to the accuracy and completeness of the provision for two
performance bonds of approximately RM25,797,000 and provision for
impairment loss on trade receivables and contract assets of approximately
RM31,568,000 as at 30 September 2020.

(d) The effect of provision for liquidated ascertained damages
(”LAD”)

We were unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to satisfy
ourselves as to the effect of liquidated and ascertained damages (‘LAD")
of a project to the project contract sum, and project revenue for the year
ended 30 September 2020 and contract assets as at 30 September 2020.
There are no other satisfactory audit procedures that we could adopt
to determine whether the LAD is properly included in the calculation of
project contract sum and project revenue recognised in the consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 30 September 2020 and contract
assets as at 30 September 2020.

Any adjustments to the above figures might have a significant consequential
effect on the Group's consolidated financial performance for the year, the
consolidated financial position as at 30 September 2020 and the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
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Responsibilities of Directors for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with IFRSs issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or

error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible
for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our responsibility is to conduct an audit of the Group’s consolidated financial
statements in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA") and to issue
an auditor’s report. However, because of the matter described in the Basis for
Disclaimer of Opinion section of our report, we were not able to obtain sufficient
appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion on these
consolidated financial statements.

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Wan Ho Yuen

Audit Engagement Director

Practising Certificate Number P04309
Hong Kong, 31 December 2020
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

GEEBEREMEERRAR

For the year ended 30 September 2020

BZE2020F9 A30H IEFE
2020 2019
Notes RM’000 RM'000
FaE FHEH FHRER
(Restated)
(g&:5)
Continuing operations BESEER
Revenue &= 8 301,584 343,356
Cost of sales HEMRAR (378,245) (361,059)
Gross loss Ei8 (76,661) (17,703)
Income from concession agreements SR AN 8 3,043 366
Other income HABYA 9 1,901 3,123
Impairment losses of financial assets and PHMEERENEEZ
contract assets, net BIEEEF R 10 (32,662) (1,763)
Administrative and other expenses TH R HALF 13 (38,817) (53,356)
Other losses, net HAbB1EFRE 10 (50,419) (4,081)
Finance costs BhE P AN 11 (6,661) (4,089)
Loss before tax MBI AT ES 18 (200,276) (77,503)
Income tax (expense)/credit Frigsi (Fk), #H%e 12 (5,644) 4,924
Loss for the year from continuing operations ZNEEREFECLEBCEE (205,920) (72,579)
Discontinued operation BRI EK
Profit for the year from discontinued RERREERIREFEB
operation gl 16 18,813 17,303
Impairment loss on non-current BIELEZIERBEER
assets held for sale BEEBE 33 (11,150) -
7,663 17,303
Loss and total comprehensive loss fortheyear ZFEEEER 2 EEEEE 13 (198,257) (55,276)
Loss and total comprehensive loss DLDTALTELAERFEESER
for the year attributable to: 2 HEBREH
Owners of the Company ViN/NEIEZE N
Loss from continuing operations SEICE TS 1R (201,206) (70,366)
Profit from discontinued operation BRI EETE 2 m A 7,663 17,303
Loss attributable to owners of the Company RANTEA ANEILER (193,543) (53,063)
Non-controlling interests IR AE R
Loss from continuing operations RHBIRE £ 2 BB (4,714) (2,213)
Profit from discontinued operation RIS E TS 2w = -
Loss attributable to non-controlling interests FEVES M2 PR B 18 (4,714) (2,213)
(198,257) (55,276)
Loss per share BRER
From continuing and discontinued operations REAEFER DRI EET
Basic (RM sen) ERHEFS) 17(a) (10.75) (2.95)
Diluted (RM sen) BEME D) 17(a) (10.75) (2.95)
From continuing operations REFHEKEETE
Basic (RM sen) ERHETHES) 17(b) (11.18) (3.91)
Diluted (RM sen) WEME D) 17(b) (11.18) (391)
FHR2020 FEFEERZRERAA
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

SE BB R

As at 30 September 2020
7202099 H30H
2020 2019
Notes RM’000 RM'000
BaE FHEF FhER
Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment W - HE NMERE 18 235 36,057
Right-of-use assets FEREEE 19 18,894 -
Investment properties B 20 25,507 507
Goodwiill kS 21 - 2,155
Investment in associates REEZ N BIHIRE 22 - -
Investment in redeemable convertible PAR] BB B A & S R A
preference shares "E 23 1,708 6,613
Intangible assets EEE 24 3,556 12,835
Trade and other receivables, deposits and 5 RE M EUGRIE -
prepaid expenses ’E MIANRAX 25 7,686 277,358
Contract assets AHEE 30 120,052 -
Deferred tax assets REFIBE = 26 = 3,602
Share application monies AR R EESRIA 27 2,886 2,886
Derivative assets PTETHEE 28 = 2,365
180,524 344,378
Current assets REBEE
Investment in redeemable convertible 7] B 2] AT B (B S f A
preference shares "E 23 3,986 15,431
Inventories FE 29 7,720 15,440
Trade and other receivables, deposits and B NEMEWIE 124 &
prepaid expenses AR 25 80,428 139,114
Tax recoverable AT EFR IR 4,324 13,784
Contract assets BHEE 30 224,175 301,631
Fixed deposits TEBIE R 31 39,124 39,658
Cash and bank balances Re RIRTTER 32 5,617 24,275
365,374 549,333
Non-current assets held for sale BIEREZIEREEE 33 293,154 -
658,528 549,333
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e BN R TR
As at 30 September 2020
7202059 H30H
2020 2019
Notes RM’000 RM'000
M5t THEE ARIN=Eo
Current liabilities REBEE
Contract liabilities BRBE 30 5,315 7,120
Trade and other payables 5 REMERNTIE 34 389,329 257,833
Obligations under finance leases RhE FHE AE 35 - 6,394
Borrowings — secured BE - 36 69,286 301,438
Share application monies AR B EESRIA 27 54,270 37,230
Lease liabilities HEBE 37 3,385 -
Tax liabilities HIBEE = 1,005
521,585 611,020
Liabilities directly associated with HIFENE 2 IERBEE
non-current assets held for sale BEEAENEE 33 199,367 -
720,952 611,020
Net current liabilities REBEEFE (62,424) (61,687)
Total assets less current liabilities BEABERRBEE 118,100 282,691
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Obligations under finance leases RhE FH & AE 35 - 2,227
Deferred tax liabilities RIETIEEE 26 429 11,751
Derivative liabilities PETEARE 28 - 2,700
Lease liabilities HEBE 37 18,258 -
18,687 16,678
NET ASSETS EEZE 99,413 266,013
EQUITY fE=
Equity attributable to owners of the Company RAREE ANEEER
Share capital &4 38 9,862 9,862
Reserves it 39 94,810 256,696
104,672 266,558
Non-controlling interests FEFE AR A (5,259) (545)
TOTAL EQUITY REREE 99,413 266,013

Approved by the Board of Directors on 31 December 2020:

Dato’ Mohd Arifin Bin Mohd Arif
ZEMohd Arifin Bin Mohd Arif

Director

5=

DHESSM2020F12 831 B#tE

Dato’ Teh Kok Lee

2B WEF
Director

B=

£ 8§ 2020
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

GERTRER

For the year ended 30 September 2020

B ZE2020F9 30 IEFE
2020 2019
RM’'000 RM'000
FHER TSR
Cash flows from operating activities RETEREBRERE
Loss before tax from continuing operations FRECE TS 2 BRI RS 18 (200,276) (77,503)
Profit before tax from discontinued operations BRI E TS 2 R AT 13,906 24,491
Adjustments for: PR RIE
Finance costs BE KA 19,024 18,985
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME - BEMERETE 3,414 8,818
Depreciation of right-of-use assets HREEENE 6,646 -
Impairment of goodwill [GEERE 2,155 4757
Impairment of property, plant and equipment Y% BB R ERE 11,620 2,601
Impairment of right-of-use assets FREEERE 12,016 -
Amortisation of intangible assets BB ER 776 1,742
Impairment of other receivables HAth EUGRIE 2 RE - 1,500
Bad debts written off i H AR = 985
Net (gain)/loss on derivatives PTHEIT AR (W), I8R5 (335) 335
Impairment of trade receivables H 5 EWGRIE 2 RE 13,440 294
Property, plant and equipment written off Mg - B kAR = 9
Imputed interest income from trade receivables B ZREYGRIBHEF SUWA (41,681) (42,761)
Interest income from bank deposits RITIF R F B (1,564) (2,284)
Unrealised loss/(gain) on foreign exchange SIINEEE (M) 460 (735)
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment HEYE - BEMEE 2 K (763) (247)
Gain on disposal of right-of-use assets REFHAEESE WS (531) -
Impairment/(reversal of impairment) on contract assets ABHEERERE 19,222 (30)
Impairment loss on non-current assets held for sale BERE 2 IERBEERRIEEIE 11,150 -
Operating cash flows before working capital changes LEESEHIIKERLRE (131,228) (59,043)
Change in inventories FEE 7,720 3,860
Change in trade and other receivables, deposits and B S NAMBWTHIE - Bk
prepaid expenses NS 61,117 93,553
Change in contract assets ERNEER (61,818) (102,819)
Change in trade and other payables B 5 R EAMER I E) 130,692 18,783
Change in contract liabilities BHEREE (1,805) (4,604)
Cash generated from/(used in) operations KEmMB/(FTR)ES 4,678 (50,270)
Income tax paid EAFEHEIE (6,621) (9,968)
Income tax refunded RBIFFFIIE 8,433 260
Lease interests paid BERHEEF S (1,639) -
Net cash generated from/(used in) operating activities &£ & %23 F715,(FTH) R&FHE 4,851 (59,978)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
n _\éiﬁ ﬁﬁi%
For the year ended 30 September 2020

BZE20205F9 A30H IEFE
2020 2019
RM’'000 RM'000
FHER TSR
Cash flows from investing activities RETZBHEENEESRE
Interest received BFE 1,564 2,284
Purchase of intangible assets BEBELEE - (3,309)
Proceed from disposal of intangible assets HEEEEEMSHRIE 1,373 -
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEWME - BB K& (119) (2,155)
Purchase of investment property under construction HEEZKEME - (376)
Proceed from disposal of property, plantand equipment  HEW¥ « BE M REFIEE 905 711
Proceed from disposal of right-of-use assets & RS EMSIE 3,096 -
Investment in redeemable convertible preference shares  JAR] & Bl A S S IR AR E - (22,045)
Redemption of redeemable convertible preference shares & 8] A 8 B A 4244 8 52 A% 16,350 -
Advances to related parties B TEER = (2,799
Payment of share application monies SRR R EE SRR - (2,886)
Placement of restricted bank balances FINZ IR IR T 48R - (3,787)
Withdrawal of restricted bank balances IREUKE PR Bl IR TAE 4 7,467 10,258
Withdrawal/(placement) of pledged and restricted RE(TFR) B E R ZR A
fixed deposits TEHFER (17,766) (23,410)
Net cash generated from/(used in) investing activities R&EEE (FTA), B8R L FHE 12,777 (47,514)
Cash flows from financing activities REEBEENBESRE
Interest paid BFE (17,385) (18,985)
New borrowings raised FEER 113,871 212,017
Repayment of borrowings BEER (158,928) (185,429)
Repayment of obligations under finance leases R EMHEAIEER = (10,246)
Repayment of lease liabilities HEBBEER (6,453) -
(Decrease)/increase in bank overdrafts RITHEZ O A), /800 (6,273) 8409
Receipt of share application monies W E IR {7 BB 55 T 48,770 37,230
Advances from associate company AN EE 5,144 -
Repayment to related parties MBAE B - (10,000)
Contributions by non-controlling interests IR T A = 2,945
Net cash (used in)/generated from financing activities & EE (FTA) FAIBREFHE (21,254) 35,941
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents ReRRSEEBYRDFE (3,626) (71,551)
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net GNEE [ R A BN R 2R EA (460) (400)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 October RI0A1BMRE RIREEEY 16,787 88,738
Cash and cash equivalents at 30 September HRoA30AMRERESEEY 12,701 16,787
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year are ERBEERBRESEBYEEMT :
determined as follows:
Cash and bank balances e RIRITHER 12,722 24,275
Fixed deposits with licensed banks RIFHERITHE B3R 57,424 39,658
Less: Restricted bank balances W ZREIERI TR (21) (7/488)
Restricted fixed deposits BRIl 7 BATF 3K (16,356) (7.901)
Pledged fixed deposits [z e VER (41,068) (31,757)
12,701 16,787
FHR2020 FEFEERZRERAA



96  ANNUAL REPORT 2020

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

GEEREER

For the year ended 30 September 2020

B ZE20206F9 A30R IEFE
Attributable to owners of the Company
RARER AL
Redeemable
preference Non-
Share Share shares Other  Retained controlling Total
capital  premium reserve reserve  earnings Total interests equity
EfHE FER
Bx  BROEE BiREE  HtRE  REEX EH) B EREE
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
THER  THER THER  THER  THER  THER  THER  THEE
At 10ctober 2018 12018510818 9,862 135571 - 65,000 109,188 319,621 (1,277) 318,344
Loss and total comprehensive l0ss AEEBERZABE
for the year pake] - - - - (53,063) (53,063) (2.213) (55,276)
Contribution by non-controlling interests  JE3EHRRRIE T & - - - - - - 2,945 2945
At 30 September 2019 12019594308 9862 135571 - 65,000 56,125 266,558 (545) 266013
At 1 October 2019 201910418
As previously stated MAERIZ5) 9,862 135571 - 65,000 56,125 266,558 (545) 266013
Adjustrnents on adoption of RmERH R E LR
IFRS 16 (Note 3): F63EREM23) - - - - (73) 73) - 73)
At 1 October 2019 as restated 2019510418 EE7 9862 135571 - 65,000 56,052 266485 (545) 265940
Issuance of redeemable preferences BT BREER
shares (Note 27) (W) - - 31,730 - - 31,730 - 31,730
Loss and total comprehensive loss FEEEELRZAER
for the year ok - - - - (193543)  (193543) (4714 (198257)
At 30 September 2020 12020695300 9,862 135,571 31,730 65,000 (137,491) 104,672 (5,259) 99,413
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1.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

General Information

The Company is a public limited company incorporated in the Cayman
Islands and its shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited since 9 August 2017. The Company was incorporated as
an exempted company and registered in the Cayman Islands with limited
liability under the Companies Law, Cap 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated
and revised) of the Cayman Islands on 18 November 2016.

The addresses of the Company’s registered office and principal place of
business are Windward 3, Regatta Office Park, PO Box 1350, Grand Cayman
KY1-1108, Cayman Islands and A-3A-02, Block A, Level 3A, Sky Park One
City, Jalan USJ 25/1, 47650 Subang Jaya, Selangor Darul Ehsan, Malaysia,
respectively.

The Company is an investment holding company and the Group is
principally engaged in the provision of a wide range of construction
services. The principal activities and other particulars of the subsidiaries are
set out in Note 44.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in thousands of
Malaysian Ringgit (‘RM’000"), which is also the functional currency of the
Company.

Basis of Preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 30
September 2020 have been prepared in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) and the disclosure requirements of
Appendix 16 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (‘Listing Rules”) and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Going concern assumption

The Group incurred a loss attributable to owners of approximately RM193.5
million and recorded net current liabilities of approximately RM62.4 million.
The net current liabilities arose mainly from increase in trade and other
payables to finance the work progress of ongoing construction projects and
receipt of RM54.3 million as application monies for issuance of redeemable
preference shares by a subsidiary to finance the concession business.

e P BHmRMNE

For the year ended 30 September 2020
B ZE2020F9A30R L FE
—REH

KRR A—BEREREEMR LN ARER
NaE BRSO 2017F8 AoBERBHARS
FrERARIER LT - ARFIHR2016F11 718
AIREFSBERAREENE (1961 FE358%
7 IR E RER ERSHSEMK L R ER

RERPERRAT]

AR BEMEE & B S F B 5 A
Windward 3, Regatta Office Park, PO Box 1350, Grand
Cayman KY1-1108, Cayman Islands }2 A-3A-02, Block
A, Level 3A, Sky Park One City, Jalan USJ 25/1, 47650
Subang Jaya, Selangor Darul Ehsan, Malaysia °

RABR—EREEBRAR - MASEE B
SRHEEMNBZERS - MEBARMNEEXS
R BA BRI MY 5E44 o

RAEMBHRRIIABFRADHE R TR F
HER D (AR RAEEE)2T -

HEEEEE

REE 20200 B EF B AR E M HRAR D IRIRE
PREA TG ¥R 2 B ([ EIBR B S SR Y R ) Ro i =2
Prag s EmAR RN (T EW R R SR+ e i E
REARBBRRIGDIGEE -

FREEERR

AEBELREARGEERA19358BMER
WEERDHEBEFRLABENTRE - R
BEFEIZRNAERTIZEAE TIFERER
BME S MEMENIEIEN - K—FEHBER
A BRF AR S KIS RV E M 31T A B BB ST AR
25438 EM T FHERID BAFEFIA °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e EHRRME

For the year ended 30 September 2020

HZE2020F9 8308 [FFE

2. Basis of Preparation (continued)
Going concern assumption (continued)

These events or conditions indicate that a material uncertainty exists that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern

The management of the Company has commenced negotiation with
a purchaser to dispose a subsidiary for approximately RM93.8 million
("Disposal”).

As disclosed in Note 47, the Company has entered into a share purchase
agreement on 16 November 2020. On 30 December 2020, an extraordinary
general meeting ("EGM”) has been held and the Disposal has been
approved by the shareholders of the Company.

The completion of the Disposal is subject to the approval of the
Government of Malaysian through the Public Private Partnership Unit (Unit
Kerjasama Awam Swasta) of the Prime Minister's Department.

The basis for preparation of the financial statements on going concern
assumption is therefore dependent on the completion of the Disposal,
continuous financial support from its lenders, clients and creditors and the
operations of the Group to generate sufficient cash flows in the future to
fulfil its obligation as and when they fall due.

In the event that these conditions are not forthcoming, the Group may be
unable to realise its assets and discharge its liabilities in the normal course
of business. Accordingly, the consolidated financial statements may require
adjustments relating to the realisable amount and classification of recorded
assets and to provide for further liabilities that may be necessary should the
Group be unable to continue as a going concern.

The Directors of the Group are of the opinion that the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements of the Group on a going concern basis
remains appropriate as they believe the Disposal will be completed within
reasonable timeframe and the Group will obtain the continuous financial
support from the lenders and creditors which will enable the Group to
operate profitably in the foreseeable future, and accordingly, realise its assets
and discharge its liabilities in the normal course of business.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. Adoption of New and Revised International

Financial Reporting Standards

In the current year, the Group has adopted all the new and revised
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board that are relevant to its operations
and effective for its accounting year beginning on 1 October 2019. IFRSs
comprise International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS"); International
Accounting Standards (“IAS"); and Interpretations. The adoption of these
new and revised IFRSs did not result in significant changes to the Group's
accounting policies, presentation of the Group’s consolidated financial
statements and amounts reported for the current year and prior years
except as stated below.

IFRS 16 “Leases”

The Group has adopted IFRS 16 from 1 October 2019 without restating
comparative information for the 2019 reporting period, as permitted
under the specific transitional provisions in the standard. As a result, the
reclassifications and adjustments arising from the adoption of IFRS 16 are
therefore not reflected in the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 30 September 2019, but are recognised in the opening consolidated
statement of financial position as at 1 October 2019.

(a) Adjustments recognised on adoption of IFRS 16

On adoption of IFRS 16, the Group recognised lease liabilities in
relation to leases which had previously been classified as “operating
leases” under the principles of IAS 17 Leases. These liabilities were
measured at the present value of the remaining lease payments,
discounted using the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate as of 1
October 2019. The weighted average lessee’s incremental borrowing
rate applied to the lease liabilities on T October 2019 was 6.32%.

The Group has also elected not to reassess whether a contract is, or
contains a lease at the date of initial application. Instead, for contracts
entered into before the transition date the Group relied on its
assessment made applying IAS 17 and HK(IFRICO)-int 4 Determining
whether an Arrangement contains a Lease.

e B mRME
For the year ended 30 September 2020
B ZE2020F9A30R L FE

3. PRAAHTR] RS BIRR B A 3R 5 2

2l

RAFEE AEEDRABB e £REEg
AEA Y B H AR TS A AN 2019 10 A1 AR
WM ERTFEERZ TE ] RS FTBIRR B
B EER (BRI R EZER ) - BRI
s A B IR B B S s AN | BB B A RS
28] EEer &8 ([EREsHER]) kE
T2 o ERANUL SFRTAT SRASAE AT B PR B 755 S 5 4 B
TELAREENGTHE AEEMBREDN
EVNNAFARAFERBTFE2MOSELIR
EREH) - METAERRIN

BB # s X RIS 1655 FRE

NEBH2019510 A1 B RN BRI SR e
RIZE165% + 1B ANE% 2E R /9 5 e 1B 16 SR 7t
5o WL 2019F A BB EINLRER - AH
Ut - FRANBIRR B S AR S A R 165 B B T
D AE R AR ER 201959 A30 A AR & B TSR
RERARER - R 2019510 81 B EAYAR A B
SRR R ATERR o

(a) HRAMEIRMBHREEAE 1657 RN
.2

RERAN BB B 75 2R 5 2E R S 650 I - AR&
B SRR R R ERIE 1755 HE
MRBIES A CERE INHEE®RRE
E8E ZESaERHG THENZNIRE
= WIEAFE ARR2019%10 71 8 8938
EEHFIEREE - R2019F 10418
EBEEAZ IR EE AL S E A
R 56.32% ©

AEBE D RETEHNFHEAONERE
AEHREENHEEME - M@K A
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RBER G5 ERIE 175 L& B (BREM 5
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMBRRMET
For the year ended 30 September 2020
HE2020F9A30HIEFE
3. Adoption of New and Revised International 3. RHFET R ISR BB B 35 3R 5 %
Financial Reporting Standards (continued) al(4&)
IFRS 16 “Leases” (continued) BRE} ISR E 2RI 1655 FHE ()
(a) Adjustments recognised on adoption of IFRS 16 (continued) (a) FHAERRBIIEIREERF 1655 BN
B(E)
30 September Adoption of
2019 IFRS 16 1 October
As originally Recognition of 2019
presented leases Restated
R 400 ) PR B ¢
WA 20195
Consolidated statement of 201969 H30H E165% 10A1H
financial position (extract) mEMBRR R () RIRR251H BREE BET
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
THER FHER FER
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - BE NREE 36,057 (20,707) 15,350
Right-of-use assets FREEE - 40,323 40,323
Capital and Reserves ERRFEE
Reserves HiE 256,696 (73) 256,623
Non-current liabilities FRBEME
Obligations under finance leases R0ETH & AE 2,227 (2,227) -
Lease liabilities MEBE - 20,791 20,791
Current liabilities REEE
Obligations under finance leases REFH & AE 6,394 (6,394) -
Lease liabilities MEBE - 7,519 7,519
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e IR

For the year ended 30 September 2020

BZE20205F9 A30H IEFE
3. Adoption of New and Revised International 3. HRMFFTRIETERMERELE
Financial Reporting Standards (continued) al(4&)
IFRS 16 “Leases” (continued) B R B 3R 5 X RSB 165% 1R E | ()
(a) Adjustments recognised on adoption of IFRS 16 (continued) (a) RABEEREREERF165EFEANE
2(E)
RM'000
THER
Operating lease commitments disclosed as at 7201959 H30 B HR FE A4 & 70 S
30 September 2019 30,790
Discounted using the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate at FRARAREERHENIES
the date of initial application BFRFERELIR 20,567
Add: obligations under finance leases o EEREAE 8,621
Less: short-term leases recognised on a straight-line basis A RHRENESEERAERX
as expense (878)
Lease liabilities recognised as at 1 October 2019 2019F 10 A1 HiERNHEaE 28,310
Of which are: Hr
Current lease liabilities mEHERE 7,519
Non-current lease liabilities JERBEAE 20,791
28,310
The associated right-of-use assets were measured on a retrospective RS AREECIRENELESE - W
basis as if the new rules had always been applied. There were no E—HERFBRE - REXERBE - #
onerous lease contracts that would have required an adjustment to EEEAMHEANT EHTRAEEEETT
the right-of-use assets at the date of initial application. TR o
()  Practical expedients applied () BEBAMIITERRZE
In applying IFRS 16 for the first time, the Group has used the RE R ERBER Y %S LR E 1658
following practical expedients permitted by the standard: B AEECFEAZEAARFTANUT
ATTHEE A -
- the use of a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases with - HWASHMEERAMNHEEAS
reasonably similar characteristics; fERABE—RRRE
reliance on previous assessments on whether leases are — KBEMUHEEGTZEEM
onerous; i s
- the accounting for operating leases with a remaining lease —  RR2019F 10 1B THEIR12
term of less than 12 months as at 1 October 2019 as short- &l A DA R B 4% %6 10 & E 73 52 B
term leases; GE=PN
- the exclusion of initial direct costs for the measurement of — RERERBHTHEERAESR
the right-of-use asset at the date of initial application; and ERTEETHREERE &
—  the use of hindsight in determining the lease term where — WMEHNBELTRIKILEEEN
the contract contains options to extend or terminate the HER CTRERAEETCHE
lease. EHMR o

3§ 2020 BEBRERERERAR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e EHRRME

For the year ended 30 September 2020

HZE2020F9 8308 [FFE

3. PRAAHTR] RS BIRR B A 3R 5 2
] (&)

3. Adoption of New and Revised International
Financial Reporting Standards (continued)

IFRS 16 “Leases” (continued)

B RS ERE 165 HE |(F)

(b) The Group's leasing activities and how these are accounted for (b) TEBEMNHAETHREARLTE
HEEH —MIRETE BRI - 1ERTEEE

Rental contracts are typically made for fixed periods but may have BE
SRREERE - HE G ER R
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extension options. Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis
and contain a wide range of different terms and conditions. The lease
agreements do not impose any covenants, but leased assets may not
be used as security for borrowing purposes.

Until the 2019 financial year, leases of property, plant and equipment
and prepaid land lease payments were classified as either finance or
operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any
incentives received from the lessor) were charged to profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

From 1 October 2019, leases are recognised as right-of-use assets
and corresponding liabilities at the date at which the leased asset
is available for use by the Group. Each lease payment is allocated
between the liability and finance cost. The finance cost is charged
to profit or loss over the lease period so as to produce a constant
periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for
each period. The right-of-use assets are depreciated over the shorter
of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on a straight-line basis.

BGMC International Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. Adoption of New and Revised International
Financial Reporting Standards (continued)

IFRS 16 “Leases” (continued)

(b) The Group’s leasing activities and how these are accounted for
(continued)

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a
present value basis. Lease liabilities include the net present value of
the following lease payments:

- fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any
lease incentives receivable;

- variable lease payment that are based on an index or a rate;
- amounts expected to be payable by the lessee under residual
value guarantees;

- the exercise price of a purchase option if the lessee is reasonably
certain to exercise that option; and

- payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term
reflects the lessee exercising that option.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in
the lease. If that rate cannot be determined, the lessee’s incremental
borrowing rate is used, being the rate that the lessee would have to
pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value
in a similar economic environment with similar terms and conditions.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following:
- the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability;

- any lease payments made at or before the commencement date
less any lease incentives received;

- any initial direct costs; and
- restoration costs.
Payments associated with short-term leases are recognised on a
straight-line basis as an expense in profit or loss. Short-term leases are
leases with a lease term of 12 months or less.

The Group has not applied the new IFRSs that have been issued but are

not yet effective. The application of these new IFRSs will not have material
impact on the consolidated financial statements of the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e EHRRME

For the year ended 30 September 2020

HZE2020F9 8308 [FFE

4. Significant Accounting Policies

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs") issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board and the applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and by the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

IFRSs comprise International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”);
International Accounting Standards (“IAS"); and Interpretations.

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of investment
properties and investments which are carried at their fair values.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with
IFRSs requires the use of certain key assumptions and estimates. It also
requires the directors to exercise its judgements in the process of applying
the accounting policies. The areas involving critical judgements and
areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to these financial
statements, are disclosed in Note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements are set out below.

Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of
the Company and its subsidiaries made up to 30 September. Subsidiaries
are entities over which the Group has control. The Group controls an entity
when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power
over the entity. The Group has power over an entity when the Group has
existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant activities,
i.e. activities that significantly affect the entity's returns.

When assessing control, the Group considers its potential voting rights as
well as potential voting rights held by other parties, to determine whether it
has control. A potential voting right is considered only if the holder has the
practical ability to exercise that right.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Consolidation (continued)

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control is transferred
to the Group. They are deconsolidated from the date the control ceases.

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary that results in a loss
of control represents the difference between (i) the fair value of the
consideration of the sale plus the fair value of any investment retained
in that subsidiary and (ii) the Company’s share of the net assets of that
subsidiary plus any remaining goodwill relating to that subsidiary and any
related accumulated exchange fluctuation reserve.

Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised profits are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of
subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency
with the policies adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in subsidiaries not
attributable, directly or indirectly, to the Company. Non-controlling
interests are presented in the consolidated statement of financial position
and consolidated statement of changes in equity within equity. Non-
controlling interests are presented in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income as an allocation of profit or loss
and total comprehensive income for the year between the non-controlling
shareholders and owners of the Company.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
shareholders even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a
deficit balance.

Changes in the Company’s ownership interest in a subsidiary that do
not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions (i.e.
transactions with owners in their capacity as owners). The carrying amounts
of the controlling and non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the
changes in their relative interests in the subsidiary. Any difference between
the amount by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair
value of the consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity
and attributed to the owners of the Company.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e EHRRME

For the year ended 30 September 2020

HZE2020F9 8308 [FFE

4. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Business combination and goodwill

The acquisition method is used to account for the acquisition of a
subsidiary in a business combination. The cost of acquisition is measured
at the acquisition-date fair value of the assets given, equity instruments
issued, liabilities incurred and contingent consideration. Acquisition-related
costs are recognised as expenses in the periods in which the costs are
incurred and the services are received. Identifiable assets and liabilities of
the subsidiary in the acquisition are measured at their acquisition-date fair
values.

The excess of the cost of acquisition over the Company's share of the net
fair value of the subsidiary’s identifiable assets and liabilities is recorded as
goodwill. Any excess of the Company’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of acquisition is recognised
in profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase which is attributed to the
Company.

In a business combination achieved in stages, the previously held equity
interest in the subsidiary is remeasured at its acquisition-date fair value
and the resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss. The fair value is
added to the cost of acquisition to calculate the goodwill.

If the changes in the value of the previously held equity interest in the
subsidiary were recognised in other comprehensive income (for example,
equity investments at fair value through other comprehensive income), the
amount that was recognised in other comprehensive income is recognised
on the same basis as would be required if the previously held equity interest
were disposed of.

Goodwill is tested annually for impairment or more frequently if events
or changes in circumstances indicate that it might be impaired. Goodwill
is measured at cost less accumulated impairment losses. The method of
measuring impairment losses of goodwill is the same as that of “impairment
of assets” as stated in the accounting policy below. Impairment losses
of goodwill are recognised in consolidated profit or loss and are not
subsequently reversed. Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units
("CGU") that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the acquisition
for the purpose of impairment testing.

The non-controlling interests in the subsidiary are initially measured at the

non-controlling shareholders’ proportionate share of the net fair value of
the subsidiary’s identifiable assets and liabilities at the acquisition date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Associates

Associates are entities over which the Group has significant influence.
Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and
operating policy decisions of an entity but is not control or joint control
over those policies. The existence and effect of potential voting rights that
are currently exercisable or convertible, including potential voting rights
held by other entities, are considered when assessing whether the Group
has significant influence. In assessing whether a potential voting right
contributes to significant influence, the holder’s intention and financial
ability to exercise or convert that right is not considered.

Investment in an associate is accounted for in the consolidated financial
statements by the equity method and is initially recognised at cost.
Identifiable assets and liabilities of the associate in an acquisition are
measured at their fair values at the acquisition date. The excess of the cost
of acquisition over the Group's share of the net fair value of the associate’s
identifiable assets and liabilities is recorded as goodwill. The goodwiill
is included in the carrying amount of the investment and is tested for
impairment together with the investment at the end of each reporting
period when there is objective evidence that the investment is impaired.
Any excess of the Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets
and liabilities over the cost of acquisition is recognised in consolidated
profit or loss.

The Group's share of an associate’s post-acquisition profits or losses
is recognised in consolidated profit or loss, and its share of the post-
acquisition movements in reserves is recognised in the consolidated
reserves. The cumulative post-acquisition movements are adjusted against
the carrying amount of the investment. When the Group's share of losses
in an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the associate, including
any other unsecured receivables, the Group does not recognise further
losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the
associate. If the associate subsequently reports profits, the Group resumes
recognising its share of those profits only after its share of the profits equals
the share of losses not recognised.

The gain or loss on the disposal of an associate that results in a loss of
significant influence represents the difference between (i) the fair value of
the consideration of the sale plus the fair value of any investment retained
in that associate and (ii) the Group’s share of the net assets of that associate
plus any remaining goodwill relating to that associate and any related
accumulated foreign currency translation reserve. If an investment in an
associate becomes an investment in a joint venture, the Group continues to
apply the equity method and does not remeasure the retained interest.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BRI

For the year ended 30 September 2020

BZE2020F9 A30H IEFE
4. Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 4, TESTTBEEE)
Associates (continued) & NT (F)
Unrealised profits on transactions between the Group and its associates AEFEEHEE SN TR S 2 KRR A
are eliminated to the extent of the Group's interests in the associates. SENEE QRS R T AL o BRIER
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides SIREEZEEERBEZRE  GRRERE
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of TE)T—F'LAJQ% BENRZETHE WESE
associates have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with @B FBREAEERB SRR
the policies adopted by the Group. —@Z M o
Foreign currency translation IHEBRE
(a) Functional and presentation currency (a) IEEREHER
Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group's rEERE %Zﬁﬂ‘%#&%ﬁﬁ BiEzIEE -
entities are measured using the currency of the primary economic HNZERLEy TERBERIE G
environment in which the entity operates (the “functional ([ThEeE#E G2 - RAEPMBHREUMSE
currency’). The consolidated financial statements are presented in B2 MEBARNATINZ2HEE » J)
RM, which is the Company's presentation currency and the functional ABAEEEELENMBARMNEEE o

currency of the principal operating subsidiaries of the Group.

(b) Transactions and balances in financial statements (b) HEBRINRZRER
Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the functional INERZ ZIEENERRERAR S BB
currency on initial recognition using the exchange rates prevailing [ERBE BN E K - LA?P’%?HEZT%
on the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign BEMBEHYRESHEHRAZERRE
currencies are translated at the exchange rates at the end of each &t}@gﬁﬁﬁ%|ﬁ(ﬁ’\]ﬂﬁlﬁﬁ&)&ﬂﬁﬂ#ﬁ@ﬁﬁ%
reporting period. Gains and losses resulting from this translation policy FRHER o

are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair values in foreign T”‘${E§IJEE w\\muﬂgmgpfmlﬁ
currencies are translated using the exchange rates at the dates when HAEBETAFEBRNERKBRE
the fair values are determined.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised in other EIEEEIER Eﬁ}é%)ﬁ(\\ﬁ{mi\EHy%\%ﬁﬁ
comprehensive income, any exchange component of that gain or loss R B A H A 18 B Ath 2 T
is recognised in other comprehensive income. When a gain or loss mERPHER TIJﬁFi?”%IE BrylzssiEsia
on a non-monetary item is recognised in profit or loss, any exchange RIBRTER » BB B A fE 556
component of that gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss. DINBIIER ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Foreign currency translation (continued)

(c)

Translation on consolidation

The results and financial position of all the Group entities that have
a functional currency different from the Company’s presentation
currency are translated into the Company's presentation currency as
follows:

(i) Assets and liabilities for each statement of financial position
presented are translated at the closing rate at the date of that
statement of financial position;

(i) Income and expenses are translated at average exchange rates
(unless this average is not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction
dates, in which case income and expenses are translated at the
exchange rates on the transaction dates); and

(i) All resulting exchange differences are recognised in the
exchange fluctuation reserve.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the translation
of the net investment in foreign entities and of borrowings are
recognised in the foreign currency translation reserve. When a
foreign operation is sold, such exchange differences are recognised in
consolidated profit or loss as part of the gain or loss on disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a
foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign entity
and translated at the closing rate.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated

depreciation and impairment losses.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised

as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future

economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the

cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance

are recognised in profit or loss during the period in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e EHRRME

For the year ended 30 September 2020

HZE2020F9 8308 [FFE

4. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Property, plant and equipment (continued)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated at rates
sufficient to write off their cost less their residual values over the estimated

useful lives on a straight-line basis. The property, plant and equipment are
depreciated on a straight-line basis at the following rates per annum:

Furniture and fittings 10% — 20%
Computers and software 20% — 33%
Machinery and site equipment 10% — 20%
Motor vehicles 20%
Office equipment 20%

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method are reviewed and
adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment is the
difference between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
relevant asset, and is recognised in profit or loss.

Investment properties

Investment properties are buildings held to earn rentals. An investment
property is measured initially at its cost including all direct costs attributable
to the property.

After initial recognition, the investment property is stated at its fair value
based on valuation by an external independent valuer. Gains or losses
arising from changes in fair value of the investment property are recognised
in profit or loss for the period in which they arise.

The gain or loss on disposal of an investment property is the difference

between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the property,
and is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Leases (prior to 1 October 2019)

The Group as lessee

(i) Operating leases

Leases that do not substantially transfer to the Group all the risks and
rewards of ownership of assets are accounted for as operating leases.
Lease payments (net of any incentives received from the lessor) are

recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Group as lessor

(i) Operating leases

Leases that do not substantially transfer to the lessees all the risks and
rewards of ownership of assets are accounted for as operating leases.
Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a straight-line
basis over the term of the relevant lease.

Leases (upon application of IFRS 16 in accordance with transitions
in Note 3)

The Group as lessee

Leases are recognised as right-of-use assets and corresponding lease
liabilities when the leased assets are available for use by the Group. Right-of-
use assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses. Depreciation of right-of-use assets is calculated at rates to write off
their cost over the shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on a
straight-line basis. The principal annual rates are as follows:

7% - 50%
25% - 50%
25% - 50%

Land and buildings
Machinery
Motor vehicles
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BRI

For the year ended 30 September 2020

BE2020F9A30H L E
4. Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 4, TESTTBEEE)
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Leases (upon application of IFRS 16 in accordance with transitions
in Note 3) (continued)

The Group as lessee (continued)

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the amount of the
initial measurement of the lease liabilities, lease payments prepaid, initial
direct costs and the restoration costs. Lease liabilities include the net
present value of the lease payments discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease if that rate can be determined, or otherwise the Group's
incremental borrowing rate. Each lease payment is allocated between the
liability and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss over
the lease term so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the lease liability.

Payments associated with short-term leases and leases of low-value assets
are recognised as expenses in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over
the lease terms. Short-term leases are leases with an initial lease term of 12
months or less. Low-value assets are assets of value below US$5,000.

The Group as lessor
() Operating leases

Leases that do not substantially transfer to the lessees all the risks and
rewards of ownership of assets are accounted for as operating leases.
Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a straight-line
basis over the term of the relevant lease.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition
at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a business combination is
the fair value at the date of acquisition. The useful lives of intangible assets
are assessed to be finite. Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently
amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired.
The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset
with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year end.

Intangible assets are stated at cost less any impairment losses and are
amortised on the straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Inventories

The cost of unsold completed units is stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price for inventories
less all estimated cost of completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

Service concession arrangements

A portion of the Group's assets are used within the framework of IFRIC
Interpretation 12, “Service Concession Arrangements”. The characteristics
of the service concession arrangement generally provide, directly or
indirectly, for grantor involvement in the determination of the service and
its remuneration, and the return of the assets necessary to the performance

of the service at the end of the contract.

The Group constructs infrastructure used to provide service and operates
and maintains that infrastructure for a specified period of time. The Group
recognises and measures the construction revenue in accordance with the
accounting policy for construction contracts.

The revenue for the construction or upgrade services are measured at
fair value. The Group recognises concession assets arising from a service
concession arrangement when it has a right to charge users of the services.
Aright to charge users of the service is not an unconditional right to receive
cash because the amounts are contingent on the extent that the users uses
the service.

The fair value of a concession asset received as consideration for providing
construction services in a service concession arrangement is estimated by
reference to the fair value of the construction services provided. The fair
value is calculated as the estimated total construction cost plus a profit
margin, which the Group evaluates and determined to be a reasonable
margin earned.

Concession assets resulting from the service concession are recorded in the
consolidated statement of financial position under trade receivables and
are amortised using a rate of return specific to the assets to give a constant
periodic rate of return on the financial asset in each period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e EHRRME

For the year ended 30 September 2020

HZE2020F9 8308 [FFE

4. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Recognition and derecognition of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the statement
of financial position when the Group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights to receive
cash flows from the assets expire; the Group transfers substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the assets; or the Group neither transfers
nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the assets
but has not retained control on the assets. On derecognition of a financial
asset, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of
the consideration received is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation specified in
the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expires. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and the
consideration paid is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial assets

Financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis
where the purchase or sale of an asset is under a contract whose terms
require delivery of the asset within the timeframe established by the market
concerned, and are initially recognised at fair value, plus directly attributable
transaction costs except in the case of investments at fair value through
profit or loss. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of
investments at fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately
in profit or loss.

Financial assets of the Group are classified under the following categories:
- Financial assets at amortised cost; and

- investments at fair value through profit and loss ("FVTPL").
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

(@

(ii)

Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets (including trade, loans and other receivables) are
classified under this category if they satisfy both of the following
conditions:

- the assets are held within a business model whose objective is
to hold assets in order to collect contractual cash flows; and

- the contractual terms of the assets give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding.

They are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method less loss allowance for expected credit losses.

Investments at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets are classified under this category if they do not meet
the conditions to be measured at amortised cost and the conditions
of debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income unless the Group designates an equity investment that is not
held for trading as at fair value through other comprehensive income

on initial recognition.

Investments at fair value through profit or loss are subsequently
measured at fair value with any gains or losses arising from changes
in fair values recognised in profit or loss. The fair value gains or losses
recognised in profit or loss are net of any interest income and dividend
income. Interest income and dividend income are recognised in profit
orloss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e EHRRME

For the year ended 30 September 2020

HZE2020F9 8308 [FFE

4. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Loss allowances for expected credit losses

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses on financial
assets at amortised cost and contract assets. Expected credit losses are
the weighted average of credit losses with the respective risks of a default
occurring as the weights.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group measures the loss
allowance for a financial instrument at an amount equal to the expected
credit losses that result from all possible default events over the expected
life of that financial instrument (“lifetime expected credit losses”) for
trade receivables and contract assets, or if the credit risk on that financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition.

If, at the end of the reporting period, the credit risk on a financial instrument
(other than trade receivables and contract assets) has not increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group measures the loss allowance
for that financial instrument at an amount equal to the portion of lifetime
expected credit losses that represents the expected credit losses that result
from default events on that financial instrument that are possible within 12
months after the reporting period.

The amount of expected credit losses or reversal to adjust the loss
allowance at the end of the reporting period to the required amount is
recognised in profit or loss as an impairment gain or loss.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents
represent cash at bank and on hand, demand deposits with banks and
other financial institutions, and short-term highly liquid investments which
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and subject to an
insignificant risk of change in value. Bank overdrafts which are repayable
on demand and form an integral part of the Group'’s cash management are
also included as a component of cash and cash equivalents.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations

Non-current assets or disposal group are classified as held for sale if their
carrying amount will be recovered principally through a sale transaction
rather than through continuing use. This condition is regarded as met
only when the sale is highly probable and the assets or disposal group are
available for immediate sale in their present condition. The Group must be
committed to the sale, which should be expected to qualify for recognition
as a completed sale within one year from the date of classification.

Non-current assets or disposal group classified as held for sale are measured
at the lower of the assets’ or disposal group’s previous carrying amount and
fair value less costs to sell.

A discontinued operation is a component of the Group, the operations and
cash flows of which can be clearly distinguished from the rest of the Group
and which represents a separate major line of business or geographical
area of operations, or is part of a single co-ordinated plan to dispose of a
separate major line of business or geographical area of operations, or is a
subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale.

Classification as a discontinued operation occurs upon disposal or when the
operation meets the criteria to be classified as held for sale in accordance
with IFRS 5, if earlier. It also occurs when the operation is abandoned.

When an operation is classified as discontinued, a single amount is
presented in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, which comprises:

- The post-tax profit or loss of the discontinued operation; and

- The post-tax gain or loss recognised on the measurement to fair value
less costs to sell, or on the disposal, of the assets or disposal group
constituting the discontinued operation.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified according to the
substance of the contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions
of a financial liability and an equity instrument under IFRSs. An equity
instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets
of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities. The accounting policies
adopted for specific financial liabilities and equity instruments are set out
below.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e EHRRME

For the year ended 30 September 2020

HZE2020F9 8308 [FFE

4. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs
incurred, and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an
unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months
after the reporting period.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case
they are stated at cost.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in a contract
with a customer with reference to the customary business practices and
excludes amounts collected on behalf of third parties. For a contract where
the period between the payment by the customer and the transfer of the
promised product or service exceeds one year, the consideration is adjusted
for the effect of a significant financing component.

The Group recognises revenue when it satisfies a performance obligation
by transferring control over a product or service to a customer. Depending
on the terms of a contract and the laws that apply to that contract, a
performance obligation can be satisfied over time or at a point in time. A
performance obligation is satisfied over time if:

- the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits
provided by the Group's performance;

- the Group's performance creates or enhances an asset that the
customer controls as the asset is created or enhanced; or

- the Group's performance does not create an asset with an alternative

use to the Group and the Group has an enforceable right to payment
for performance completed to date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the customer
obtains control of the distinct good or service.

If a performance obligation is satisfied over time, revenue is recognised
by reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction of that
performance obligation. Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time
when the customer obtains control of the product or service.

Other revenue

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method.
Rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
Other employee benefits

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plan, state-managed
retirement benefit schemes and the Employees Provident Fund ("EPF")
Scheme are recognised as an expense when employees have rendered

service entitling them to the contributions.
Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets
are substantially ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income
earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
eligible for capitalisation.

To the extent that funds are borrowed generally and used for the purpose
of obtaining a qualifying asset, the amount of borrowing costs eligible
for capitalisation is determined by applying a capitalisation rate to the
expenditures on that asset. The capitalisation rate is the weighted average
of the borrowing costs applicable to the borrowings of the Group that are
outstanding during the period, other than borrowings made specifically for
the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e EHRRME

For the year ended 30 September 2020

HZE2020F9 8308 [FFE

4. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Taxation
Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable
profit differs from profit recognised in profit or loss because it excludes
items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years
and it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group's liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits
will be available against which deductible temporary differences, unused
tax losses or unused tax credits can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities
are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from
the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of other assets
and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences
arising on investments in subsidiaries and associates, and interests in joint
ventures, except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each
reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset
to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in
the period when the liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on
tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period. Deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except
when it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case the deferred tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Taxation (continued)

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities reflects the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for investment properties
that are measured using the fair value model, the carrying amounts
of such properties are presumed to be recovered through sale, unless
the presumption is rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when the
investment property is depreciable and is held within a business model of
the Group whose business objective is to consume substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in the investment property over time, rather
than through sale. If the presumption is rebutted, deferred tax for such
investment properties are measured based on the expected manner as to
how the properties will be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities
and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority
and the Group intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net
basis.

Segment reporting

Operating segments and the amounts of each segment item reported
in the financial statements are identified from the financial information
provided regularly to the Group’s most senior executive management for
the purpose of allocating resources and assessing the performance of the
Group's various lines of business.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for
financial reporting purposes unless the segments have similar economic
characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature of products and
services, the nature of productions processes, the type or class of customers,
the methods used to distribute the products or provide the services, and
the nature of the regulatory environment. Operating segments which are
not individually material may be aggregated if they share a majority of these
criteria.
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4. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Related parties
A related party is a person or entity that is related to the Group.

(A) A person or a close member of that person'’s family is related to the
Group if that person:

() has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of the Company
or of a parent of the Company.

(B) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following conditions
applies:

(i) The entity and the entities comprising the Group are members
of the same group (which means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or
an associate or joint venture of a member of a group of which
the other entity is a member).

(i)  Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

(iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is
an associate of the third entity.

(v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of
employees of either the Group or an entity related to the Group.
If the Group is itself such a plan, the sponsoring employers are
also related to the Group.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (A).

(vii) A person identified in (A)(i) has significant influence over the
entity or is a member of the key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part,

provides key management personnel services to the Group or to
a parent of the Company.

122 ANNUALREPORT2020 BGMC International Limited

4. TEESTEHEE)

RER

EN REARREEREZ AL

(A)

R

[
i

i
R

\r

BUIATAL  BIRATHZALTREDR
Fk B BN R A R

0]

(i)

%

2l S FHE I A R E

HARBEEAVE o

RARBHEARFRRARZEEER
BAA -

BT A A MR — IR R - AIEAE

EARE

(i)

(iff)

(iv)

(Vi)

(vii)

(viii)

EAREEENERER—&E
REI (AR 2 AT - M
RIZEMBARIERRE) -

= G
[=d
=
=}

D»N%F

=3
FX
NCIDNE
—EERAS —ERBNHE

Bo%(RAD— K

BRRMEE QR HRAE RS

—HEEASS TEEIABOE
MB—REAZESHREZHEA
E—JO

ERAAEESANAEEEMECE
BRE B MER Z BB AR N 8 -
HASEASEEZTE - REER
B TR AR E A R

ZERHTTE AMIEEZ ATES

RO BIATHEREERTE
77?5%7,@\ HEES 4§ - PASYNCIDES
ZEREKE

ERHEMBEB ZEAKERRM
REEFARBZBRARTEIEZE
B A BBRTS ©



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Impairment of assets

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life or not yet available for
use are reviewed annually for impairment and are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate the carrying amount

may not be recoverable.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible and other intangible assets, except goodwill,
investment properties, deferred tax assets, investments, inventories and
receivables to determine whether there is any indication that those
assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine
the extent of any impairment loss. Where it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and
value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset.

If the recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset or CGU is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit
or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which
case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount
of the asset or CGU is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined (net of amortisation or
depreciation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset or CGU
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately
in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in
which case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation

increase.
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4. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or amount when
the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation arising as a result
of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made.
Where the time value of money is material, provisions are stated at the
present value of the expenditures expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is
disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow is
remote.

Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide additional information
about the Group’s position at the end of the reporting period or those that
indicate the going concern assumption is not appropriate are adjusting
events and are reflected in the consolidated financial statements. Events
after the reporting period that are not adjusting events are disclosed in the
notes to the consolidated financial statements when material.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

5. Critical Accounting Judgements and Key Sources

of Estimation Uncertainty

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

In the process of applying the accounting policies, the directors have made

the following judgements that have the most significant effect on the

amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements.

(a)

(b)

(c)

Going concern basis

These financial statements have been prepared on a going concern
basis, the validity of which depends upon the financial support of the
controlling shareholder at a level sufficient to finance the working
capital requirements of the Group. Details are explained in note 2 to
financial statements.

Deferred tax for investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for investment properties
that are measured using the fair value model, the directors have
reviewed the Group's investment property portfolios and concluded
that the Group's investment properties are not held under a
business model whose objective is to consume substantially all of
the economic benefits embodied in the investment properties over
time, rather than through sale. Therefore, in determining the Group's
deferred tax for investment properties, the directors have adopted the
presumption that investment properties measured using the fair value
model are recovered through sale.

Significant influence over Spark Energy International Limited
(“SPARK"):

Note 22 describes that SPARK is an associate of the Group although
the Group owns 45.1% and there are two call options for the Group
to buy up to 2.5% equity interest each currently owned by two
shareholders of SPARK.

Despite the fact that the Group represents the shareholder holding
the highest equity interest of that company based on assessment on
the relevant agreements including the shareholders’, agreement, the
directors are of the opinion that the Group has significant influence
over SPARK by virtue of the contractual right to appoint two out of the
five directors to the board of directors of that company.
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5. Critical Accounting Judgements and Key Sources

of Estimation Uncertainty (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of

estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a

significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of

assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are discussed below.

(a)

(b)
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Construction contracts with customers

As revenue from on-going construction contracts are recognised
over time, the amount of revenue recognised at the reporting date
depends on the extent to which the performance obligation has been
satisfied. The revenue recognition over time is determined on a cost-
to-cost method, i.e. based on the proportion of contract costs incurred
for work performed to date relative to the estimated total contract
costs.

Significant judgement is required in determining the percentage
of completion, the extent of the contract costs incurred, the
estimated total revenue and total costs and the recoverability of the
construction projects and contract costs. In making these judgements,
management relies on past experience and, if necessary, the works of
specialists.

Where the total actual revenue and cost incurred are different from
the total estimated revenue and cost incurred, such difference will
impact the contract profit or loss recognised.

Impairment of trade receivables and contract assets

Upon application of IFRS 9, the Group uses simplified approach in
calculating ECL for trade receivables and contract assets by applying
an ECL rate. The ECL rate is determined based on the management'’s
assessment on the individual customer’s credit risk grading
dependent on the customer’s financial performance, adjusted for
factors that are specific to the debtors, general economic conditions
at the reporting date that is available, including time value of money
where appropriate. At each reporting date, the ECL rate is remeasured.
The ECL is sensitive to changes in circumstances and of forecast
economic conditions and consequently, may not be representative of
customers’ actual default in the future.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

5. Critical Accounting Judgements and Key Sources

of Estimation Uncertainty (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

(c)

(d)

Estimated impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an estimation
of the recoverable amount of the cash-generating units to which
goodwill has been allocated, which is the higher of the value in
use and fair value less cost of disposal. The value in use calculation
requires the Group to estimate the future cash flows expected to arise
from the cash-generating unit and a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate the present value. Where the actual future cash flows are less
than expected or change in facts and circumstances which results in
downward revision of future cash flows, a material impairment loss/
further impairment may arise.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use
assets

The Group assesses whether there is any indication that property,
plant and equipment and right-of-use assets are impaired at the end
of each reporting period.

Impairment is measured by comparing the carrying amount of an asset
with its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is measured at
the higher of the fair value less cost to sell for that asset and its value-
in-use. The value-in-use is the net present value of the projected
future cash flow derived from that asset discounted at an appropriate
discount rate. Projected future cash flows are calculated based on
historical sector and industry trends, general market and economic
conditions, changes in technology and other available information.
Changes to any of these assumptions would affect the amount of
impairment.

During the financial year, in view of the deteriorating performance
of the earthworks and infrastructure segment, the earthworks and
infrastructure segment recorded an impairment of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets amounted to RM 14,439,000 (2019:
RM2,601,000).

e B mRME
For the year ended 30 September 2020
B ZE2020F9A30R L FE

5. TEESTHERMETTIAPERERN
FERR(E)

A TP RBEEN EZRIR (&)

(c)

(d)

A ERE

EEHERTREAYNHEEESERS
Bt A B WS S IE b st - B
EERATFERGERE 2 §HE « 5
EREES - AERAGHERRERS
Bt BB K RS e OB R AT
B - U ERARASTER TR E
HREREDEERRALREATH
IB] Bt B AR B IR, — S -

¥ BERRBUREREEERE

AEERERERRFEREERRET
M~ B RRE AN REEERE -

ETE B R E EMAREE L E AT E
TRETAE - AR SBIIRZEEN
R ERHERNBEFBEEBEZHOR
SEFE - EREERZEENTAHRE
REREEASIREUER 2 REFE - 8
HIARBRERIRBESL D B RITES
% BRMS LGB - ZMEERH
RIS EMFTE - EAZERRNEB K
TERETHE -

REBFER » EREAREEDITNER
REgz  THREEZDIHEBYE - BE

AR DA R (5 FA M B EE R (E.14,439,000M
5 (20194F : 2,601,000FKF 45) °

5§ 2020 EFERRERERATR

127



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e EHRRME

For the year ended 30 September 2020

HZE2020F9 8308 [FFE

5. Critical Accounting Judgements and Key Sources

of Estimation Uncertainty (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

(e)

(f)

(9)
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Provision for liquidated ascertained damages (“LAD”)

Significant judgement is required in determining the amount of
provision for LAD in respect of construction contracts to be made. The
Group evaluates the amount of provision required based on the past
experience, industry norm and the results from mitigating measures
taken by the Group such as requesting extension of time to complete
the affected projects and waive their LAD claim. Where the actual
outcome deviates from the expected outcome and that there are
wide range of possible outcomes, a material provision for LAD may
arise.

Fair value measurements and valuation processes

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities
recorded in the consolidated statement of financial position cannot
be measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair
values are measured using valuation techniques. Valuation techniques
include the discounted cash flows method, option pricing models,
credit models and other relevant valuation models. The inputs to
these models are taken from observable markets where possible,
but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in
establishing fair values.

Fair values of investment properties

The Group appointed an independent professional valuer to assess
the fair values of the investment properties. In determining the fair
values, the valuer has utilised a method of valuation which involves
certain estimates. The directors have exercised their judgment and
are satisfied that the method of valuation is reflective of the current

market conditions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

6. Financial Risk Management

The Group’s major financial instruments include investment in redeemable

preference shares, derivative assets, trade and other receivables, fixed

deposits, cash and bank balances, derivative liabilities, trade and other

payables and borrowings. Details of the financial instruments are disclosed

in the respective notes. The risks associated with these financial instruments

include interest rate risk, credit risk, foreign currency risk and liquidity

risk. The policies on how the Group mitigates these risks are set out

below. Management manages and monitors these exposures to ensure

appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and effective manner,

(a)

(b)

Foreign currency risk

The Group has minimal exposure to foreign currency risk as most of its
business transactions, assets and liabilities are principally denominated
in the functional currencies of the Group entities.

Credit risk

The Group's maximum exposure to credit risk in the event of the
counterparties’ failure to perform their obligations at the end of each
reporting period in relation to each class of recognised financial assets
is the carrying amounts of those assets as stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to its trade receivables
and retention receivables. In order to minimise the credit risk, the
Group uses an internal credit scoring system to assess the potential
customer’s credit quality and defines credit limits for customers. Limit
and scoring attributed to customers are reviewed twice a year. Other
monitoring procedures are in place to ensure that follow-up action
is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group performs
impairment assessment under ECL model upon application of IFRS
9 on trade balances individually. In this regard, the directors of the
Company consider the Group's credit risk is significantly reduced.
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For the year ended 30 September 2020

BZE2020F9 A30H IEFE
6. Financial Risk Management (continued) 6.

(b) Credit risk (continued)

The Group's internal credit rating assessment comprises the following

MR EE(E)

(b) FERER(E)

AEENABEEFRFERENTE

categories: Bl -

Internal Credit Trade receivables/ Other financial

Rating Description contract assets assets

g3 EWRE

REREE TR Wt BHREE HiteMEE

Good Debtor’s financial information is positive with low risk of ~ Lifetime ECL — not 12-month ECL
default and frequently repay before due date and do not  credit — impaired
have any past-due historically

BR BEBANVBENBIER - 2HRRKE  BLER 2HEHEEEE REABHREEERE
FIEAHRTE - BTN (@ EFRIE —WEREERE

Fair Certain debtor’s financial information is negative though  Lifetime ECL — not Lifetime ECL - not
information developed internally or external sources with  credit — impaired credit — impaired
no history of bad debts or debtors frequently repay and
settle after due date

R#f BE NI RIRFTSE R IR - BBA 2HEHEERE HEHEEEE
WMBENEEE  EBAKLERIHPRGER —IEEERE —WEEERE
N AERT IR

Marginal There have been no information on debtors’ financial Lifetime ECL — not Lifetime ECL - not
performance and debtors frequently repay and settle credit — impaired credit — impaired
after due date

—& TEREBEGAVBRENER  BEHAKLERIY 2HRBEERE- 2HRHEEEE -
B ERFNFIE WEEERE W EEERE

Weak The information of the debtors’ financial performance is Lifetime ECL — not Lifetime ECL - not
negative and have historical bad debts with the Group credit — impaired credit — impaired

RiE ERAMBERANENBAE @ BEEAEERES 2HENMEEBRE 2HEREEESE
AR —WEREERE —WEEERE

Poor There is evidence indicating that the debtor is in severe Lifetime ECL — credit — Lifetime ECL — credit -
financial difficulty and the Group has no realistic prospect  impaired impaired
of recovery

TR BEREBRAGBHKABARENHNE  MAKEREZ 2HEHEEEE 2HBRHESEER

W m IR

—AEERE

—RAEERE

In determining the ECL for other receivables, the management of the
Group has taken into account the historical default experience and
forward-looking information, as appropriate, for example, the Group
has considered the consistently low default rate in connection with
payments, and concluded that credit risk inherent in the Group's
outstanding receivables is insignificant.

The credit risks on fixed deposits and bank balances are limited
because the counterparties are banks with high credit ratings assigned
by international credit-rating agencies.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 30 September 2020

BUE2020F9H30R ILFE
6. Financial Risk Management (continued) 6. MBREMEE(E)
(b) Credit risk (continued) (b) EERK(E)
The tables below detail the credit exposure of the Group’s financial TRFAME I A EEBETEIEZEEIE
assets and contract assets, which are subject to ECL assessment: FENERMEERSNEENEERR

Gross carrying  Gross carrying

amount amount
REAE RHEAE
2020 2019
Note  Internal Credit Rating 12-month or lifetime ECL RM’000 RM'000
Kt REEERR 12{E A2 BEHEEER FHER THER
Trade receivables (Note 1) 25 Good Lifetime ECL - not credit — impaired 62,764 335,985
BB NGIA(H721) BR FHESEERE-UEEERE
Fair Lifetime ECL - not credit — impaired 8,463 6,858
Rif FHEHEEEE - VRESRHE
Marginal Lifetime ECL - not credit - impaired 1 385
—R FHRSEERE-UEEERE
Weak Lifetime ECL - not credit — impaired 5,017 8,550
REE FHEHEEEE - VRESRHE
Poor Lifetime ECL - credit — impaired 1,030 1,462
TR FHRBEEFRE-ARERE
Retention receivables (Note 1) 25 Good Lifetime ECL - not credit — impaired 9,742 10,012
e RS (Het1) BR FHEREEEE - TREERE
Fair Lifetime ECL - not credit — impaired 1 4
Rif P HEBEEFE - UEEERE
Marginal Lifetime ECL - not credit — impaired - 1,549
— FHEREEEE - TREERE
Weak Lifetime ECL - not cred|t - impaired 266 1,461
UNES P HEBEEFE-UEEERE
Other receivables 25 Good 12-month ECL 16,092 19,543
H it YR BR REAEHREERE
Contract assets (Note 1) 30 Good Lifetime ECL - not credit - impaired 184,218 232,110
BREE M) BR FHEHEEEE - VEREERHE
Fair Lifetime ECL - not credit — impaired 39,230 63,572
Rif FHRSEERE-UEEERE
Marginal Lifetime ECL - not credit - impaired - 1918
— FHEHEEEE - VREERHE
Weak Lifetime ECL - not credit — impaired 728 5,063
UNES FHRSEERE-UEEERE
Fixed deposits 31 Good 12-month ECL 39,124 39,658
T HER BR 2EAEREEEE
Cash and bank balances 32 Good 12-month ECL 5,617 24,275
B e RRITHRER BR REAEHEERRE
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HZE2020F9 8308 [FFE

6. Financial Risk Management (continued)

(b) Credit risk (continued)

Note I: For trade and retention receivables and contract assets, the Group has
applied the simplified approach of IFRS 9 to measure the loss allowance
at lifetime ECL. The Group determines the expected credit losses on these

items based on individual assessment.

The following table shows the movements in lifetime ECL that has

6. MHEREE(E)
(b) FERE(E)

Kratr : BB SRUGRIAMERIRES AR HE
EME  AEECDERERT GRS ER
FomMB A A EHRPEREEHE
HEREUE - ARERBEAFGEEZ
FREMNAEREERE -

TE‘E%WJ&HETF S B 5 EUGRIA

been recognised for trade receivables and contract assets under MELEEMERNZHBHEEERHIED
simplified approach. B o
Lifetime ECL  Lifetime ECL
(not credit (credit
Internal Credit Rating 2 HEHEEEE impaired) impaired) Total
EHEEE AMBEE
BB (L E R (R
FERE) FERE) BEr
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
FHEE FHEE FHRE R
At 1 October 2019 R2019F10H1H 2,600 - 2,600
(Reversal of impairment losses)/ (BERERR),BER
Impairment losses recognised SRERE (1,198) 1,462 264
At 30 September 2019 201959 H30H &
and 1 October 2019 20195108 1H 1,402 1,462 2,864
Impairment losses recognised ERRBEEE 32,230 432 32,662
At 30 September 2020 720209 A30H 33,632 1,894 35,526
(c) Liquidity risk () RBELEK
The Group’s total assets less current liabilities as at 30 September M2020F9 H30H - REEBEMBEER
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2020 are approximately RM118,100,000 (2019: RM282,691,000);
and the Group's net current liabilities as at 30 September 2020 are
RM62,424,000 (2019: RM61,687,000).

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and
maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate
by the management to finance the Group'’s operations and mitigate
the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. As at 30 September 2020,
the Group has available unutilised bank borrowing facilities of
approximately RM144,061,000 (2019: RM228,327,000). As disclosed

BN & A118,100,000 8 5 45 (20194 -
282,691,000 F 15 ) 5 M A& B 202069
A30B 8 F RE) B & 562424000 F 15
(20194 : 61,687,000 F HF) °

REERBE SRR  KNEESEEL
HReRESSEVHREBEREEERAR
BZKF - BN ASE & E RRKR
EREFE ZFE - R2020F9A308 -
REEABANARSARITEEREN A
144,061,0007K 7 5 (20194F : 228,327,000#K

in Note 36, a subsidiary had technically breached the course of Fh) o NI TE36 AT EE - —REME A
ordinary business (the “Loan Covenant’) in the loan agreement. The AT E R E R G ET O — R ERR
management of the Company has commenced discussion with the (fﬂﬂi%ﬂ L)) o RREEREDHIREE

Lender for a waiver of the technical breach of the Loan Covenant from
the borrower and a financial institution (the “Lender”).

BGMC International Limited
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6. Financial Risk Management (continued)

(c)

RE B RRHE
For the year ended 30 September 2020
B ZE2020F9A30R L FE

6. MHEREE(E)

Liquidity risk (continued) () REESEE(E)
The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual maturity TREMKREBITESREB BB TS
for its non-derivative financial liabilities. The table has been drawn up HFEAFHE - TRIZBSRABZAREE
based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on REREUNERBETFEEZZF ARG
the earliest date on which the Group can be required to pay. The table o TREEREREARE o WA BRI
includes both interest and principal cash flows. To the extent that FEREREE - RAVBEFENSWMERR
interest flows are floating rate, the undiscounted amount is derived ZETHEMNERAE o
from prevailing market interest rates at the end of each reporting
period.
The maturity analysis, based on undiscounted cash flows, of the BEAERSHEBEZRGRERESREE
Group's financial liabilities is as follows: HEERSTINT -
Weighed
average On demand Total Total
effective or within Over undiscounted carrying
interest rate 1year 1 year cash flows amount
T REREE BE AERRE
il 15 HRA 15 B IREAE
At 30 September 2020 #2020%F9830H % RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’'000
FHER THEE THER THEE
Trade and other payables B 5 REMENFIE - 382,844 3,820 386,664 386,664
Lease liabilities HEaE 6.32 4,619 26,038 30,657 21,643
Borrowings BE 5.95 76,148 - 76,148 69,286
463,611 29,858 493,469 477,593
Weighed
average ~ Ondemand Total Total
effective or within Over undiscounted carrying
interest rate 1 year 1 year cash flows amount
IEFE  RERER Bl RERRE
B = 1R 14 mE R AR
At 30 September 2019 201949 A30H % RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
FHER  FHEE  FREER THEE
Trade and other payables B 5 REMENFIE - 249,737 5412 255,149 255,149
Obligations under finance leases @& fH & &4 323 6,669 2316 8,985 8,621
Borrowings == 595 331,291 - 331,291 301,438
587,697 7,728 595425 565,208
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HZE2020F9 8308 [FFE

6. Financial Risk Management (continued)

(d)

134 ANNUAL REPORT 2020

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk as certain of its
bank balances and borrowings are subject to floating interest rates.
Management considers any significant interest rate exposure should
the need arise.

The Group is also exposed to fair value interest rate risk in relation to
its fixed-rate bank deposits and borrowings.

The sensitivity analysis has been determined based on the exposure
to floating interest rates for borrowings at the end of the reporting
period and assumed the amounts outstanding at the end of this
reporting period were outstanding for the whole year and held
constant throughout the financial year. If interest rates on interest
bearing borrowings were 50 basis points higher/lower and all
other variables were held constant, the loss for the year ended
30 September 2020 would increase/decrease by approximately
RM231,000 (2019: RM1,060,000).

The above sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative of the inherent

interest rate risk because the year end exposure does not reflect the
exposure during the year.

BGMC International Limited

6.

MR EE(E)

(d) FR@EE

AR B S TR R A BT B
KiHR - MAEETAEAS REFIEME
% o B EESEREBEAEAFIEAE

AEETEREE N EF BORTER R
fEEMARZ A FERFIRRL -

BRE DT IR S AR B F B X
BRETE - WERRNARES RO REE
SHEARFNAEEANEZEATREER
BAE - Wt BEEMNFIE LR T#E50
EEZ - MATEEMEHRETE - AE
202099 A308 IEFEME B I,
D #9231,000/RF 15 (20194F + 1,060,0004F
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6. Financial Risk Management (continued) 6.

(e) Categories of financial instruments at 30 September

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e M ERRMEE
For the year ended 30 September 2020
HZE2020F9 8300 [FFE

MR EE(E)

At amortised

(e) HoH30BWERITEERI

At amortised

cost At FVTPL cost At FVTPL
BEAYE BANFEE
bi7g: ) D %N sSFABRE  REHAAR FrAE&=E
2020 2020 2019 2019
Financial assets SWMEE RM’000 RM’000 RM'000 RM'000
FHEHE FHEE FHER FER
Trade and other receivables B 5 MEMEW TS
(including cash and cash (BIER e RIRITER)
equivalents) 132,855 - 447910 -
Investment in redeemable PAT] B [0] AT #3189
convertible preference shares ’E - 5,694 - 22,044
Derivative assets FETASE - - - 2,365
132,855 5,694 447910 24,409
At amortised At amortised
cost At FVTPL cost At FVTPL
BEAFE BAFE
1R 8 R AN sTAEE  REEAA FFAEHE
2020 2020 2019 2019
RM’000 RM’000 RM'000 RM'000
FHEE FHEE TG R RN
Financial liabilities TRBaE
Other financial liabilities Higsmas 445,950 - 556,587 -
Derivative liabilities PETERARE - - - 2,700
445,950 - 556,587 2,700
Fi8 2020 FEFIERERERAA
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HZE2020F9 8308 [FFE

6. Financial Risk Management (continued)
(f) Capital risk management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will
be able to continue as going concern while maximising the return to
stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance.
The Group's overall strategy remains unchanged throughout the
current and previous financial years.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt which includes
obligations under finance leases, borrowings, lease liabilities and
share application monies as disclosed in Notes 35, 36, 37 and 27,
respectively, net of cash and cash equivalents, and attributable to
owners of the Company, comprising issued share capital, share
premium, other reserve and retained earnings.

The directors review the capital structure periodically. As part of
this review, the directors considers the cost of capital and the risks
associated with each class of capital. The Group will also balance its
overall capital structure through the payment of dividends, new share
issues and share buy-backs as well as the issue of new debt or the
redemption of existing debt, if necessary.

7. Fair Value Measurements

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date. The following disclosures of fair value
measurements use a fair value hierarchy that categorises into three levels
the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value:

Level 1 inputs: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities that the Group can access at the measurement date.

Level 2 inputs: inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that
are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly.

Level 3 inputs: unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The Group's policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers out of any of
the three levels as of the date of the event or change in circumstances that
caused the transfer.
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For the year ended 30 September 2020

HZE2020F9 A30H ILFE
7. Fair Value Measurements (continued) 7. AVFEFEE)
(a) Disclosures of level in fair value hierarchy at 30 September: (a) R9OA30ANATFEEBRIRE :

Fair value measurements using:

DNREFERER Total

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 st

F—& -t 1 EB=R 2020

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

THER THER THES THER

Recurring fair value measurements: QM AFEGE

Financial assets at fair value through mAFEFABRN
profit or loss: TREE -
Investment in redeemable convertible FAT] B (o] A] B840 18 S A
preference shares ('RCPS") ((AEETERELR])
HIRE - - 5,694 5,694
Derivative assets at fair value through BEAFEFAERD
profit or loss: PTHETREBE
Call option with DPI Solar 1 Pte. Ltd. DPI Solar 1 Pte. Ltd.
(‘DPI Solar’) ([ DPI Solar ) )R HAfE = - - -
Investment properties REME
Commercial &l - 25,000 - 25,000
Derivative liabilities at fair value BATHER ABZER
through profit or loss: THETHBE:
Put option with DPI Solar DPI Solarsd/h B = - -
Total recurring fair value measurements &% M A A 22 - 25,000 5,694 30,694

Fair value measurements using:

NEEFESRA Total
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 @zt
£ E-H B/ 2019
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000

THER THER THER THER

Recurring fair value measurements: R AFEGE

Financial assets at fair value through BAHERT BN

profit or loss: TREE

Investment in RCPS FA R B [0 A] BB A1 ST IR Y

®E - - 22,044 22,044

Derivative assets at fair value through BAFERABRD

profit or loss: TTHETHEEE

Call option with DPI Solar DPI SolarzR & HitE - - 2,365 2,365
Derivative liabilities at fair value BATHER B

through profit or loss: TETEBRE:

Put option with DPI Solar DPI Solarz2h Hi#E - - (2,700) (2,700)
Total recurring fair value measurements &%t A FE 245 - - 21,709 21,709
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HZE2020F9A30B LFE
7. Fair Value Measurements (continued) 7. AVFEFEE)
(b) Reconciliation of assets measured at fair value based on (b) BEBEFE=RBRAFEIEZEEY
level 3: B :
Call option  Put option
Investment with DPI with DPI
in RCPS Solar Solar Total
ATEEE
AER
B5%KHE  DPISolar  DPISolar
RM’000 RM’'000 RM’000 RM’000
FHEE THEE THEE  THEE
At 1 October 2019 720195F10A 1H 22,044 (2,365) 2,700 22,379
Total gains or losses recognised in RIS R R S5k
profit or loss © 1R - (2,365) 2,700 335
Redemption fE[ (16,350) - - (16,350)
At 30 September 2020 7202099 H30H 5,694 (4,730) 5,400 6,364
® Include gains/(losses) for assets/ W FER IR BR
(liabilities) held at end of reporting FsEE/ (A2
period sk (B518) - (2,365) 2,700 335
Call option Put option
Investment with DPI with DPI
in RCPS Solar Solar Total
RATEE D
IS
BERe DPI Solar DPI Solar
e  REHE  RLHE #as
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
FHER  THEE THEE THEE
At 1 October 2018 7201810 1H - - - -
Total gains or losses recognised in MBI IERR U ZR sk
profit or loss ® ikt - 2,365 (2,700) (335)
Purchases RE 22,044 - - 22,044
At 30 September 2019 7201959 H30H 22,044 2,365 (2,700) 21,709

® Include gains/(losses) for assets/ OB FER IR E HR
(liabilities) held at end of reporting FrsEE/(Aff)z

period Wezk / (B518) - (2,365) (2,700) (5,065)
The total gains or losses recognised in profit or loss including those for REFPERNWR G EEESE(8ER
assets held at end of reporting period are presented in other gains/ MEAARRITENEERRO K &= B
(losses) in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive B)REBEREMEEW AT P A E AU
income. @/ (BR)RZT] -
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7. Fair Value Measurements (continued)

(c)

Disclosure of valuation process used by the Group and valuation
techniques and inputs used in fair value measurements at 30
September 2020:

The Group’s financial controller is responsible for the fair value
measurements of assets and liabilities required for financial reporting
purposes, including level 3 fair value measurements. The financial
controller reports directly to the Board of Directors for these fair value
measurements. Discussions of valuation processes and results are held
between the financial controller and the Board of Directors at least
twice a year.

For level 3 fair value measurements, the Group will normally
engage external valuation experts with the recognised professional

qualifications and recent experience to perform the valuations.

Key unobservable inputs used in level 3 fair value measurements are

mainly:

- weighted average cost of capital (estimated based on global
economy growth and industry foreground)

- dividend rate (estimated based on historical data)

e B mRME
For the year ended 30 September 2020
B ZE2020F9A30R L FE

7. A¥EFTE(E)

(c)

IR & B 202099 A 30 H A L ERR A
BN FEERT G ER & A SUE
B -

AEEYHRERRETEENARBENLD
FEFENMEFBHRERE - BRFE=R

“ifﬁ#% cMBREERNESSER
ZERERE - ﬁ?ﬁ‘*ﬁ%‘%éﬁi§$A E

Hi9 RITMAREE B HERF
% o
/TJ_M-_ qugu‘fiﬁﬁm ZJXEE_

éﬂmﬂﬁmﬁi%ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ ﬁﬁﬂﬁfﬁi‘“
B SN EFSOETTIAE

F=MATVEFEMRANTIETAERRE
BWABBIER:

—  IEFHERKA R 2 REEE
RRITERIRMGE)

- RER(REESLZEEHER
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7. Fair Value Measurements (continued) 7. AVEFTE(E)
() (continued) (c) (&)

E=ROVERE

Level 2 fair value measurements

140  ANNUAL REPORT 2020

Description Valuation technique Inputs Fair value
DA
A fh{E i WA BE 2020
RM’000
THER
Commercial investment properties Market comparable approach Price per square metre 25,000
EAREYE IS L EOE FFHKER
Level 3 fair value measurements B=RAVETE
Effect on fair
value for
increase
Description Valuation technique Unobservable inputs Range of inputs Fair value
WAREEM AVE
5 ERM TUBERAZE #E HATENTE 2020
RM'000
FHEH
Investment in RCPS Discounted cash flow discount rate, dividend rate 11.56%, 20% Decrease 5,694
REER AT EARLRNRE AEBRRENE AHRE  REX 11.56% * 20% e
Derivative assets at fair value through Discounted cash flow discount rate 584%-11.13% Decrease -
profit or loss REBRRERE R 5.849%%11.13% s
BRATEFABRNITETARE
Derivative liabilities at fair value through ~ Discounted cash flow discount rate 5.84%-11.13% Decrease -
profit or loss AEBHEERE BhRE S584%ZE11.13% B
BROTEFABRNITETAGE
Effect on fair
value for
increase
Description Valuation technique Unobservable inputs Range of inputs Fair value
B BRI AHE
Bk fhERM Gk 2= N ¢ #E YOFEMFE 2019
RM'000
THEs
Investment in RCPS Discounted cash flow discount rate, dividend rate 11.56%, 20% Decrease 22,044
RUEET S AEERARE KERR R BRE - R8E 11.56% - 20% O
Call option with DPI Solar Discounted cash flow discount rate 584%-11.13% Decrease 2,365
DPI SolarsR & Hitg AUBRENE L3R 5.84%%11.13% wp
Put option with DPI Solar Discounted cash flow discount rate 584%-11.13% Decrease 2,700
DPI Solarz3) 24 AEBRRLNE L3R 5.84%Z11.13% o

During the two years, there were no changes in the valuation

techniques used.

BGMC International Limited
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8. Revenue, Income from Concession Agreements 8. Uz ISHIHBUA RS BELR

and Segmental Information

(a) Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers (a) BEFEHNNEZDE

The Group derives its revenue from contract with customers in the
following major revenue streams:

AEEEFE O H T B U KRN

™

2020 2019
RM’'000 RM'000
FHER THER
Building construction revenue BFERWE 297,477 343,306
Building maintenance service income BFHERIEWA 14,804 10,415
Supply and installation of elevators HENZRERS 817 17
313,098 353,738
Representing: THIZ B
Continuing operations SBISEET 301,584 343,356
Discontinued operation (Note 16) BRI ERE (Mt 16) 11,514 10,382
313,098 353,738
Timing of revenue recognition TSR 25 B P
Over time e 313,098 353,738
Construction contract revenue recognised amounting to approximately MER ARG R EREIER T E
RM111,111,000 (2019: RM4,326,000) relates to the development and EEHWEI11,11 ooomi%(zowi

construction of a solar photovoltaic energy generating facility as
disclosed in Note 8(d)(ii).

4,326,000/ 45 ) I BB A M 5E8(d)

3§ 2020 BEBRERERERAR
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HZE2020F9 8308 [FFE

8. Revenue, Income from Concession Agreements 8. U2 - 1S BB WA R 2 B & H
and Segmental Information (continued) (%)

(b) Performance obligations for contracts with customers

(b) BEFEHNZEHNEE

Building construction

The Group provides building construction services to customers. Such
services are recognised as a performance obligation satisfied over
time as the Group creates or enhances an asset that the customer
controls as the asset is created or enhanced. Revenue is recognised for
these construction services based on the percentage of completion of
the contracts using input method.

The Group’s construction contracts include payment schedules
which require stage payments over the construction period once
certain specified milestones are reached. The Group may require
certain customers to provide upfront deposits of certain % of total
contract sum. When the Group receives a deposit before construction
commences, this will give rise to contract liabilities at the start of
a contract, until the revenue recognised on the specific contract
exceeds the amount of the deposit.

A contract asset, net of contract liability related to the same contract,
is recognised over the period in which the construction services are
performed representing the Group's right to consideration for the
services performed because the rights are conditioned on the Group's
future performance in achieving specified milestones. The contract
assets are transferred to trade receivables when the rights become
unconditional.

Retention sum receivables, prior to expiration of defect liability
period, ranges from one to two years from the date of the practical
completion of the construction. The relevant amount of contract
asset is reclassified to trade receivables when the defect liability
period expires. The defect liability period serves as an assurance
that the construction services performed comply with agreed-upon
specification and such assurance cannot be purchased separately.
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HZE2020F9 8300 [FFE

8. Revenue, Income from Concession Agreements 8. U2 - 1S BB WA R 2 B & H
and Segmental Information (continued) (%)

(b) BEFENZENEEE)

(b) Performance obligations for contracts with customers

(continued)

Building maintenance service

The Group engages in providing services for maintenance of
buildings. Contracts entered into can cover various different
processes. These processes and activities tend to be highly inter-
related and the Group provides a significant service of integration for
these assets under contract. Where this is the case, these are taken to
be one performance obligation. The total transaction price is allocated
across each service or performance obligation and, where linked, the
construction of the relevant asset. The transaction price is allocated
to each performance obligation based on contracted prices. The total
transaction price may include variable consideration.

Performance obligations are fulfilled over time as the customer
simultaneously receives and consume the benefits provided by the
Group's performance as the Group performs. Revenue is recognised
in the accounting period in which the services are rendered based
on the amount of the expected transaction price allocated to each
performance obligation. Customers are in general invoiced on a
monthly basis for an amount that is calculated on a schedule of rates.
Payment is received following invoice on normal commercial terms.
For performance obligations satisfied over time, the percentage of
completion is measured on an output basis.

BFEERE

AEBREREBTRIERT - TIHA
OARLRESETREFT - RERFEE
BERRBERN - AEERRSEANT
BEREREEARY - EUBRT - &
SHRH R A—BROK - XHBEE
EEHEESBREOE RS R (M)
RRAMEE - XFEEERTHEESD
RESEBROEE - XHERLBETLE
EATEE -

EFEREER B REANEEEORAEE
REFTRENNEE - BHEER —RE
BT - WaRIESREORTED R
MBI HERSENIEHREH ST H
RAMER - TP BETIHEMRAESD
MEREABRHER REZRRRER
BRGFS - BL—EBREFEAm R ELD
BEME  TRADLIREHEETE -
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HZE2020F9 8308 [FFE

8. Revenue, Income from Concession Agreements 8. U2 - 1S BB WA R 2 B & H

and Segmental Information (continued) (&)
(c) Transaction price allocated to the remaining performance () PTEEEZFEHNBRTENETINRS
obligations for contracts with customers B
The following table shows the aggregate amount of the transaction TRETHEE 20205 & 2019F9H31H
price allocated to performance obligations that is unsatisfied (or DEEERTTK(EERD KT ) B ETH
partially unsatisfied) as at years ended 31 September 2020 and 2019. RS BIRESEE -
2020 2019
RM’'000 RM'000
FHER FRE SR
Building construction revenue BFERlE 584,602 1,253,294
Building maintenance service income EFHSIRIEIA 153,510 163,879
Supply and installation of elevators HERLEER 3,550 1,048
741,662 1,418,221
Representing: TAE I
Continuing operations SIEIC B ETE 588,152 1,254,342
Discontinued operation (Note 16) BRI E RS (it 16) 153,510 163,879
741,662 1,418,221
The Group expects revenue from unsatisfied performance obligations REETE IR A BB ER G H A
to be recognised in the following years as follows: TEFEH T AR -
2020 2019
RM’000 RM'000
FHER THER
Within one year —F AR 526,148 740,026
More than one year, but not more than 2 years —FLAE - BT BBEmRE 81,656 535,120
More than two years e - 133,858 143,075
741,662 1,418,221
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8. Revenue, Income from Concession Agreements
and Segmental Information (continued)

(d) Income from concession agreements

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e M ERRMEE

For the year ended 30 September 2020

HZE2020F9 8300 [FFE

8. Wm (HHHBERARDIABESR
(%)

(d) #FFiEBA

2020 2019
RM’'000 RM'000
FHEE TMHER
Income from concession agreements — FEET s A —
imputed interest income: HEFBWA -
(i) UITM () B TEARZ([UITM]) 41,681 42,395
(ii) REPPA (i) BEERENEE RZE
(TREPPA ) 3,043 366
44,724 42,761
Representing: TEIEIRG
Continuing operations SEBISE TS 3,043 366
Discontinued operation (Note 16) BRI T (Mt 16) 41,681 42,395
44,724 42,761

KAS Engineering Sdn. Bhd. (‘"KAS Engineering"), which became
a wholly-owned subsidiary of BGMC Holdings Bhd. (‘BGMC
Holdings") on 28 September 2015, entered into a concession
agreement on 14 March 2012 with Universiti Teknologi Mara
(“UITM") and the Government of Malaysia (the “Government”)
as represented by the Ministry of Higher Education Malaysia
under a private finance initiative for the right and authority
to undertake the financing, planning, design, development,
construction, landscaping, equipping, installations, completion,
testing and commissioning of the facilities and infrastructure of a
UiTM campus in Dengkil, Malaysia and to carry out the property
management services in relation to the maintenance of the
facilities and infrastructure.

#2015 9 A28 A i /2 BGMC Holdings
Bhd.([ BGMC Holdings ) 2 & [{f & A
A B KAS Engineering Sdn. Bhd. ([ KAS
Engineering |) R &L A F 851 &
BRI THEAZ([UITM]) RREF K
ARBA(TBRFDOERARESE
HBE 201293 A14B MR
Z o RSN B R R R
UITMAR B 35 it e AR Ef TR & ~ IR
g - AT AR giE - 2R
i H - EK - B LKARTE
LA K St 4 s AERA SR i R E R IR
EIRRTE ©

£ 8§ 2020
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8. Revenue, Income from Concession Agreements

and Segmental Information (continued)

(d) Income from concession agreements (continued)

U]
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(continued)

This concession agreement is for a period of 23 years comprising
3 years of construction works and 20 years of maintenance works
commencing immediately from the date when the construction
and related infrastructure works were accepted by UiTM and
ending on the 23rd anniversary of the commencement date
(the “Maintenance Period"). The maintenance works will
commence upon the issuance of Certificate of Acceptance by
UiTM and expire on the last date of the Maintenance Period (the
“Repayment Period"). Upon expiry of the Maintenance Period,
the Group is required to handover the facilities and infrastructure
at no cost to UiTM in a well-maintained and operational
condition.

UiTM will pay the Group throughout the Maintenance Period
(i) equal monthly concession charges for the enjoyment of
the availability of the facilities which were provided by KAS
Engineering over the initial 3 years of construction works
("Availability Charges”); and (i) monthly infrastructure
and maintenance charges for the provision of maintenance
works to be provided by KAS Engineering in accordance with
the provisions of the concession agreements. The Group
and UiTM may make request in writing for the review of the
maintenance charges at the interval of every five years after the
commencement date of the Maintenance Period, subject to the
Government's approval.

The construction of the facilities and infrastructures of the
university campus were completed on 25 September 2015 and
accepted by UiTM on 25 November 2015 which represents the
commencement of the Maintenance Period of the facilities and
infrastructure. Upon acceptance by UiTM, the balance previously
recognised as amount owing by customers for contract works
assets was reclassified to trade receivables.

BGMC International Limited

8. Wz

(%)

BHHERARD BER

(d) #FEFIHZBUA (&)

ZEHHEAIBE - BEBEUITM
BlEEMEEERTIREERRES
BT HEEF ([ #1155 ]) EA3F
A TR R2OFHIMIE TIZ - M8
IREEUTMELRNEELEESHE
fEHAEM B ([BFRE ) 1E - S HfE
g AEEEBREREEAER
RTFUTM - AR R IFREE AR -

UITM 7§ 7 & {8 4 & HA 1A 2R 5% [ () 1%
R % %8 X 15 3t £ A KAS Engineering
RIZE TR E3FIREMBRIEARRT
B([EAE])  Ki)EAXREKAS
Engineering B 45 57 57 1 3% (& SCIR LAY
HETIRENEEREEE - AEER
UITMEK B #E £ HARRA A e SR A
FERDERRFEEE - ERTBUT
HEETLME °

FE K BRE R R EER2015F9
R25B% T » Wr20156F11 A258
UiTMBR U - T B Uk B 23 A AE RE A% it
REZMS IR G B o UTMERIK
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

8. Revenue, Income from Concession Agreements

and Segmental Information (continued)

(d) Income from concession agreements (continued)

U]

(ii)

(continued)

The financial asset arising from the above concession
agreements, which represents the fair value of the consideration
receivable for the construction services delivered during
the construction, amounted to RM265,321,000 (2019:
RM268,709,000) as at 30 September 2020, and is included as non-
current assets held for sale (2019: trade receivables) as disclosed
in Note 33 (2019: Note 25). Such receivable is settled by equal
monthly Availability Charges over the Repayment Period. Since
KAS Engineering’s entitlement to receive the Availability Charges
resulted from construction work provided by KAS Engineering, as
well as the provision of finance in respect of such work over the
Repayment Period, the related trade receivable was discounted
over the Repayment Period using an effective interest rate of
15.1% (2019: 15.1%) per annum. The imputed interest income
recognised for the year ended 30 September 2020 amounted to
RM41,681,000 (2019: RM42,395,000).

All rights, interest and title limited to the Availability Charges,
any amount payable by the Government of Malaysia, and
reimbursement of costs by UiTM under the aforesaid concession
agreement are assigned to a financial institution to secure a term
loan facility granted to KAS Engineering as disclosed in Note 36.

During the previous financial year, a subsidiary, BGMC Bras
Power Sdn. Bhd. ("BP") entered into a Renewable Energy Power
Purchase Agreement (‘"REPPA”") with Tenaga Nasional Berhad
("“TNB") to design, construct, own, operate and maintain a solar
photovoltaic energy generating facility (“the Facility”) with
a capacity of 30MWac proposed to be located at Kuala Muda,
Kedah, Malaysia to generate and deliver solar photovoltaic
energy to TNB. BP will sell to TNB, and TNB will purchase from BP
the electrical output generated by the Facility and delivered to
TNB in exchange for energy payments as set out in the REPPA
(“the Kuala Muda Project”).

8. W=
(48)

e B mRME
For the year ended 30 September 2020
B ZE2020F9A30R L FE

CBETFHBERARSBER

(d) #FEFIHZBUA (&)

0]

(if)

*ALitsTnENeREE(TE
LR B PR SE RISREN AT
1) 72020479 A 30 H /265,321,000
(20194 © 268,709,0004K FH 45 ) -
et ABTEE33(2019%4F ¢ Ffsk2s5) i
BEMRIELEERBEE (2019 :
B SEWHIE) - BHENRIERE
FHRNAZ A SR NERBEE -
B FAKAS Engineering 2 i 22 T 7238
BEARIEEERERPNERIARNA
ERTIRRERES  HEBZEWK
BHEREFHRNEERFMNEI51%
(2019%F : 15.1%) BLER B Z= 202059
A308 It FERRANGEER SWAR
41,681,000/ 7 45 (20194F : 42,395,000
MER) ©

FRIERINMERENER - #RNAE
¥ - B8 55 2R P e BT FE S BT A J2
UITMAR % _E 4S5 i (BT B B AR I
B T 5 B LA A M 36T IR EEAY
KAS Engineering 1% ) 7E BRE kB4 &
{EHAR -

RE—BHBEE  —HHREBAQ
7] BGMC Bras Power Sdn Bhd ([ BP J )
Ed Tenaga Nasional Berhad ( [ TNB ] )
AV BERERENEBE M E
(TREPPA]) » PARRET ~ B3 - #EE -
R RAEEAGE R BEERE([Z
FiE]) - HRER30IEZNE « ##
FA PSR TN IR A3 - A
MTNBAE E R 8k KI5 RE S ARBEIR o
UAREPPAFTEL - BP#AITNBHI & K TNB
1 EBPHEERZRIBEENELE
2 - WAITNBHIE AR ERE & ([ AL
WEEA ) o
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8. Revenue, Income from Concession Agreements

and Segmental Information (continued)

(d) Income from concession agreements (continued)

(i)

148  ANNUAL REPORT 2020

(continued)

The REPPA is for a period of 21 years (“the Term") commencing
upon the fulfillment of the condition precedent ("CP”") set out
in the REPPA and expires on the day before the 21st anniversary
of the CP fulfillment date (including such day), unless otherwise
extended in accordance with certain clauses or terminated in
accordance with the provisions of the REPPA. Upon expiry of
the Term or the earlier termination of the REPPA, TNB shall have
the right to disconnect the TNB interconnection facility from the
Facility.

The financial asset arising from the REPPA, which represents
the fair value of the consideration receivable for the preliminary
services delivered, amounted to RM120,052,000 (2019:
RM6,084,000) as at 30 September 2020, and is included as
contract assets (2019: trade receivables) as disclosed in Note
30 (2019: Note 25). Such receivable is settled over the Term
of the REPPA. Since BP’s entitlement is to receive the energy
payments resulted from construction work provided as well as
the operation and maintenance of the Facility upon commercial
operation date as defined under the REPPA, the related trade
receivable was discounted over the Term using a rate of return
specific to the Facility to give a constant periodic rate of return
on the financial asset in each period. The imputed interest
income recognised during the year ended 30 September 2020
amounted to RM3,043,000 (2019: RM366,000).

As disclosed in Note 22, BGMC Energy Sdn. Bhd., an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary entered into a shareholders’ agreement
for the investment of 45.1% equity interest in an associate
company, namely SPARK, a company incorporated in Cayman
Islands. Through the arrangement as disclosed in Note 22, it will
provide financing for Kuala Muda Project and Machang Project
(as defined in Note 22).

BGMC International Limited

8. Wz
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

8. Revenue, Income from Concession Agreements

and Segmental Information (continued)

(e) Segmentinformation

Information reported to the Executive Directors of the Group, being

the chief operating decision makers, for the purposes of resource

allocation and assessment of segment performance focuses on types

of services provided. This is the basis on which the Group is organised.

Specifically, the Group's operating and reportable segments under

IFRS 8 “Operating Segments” are as follows:

(i)

(i)

(iv)

(vi)

Building and structures — provision of construction services in
building and structural construction works;

Energy infra-structure — provision of construction services in
energy transmission and distribution works;

Mechanical and electrical — provision of construction services in
mechanical and electrical installation works;

Earthworks and infra-structure — provision of construction
services in earthworks and infrastructure construction works;

Concession and maintenance — provision of development and
construction services under REPPA; and

Concession and maintenance — provision of construction
services under private finance initiative and related post-
construction property management services in relation to
the maintenance of the related facilities and infrastructure
(discontinued operation).

In addition to the above reportable segments, the Group has certain

operating segments (including supply and installation of elevators;

and investment in solar power infrastructure business) that do not

meet any of the quantitative thresholds for determining reportable

segments. These operating segments are grouped under “Others”

segment.

e B mRME
For the year ended 30 September 2020
B ZE2020F9A30R L FE
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For the year ended 30 September 2020
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8. Revenue, Income from Concession Agreements
and Segmental Information (continued)

8. Wm (HHHBERARDIABESR
(%)

(e) Segment information (continued) (e) DEPERI(ME)
Segment Revenue (continued) e (&)
External segment revenue includes revenue and income from SNES DM B IR G A B E N AR
concession agreements as presented in the consolidated statement of AKFT25 WS Ba R o
profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
Segment results represents the profit of each segment without DEEEIITESEABRWRARRAS - &
allocation of corporate income and expenses, other losses, and HEBRITERESS %R - kA
income tax expenses. This is the measure reported to the chief FEROEERBEFEEMNEEBLEER
operating decision makers for the purposes of resource allocation and REZWAETE o
performance assessment.
The total segment revenue can be reconciled to the revenue as DN BRE T EN GRAER N EMEE
presented in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other WA 2T LR T -
comprehensive income as follows:
2020 2019
RM’000 RM'000
FHER THER
Total segment revenue D EBU R AR KR 369,617 435,703
Less: Inter-segment revenue W D E R (11,795) (39,204)
Less: Income from concession agreements B BRI (3,043) (366)
Less: Income from discontinued operation B BARIEEEER 2 WA (53,195) (52,777)
Revenue from continuing operations as presented #r& 1825 M HM 2 EUARFTZ5
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss RERBLEEBFHWE
and other comprehensive income 301,584 343,356
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8.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e M ERRMEE
For the year ended 30 September 2020
HZE2020F9 8300 [FFE

W HHHBBERARDBER
(#&)

Revenue, Income from Concession Agreements 8.
and Segmental Information (continued)

Geographical information

No geographical segment information is presented as the Group's revenue
is all derived from Malaysia based on the location of trading and services
delivered and the Group’s non-current assets are located in Malaysia by
physical location of assets.

Information about major customers

Revenue from customers individually contributing over 10% of the total

I E R

A

AR B Wz 2 B 2K

KRR A B - I
MAEEEREEEMN SR (REEEN

g

RELE) ©

FREEEFNESR

BS KA AREES
E25|MIR D EEF

MARFEBEAEERDZBT10%A ENEP

revenue of the Group during the year are as follows: WESIT -
2020 2019
RM’'000 RM'000
FHER FHRE R
Customer A (a) ZEA®Q) 30,347 49,034
Customer B (a) ZFB@) 39,773 55,127
Customer C (a) BPFC@) = 47,651
Customer D (a) ZFED(@) 52,745 50,568
Customer E (b) BEFEW®) 111,111 4,326
Customer F (¢) ZEF(© 36,159 -

(a) These customers are from the building and structures segment.

JHE

EFREBTRAEEDE

(b)  These customers are from the concession and maintenance segment. b) ZHERPHRAFHFFEEERBEDT -
(©  These customers are from energy-infrastructure segment. © HEZPEREERERSE -
Other Income 9. HA
2020 2019
RM’'000 RM'000
FHERE FhER
Bank interest income RITH BUA 1,564 2,284
Extra work other than the contract Fra #ISNRRSN TR 436 216
Rental income HEWA 16 856
Others EAh, 526 546
2,542 3,902
Representing: NEIBIEG
Continuing operations SIE BT 1,901 3,123
Discontinued operation (Note 16) BRI E R (Kt 16) 641 779
2,542 3,902
Fi8 2020 FEFIERERERAA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e EHRRME

For the year ended 30 September 2020

HZE2020F9 8308 [FFE

10. Impairment Losses of Financial Assets and Contract 10. 2RI EER SN EE 2 REFETF

Assets, Net and Other Losses, Net BEREMERFRRE
(@) Impairment losses of financial assets and contract assets, (a) TREERGHNEEZREBETHE
net
2020 2019
RM’'000 RM'000
FHER FRE R
(Impairment losses)/reversal of impairment CRIEEE) SRERIERED
loss on:
Trade receivables (Note 25) g S WG (M it25) (13,440) (293)
Other receivables (Note 25) HAb EWGRIR (it 25) - (1,500)
Contract assets (Note 30) BHEEMEE30) (19,222) 30
(32,662) (1,763)
Representing: ToIEIEG ¢
Continuing operations FHEICE T (32,662) (1,763)
Discontinued operation (Note 16) BRI ERE (Mt 16) = -
(32,662) (1,763)
(b) Other losses, net (b) HtEEFEE
2020 2019
RM’'000 RM'000
FHER FRER
Impairment of goodwill (Note 21) RERE (T E21) (2,155) (4,757)
Net gain/(loss) on derivatives PTET RS/ (F18)F5E 335 (335)
Realised gain on foreign exchange B2 IR N Y = 29
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment HEWIE - ME M &2 Wi 763 247
Gain on disposal of right-of-use assets EEFAEEE = 531 -
Impairment of property, plant and W - R NERERE(HL8)
equipment (Note 18) (11,620) -
Impairment of right-of-use assets (Note 19) EREEEREAEI9) (12,016) -
Unrealised (loss)/gain on foreign exchange REIRINE (F518), WS (460) 735
Loss of performance bond ERBLORES (25,797) -
(50,419) (4,081)
Representing: T3 EIE ¢
Continuing operations SECE T (50,419) (4,081)
Discontinued operation (Note 16) BRI E B (Mt 16) = -
(50,419) (4,081)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRI
For the year ended 30 September 2020
BZE20205F9 A30H IEFE
11. Finance Costs 11. & KA
2020 2019
RM’000 RM'000
FHEH FHRE R
Interest on: AT EIENFE
Borrowings ==y 17,385 18,198
Lease liabilities HEaE 1,639 -
Obligations under finance leases BhE S RE = 787
19,024 18,985
Representing: ToIEIEG ¢
Continuing operations SEICE R 6,661 4,089
Discontinued operation (Note 16) BRI ERE (it 16) 12,363 14,896
19,024 18,985
12. Income Tax Expense/(Credit) 12, FiiEHifx(E%)
2020 2019
RM’'000 RM'000
FHER TS
(Restated)
(5g=E3)
Malaysia corporate income tax: TS RPASE (R RPN
Current year KEE 3,598 4,469
Under-provision/(Over-provision) in prior years BEFEEETR(BEEE) 2,020 (1,049)
5,618 3,420
Deferred tax (Note 26): RIEFRIE (M a26)
Current year KEFE 6,269 (1,466)
Under-provision in prior years BTFERETR - 310
6,269 (1,156)
11,887 2,264
Representing: THIFIE
Continuing operations SIEIC T 5,644 (4,924)
Discontinued operation (Note 16) BRI E TS (Mt 16) 6,243 7,188
11,887 2,264
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BRI

For the year ended 30 September 2020

BZE2020F9 A30H IEFE
12. Income Tax Expense/(Credit) (continued) 12, Fri8fif s (%) (&)
Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting profit at REREEAESERNIREARRTEZ
the applicable tax rate: ¥ER :
A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to loss before tax using the QR R ERE DM BB A R AR B FEFT i
applicable rates for the regions in which the Company and the majority of ARERAENBRFAEEERFER Y BIRE
its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax expense at the effective tax rate is as BRF R E R IER L AR T ¢
follows:
2020 2019
RM’000 RM'000
FHEH FHRE R
Loss before tax M TR EE (186,370) (53,012)
Statutory tax rate in Malaysia S RFE R H R e R 24% 24%
Tax at the weighted average tax rate TR DNRE SR R BN Y TR 18 (44,729) (12,723)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses AR AS RS E 59,935 2,151
Income not subject to tax EEZEE LN (37,754) (409)
Deferred tax assets not recognised AIERRIRIEFIEE & 32,415 13,984
Underprovision/(overprovision) of estimate BEFEEETSRE B
tax expense in prior years TR/ (FREarE) 2,020 (1,049)
Underprovision of deferred tax liabilities in prior years i@ FEIELEFIEE EERET T - 310
11,887 2,264
Malaysia corporate income tax is calculated at the statutory tax rate on the BRAREMSHEINESERMEE 2 (EHE
estimated assessable profits for each assessable year. JERBUE R B EERERFE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e IR

For the year ended 30 September 2020

BZE20205F9 A30H IEFE
13. Loss for the Year 13. FEEE
The Group’s profit/loss for the year is stated after charging/(crediting) the AEBBOFERERN BRSNS, (GEA) T
following: &BIE
2020 2019
RM’'000 RM'000
FHER FRE R
Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 24) | EEEE (M iH24) 776 1,742
Auditor's remuneration ZEaME
Audit services EZ RIS 446 446
Non-audit services FEEEET AR 396 -
Cost of sales and services SHE MARTE A A 378,245 361,059
Depreciation charge of: THEENERE
Property, plant and equipment (Note 18) M - R NGRE(ET8) 3,414 83817
Right-of-use assets (Note 19) EREEENZ19) 6,646 -
Impairment of property, plant and equipment (Note 18) ¥ ~ iR K s ERE (L 18) 11,620 2,601
Impairment of right-of-use assets (Note 19) EREEERE(AE19) 12,016 -
Bad debts written off, net i sH AR EE = 985
Property, plant and equipment written off WsEE - WE kA - 9
Gain on disposal of property, plant HEWE - BE REE =
and equipment (Note 18) (Hi7£18) (763) (247)
Impairment loss on non-current assets held for sale BIEHE ZIEREEERRIERIE 11,150 -
Minimum lease payments under operating leases KEHYN T 2 HEES AR - 870
Staff costs including directors’ emoluments BINA(BREEEHE)
— Wages and salaries —IEKFS 21,704 30,074
— Employees Provident Fund —EERER 2,400 3419
24,104 33,493

5§ 2020 EFERRERERATR
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e EHRRME

For the year ended 30 September 2020

HZE2020F9 8308 [FFE

14. Directors’ Chief Executive and Employee’s Remuneration 14. 5 - B {THAEREE#M S

The emoluments of each director were as follows: BEEMEWT
2020
Basic salaries, Contribution
allowance to defined
Directors’  and benefits Bonus  contribution
Fees inkind (Note a) plan Total
BERHH RE
EER 4 T E
EEne ENEAN (fita) R am
RM'000 RM’000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
THES THES THES THES THES
Executive director HITES
Tan Sri Dato' Si Goh Ming Choon (Noteb) T ESBHERBE (H/:b) - 120 - - 120
Dato' Teh Kok Lee (Note ¢) S BEEF|(Hac) - 296 = 32 328
Dato" Mohd Arifin Bin Mohd Arif 2B Mohd Arifin Bin Mohd Arif - 387 81 52 520
Ir. Azham Malik Bin Mohd Hashim (Noted) ~ Ir. Azham Malik Bin Mohd Hashim(#7:2d) - 26 20 3 49
Ching Hong Seng (Note ) BRAH(Hite) - 73 = 8 81
- 902 101 95 1,098
Non-executive director FHTES
Tan Sri Dato’ Seri Kong Cho Ha RS ERETEE 13 - - - 13
Chan May May (Note /) REE () 113 - - - 113
Ng Yuk Yeung (Note g) RIBG(Hizg) 89 - - - 89
Kua Choh Leang (Note h) & Hn) 24 - - = 24
Datuk Kamalul Arifin Bin Othman (Note ) 28 Kamalul Arifin Bin Othman (/%) - - - - -
339 - - - 339
339 902 101 95 1,437
2019
Basic salaries Contribution
allowance to defined
and benefits Bonus  contribution
Directors' Fees in kind (Note a) plan Total
EAREHMN RE
EER 4L HRETE
EEkn BER (Hiita) M &%
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
THEE THEE THERE THER THER
Executive director HTES
Tan Sri Dato' Si Goh Ming Choon (Noteb) T ESBH B REE (H/:2b) - 474 - - 474
Dato’ Teh Kok Lee (Note ¢) SEREA (M) - 491 - 38 529
Dato" Mohd Arifin Bin Mohd Arif 2B Mohd Arifin Bin Mohd Arif - 640 75 50 765
Ir. Azham Malik Bin Mohd Hashim (Noted) ~Ir. Azham Malik Bin Mohd Hashim(#/z2d) - 280 - 15 295
- 1,885 75 103 2,063
Non-executive director FHTES
Tan Sri Dato' Seri Kong Cho Ha REeEREIEE 114 - - - 114
Chan May May (Note REX(Hitr) 114 - - - 114
Ng Yuk Yeung (Note g) RIBR(Hitg) 114 - - - 14
342 - - - 342
342 1,885 75 103 2405
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

14. Directors’ Chief Executive and Employee’s Remuneration

(continued)

Notes:

(a) Bonus are determined based on the results of the Group and/or performance of
directors.

(b)  Tan Sri Dato’ Sri Goh Ming Choon resigned on 7 October 2020.
() Dato’ Teh Kok Lee is the chief executive officer of the Group, and his emoluments
disclosed above include those for services rendered by him as the chief executive

officer.

(d)  Ir. Azham Malik bin Mohd Hashim resigned on 16 July 2020.

(e)  Ching Hong Seng was appointed on 16 July 2020.
) Chan May May resigned on 7 October 2020.

(@) Ng Yuk Yeung resigned on 3 July 2020.

(h)  Kua Choh Leang was appointed on 3 July 2020.

(i) Datuk Kamalul Arifin Bin Othman was appointed on 7 October 2020.

The executive directors’ emoluments shown were mainly for their services
in connection with the management of the affairs of the Group and the
Company. The non-executive directors' emoluments were for their services
as directors of the Company.

Employees

The five highest paid employees of the Group during the year included
two (2019: three) existing directors, details of whose emoluments are set
out above. Details of the emoluments of the remaining three (2019: two)
highest paid employees who are neither an existing director nor chief
executive of the Company for the year ended 30 September 2020 and 30
September 2019 are as follows:

e B mRME
For the year ended 30 September 2020
B ZE2020F9A30R L FE

14. B2 - BETHRAEBRESME (E)

Hitt -

(@ TEALVRBAEBENEEN SEBEERBTET -

() FHETE=EEE RBEENR2020F 10778 EHE °

© EZEBENRAEETRAR MELXAKE
S B REEETRE SRR HREHOMSE

(d)  Ir. Azham Malik bin Mohd Hashim#202047 A 16 H &f
Fo

€ BREWIEER2020F7R16ABET -
) BREZEM20205F10 A7HEHTE ©

(@ RBFER20205F7 A3HEHTE -

(h  FATER2020F7A3AERIT -

()  =EKamalul Arifin Bin Othman’20205E10 A7 B EZ
Fo

HITESHFH T2 RARERREHERERR
SEEARREHORBAGME - JFRTE
EZHENIRREERARBESIRERG
Z S H

(==

REERAFENRAETSHHNEEBEME
(2019F « =Z)BHAES  EFBFBHRT
X o BN =4(2019%F : WA &= BiES (I
FEARNARIESSHERITIAL)EZE20205F
9A308 20199 A308 I FERMF IS H
FEAT -

2020 2019

RM’'000 RM'000

FHERE FhER

Basic salaries, allowances and benefits in kind HAREW - ZEL R EYWEF 748 602
Bonus TEAT - -
Contributions to defined contribution plan FTEHFGTEIM R 90 71
838 673
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e EHRRME

For the year ended 30 September 2020

HZE2020F9 8308 [FFE

14. Directors’ Chief Executive and Employee’s Remuneration
(continued)

Employees (continued)

The emoluments fell within the following band:

14. B2 - BETHRAEBRESME (E)

BE (&)
BRI A MR EI R

Number of individuals

AB
2020 2019
Nil to HK$1,000,000 (equivalent to RM536,000) 221,000,000 7T
(A& PA536, 000/ 4F) 3 2

During both years, no emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the
directors or the five highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or
upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office. None of the
directors waived any emoluments during both years.

15. Dividends

The Directors do not recommend any dividends payment in respect of the
current reporting period.

16

Discontinued Operation

On 16 November 2020, BGMC Corporation Sdn. Bhd. (the “Seller”), being
an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a
share purchase agreement (the “Share Purchase Agreement ) with AB
Concession Venture Sdn. Bhd. (the “Purchaser”’), pursuant to which the
Seller will sell 100% equity interest in KAS Engineering Sdn. Bhd. ("KAS
Engineering’) to the Purchaser at a consideration of RM93,787,000 (the
"Disposal’).

KAS Engineering is engaged in concession with the government of Malaysia
for the construction of a university building, and building maintenance
service provider for the said university building.

The Purchaser was held by Tan Sri Dato’ Sri Goh Ming Choon (“Tan Sri
Barry Goh") as to 75% and Dato’ Mohd Arifin bin Mohd Arif ("Dato’
Arifin") as to 25% as at the date of the Share Purchase Agreement. While
the Purchaser is expected to continue to be wholly owned by Tan Sri Barry
Goh and Dato’ Arifin, the share percentage ratio might be subject to further
changes as agreed between Tan Sri Barry Goh and Dato’ Arifin from time to
time.
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AB Concession Venture Sdn. Bhd. ([ B 1) 5] 32
ERimnE(BRBE]) - Bt EAUKE
93,787,000# & M B 75 1 & FAKAS Engineering
Sdn. Bhd.([ KAS Engineering | ) )% 3 B2 ([
EEHE]) -

KAS Engineering# 8 B2 K2 EE & s Lt X
SR SR IR SIS ARG B0 15 2R 0 S5 BURT R T
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

16. Discontinued Operation (continued)

Tan Sri Barry Goh is the controlling shareholder of the Company who has
resigned as director of the Company on 7 October 2020 while Dato’ Arifin is
the executive director of the Company.

The completion of the Disposal is subject to shareholders’ approval and
other conditions (the “Completion”). Upon the Completion of the Disposal,

the Group discontinued part of its concession and maintenance business.

The results of the discontinued operation for the years ended 30 September

RE B RRHE
For the year ended 30 September 2020
B ZE2020F9A30R L FE

16. ERILEE XK ()

FHHTE SRR AR AL E - RN 20206
VA7HBREARFIES - MEBAIfInBEAR
RIAITEE -

H & E TR TR AR IR/ FOZ R E A R 1R
FRE( xR - REEBHETKE - A%
AR FE BB AR MBS o

AELE 20208 N 2019F9 308 IEFE » B4&IE

2020 and 2019, which have been included in consolidated profit or loss, are BB D AL S8R 25T
as follows:
2020 2019
RM’000 RM'000
FHEH FHRE R
Revenue g 11,514 10,382
Cost of sales HE R A (10,117) (6,404)
Gross profit EF 1,397 3978
Income from concession agreements SR EALON 41,681 42,395
Other income Hab A 641 779
Administrative expenses THAX (6,300) (7,765)
Profit from operations gyl 37,419 39,387
Finance costs & A (12,363) (14,896)
Profit before tax R A58 A 25,056 24,491
Income tax expense e (6,243) (7,188)
Profit for the year REE S F 18,813 17,303
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e EHRRME

For the year ended 30 September 2020

HZE2020F9 8308 [FFE

17. Loss Per Share

(a) From continuing and discontinued operations

Basic loss per share

The calculation of basic loss (2019: loss) per share attributable to
owners of the Company is based on the loss for the year attributable
to owners of the Company of approximately RM193,543,000 (2019:
loss of approximately RM53,063,000) and the weighted average
number of ordinary shares of 1,800,000,000 (2019: 1,800,000,000) in

issue during the year.

Diluted loss per share

The calculation of diluted loss per share attributable to owners of
the Company is based on the loss for the year attributable to owners
of the Company of approximately RM193,543,000 (2019: loss of
approximately RM53,063,000) and the weighted average number
of ordinary shares of 1,800,000,000 (2019: 1,800,000,000) and the
weighted average number of ordinary shares assumed to have been
issued at no consideration on the deemed exercise of all dilutive
potential ordinary shares under the share award scheme and share
option scheme outstanding at the end of the reporting period.

There is no diluted earnings per share in 2020 and 2019 as there is no
potential dilutive shares during the respective reporting period.

(b) From continuing operations

Basic loss per share

The calculation of basic loss (2019: loss) per share from continuing
operations attributable to owners of the Company is based on the
profit for the year from continuing operations attributable to owners
of the Company of approximately RM201,206,000 (2019: loss of
approximately RM70,366,000) and the denominator used is the same

as that detailed above for basic loss per share.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

17. Loss Per Share (continued)

(b) From continuing operations (continued)

()

Diluted loss per share

The calculation of diluted earnings per share from continuing
operations attributable to owners of the Company is based on the
profit for the year from continuing operations attributable to owners
of the Company of approximately RM201,206,000 (2019: loss of
approximately RM70,366,000) and the denominator used is the same
as that detailed above for diluted loss per share.

There is no diluted earnings per share in 2020 and 2019 as there is no
potential dilutive shares during the respective reporting period.

From discontinued operation

Basic earnings per share from the discontinued operation is RM0.43
sen per share (2019: RM0.96 sen per share) and diluted earnings per
share from the discontinued operation is RM0.43 sen (2019: RM0.96
sen) per share, based on the profit for the year from discontinued
operation attributable to the owners of the Company of approximately
RM7,663,000 (2019: profit of approximately RM17,303,000) and the
denominators used are the same as those detailed above for both
basic and diluted earnings per share.

There is no diluted earnings per share in 2020 and 2019 as there is no
potential dilutive shares during the respective reporting period.

e B mRME
For the year ended 30 September 2020
B ZE2020F9A30R L FE

17. BRE R (&)

(b) REFELEXER(H)

(c)

BREEER

AAREBABEREBELCEELZ
BREFRFNFAEDERARRIESR
ABEREFELEEB 2FREN
#7201,206,000 7k & ' (20194 : BB A
70,366,0008 2 15 ) I A 64 59 AR 8 S8 /&5 18 4R
R D& (FHER L3O E -

HR2020%F R2019F S EE AT - T
A B RS B B e n SRR S -

REBRILEEXRK

REDRIECEEBHNERERZN AT
f%043 M E 5 (20194F + BHR0.96 M F 4
DIRREBRIMHEEERNTREER
A AEFR43IME RS (20194 : 0.96MFEH
) ERARREEABEREER
LA ZE TG RO A5 A1) 497,663,000 2 45
(20194 : % F%917,303,0000K 5 45 ) I F B2
EREAREERFNARNS T (FFIBR
EXOFE -

PA2020%F R2019F BB EHE AR - T)
B F B R 5 HAR B 1 n] BEEAR (D -
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e B RRME
For the year ended 30 September 2020
B ZE2020F9A30R L FE
18. Property, Plant and Equipment 18. Y13 - MERRK®E
Furnitureand Computersand Machinery and Motor Office
fittings software site equipment vehicles equipment Total
GERZE  EEREH BERSHRE RE  BAERE 2
RM000 RM000 RM000 RM'000 RM'000 RM000
THER THER THER THER THER THER
Cost A
At 1 October 2018 #2018F10A1H 209 1534 54,255 4798 220 61,016
Additions NE - 1 2,020 251 - 2282
Disposals e - - (480) (209) - (689)
Write offs HER - - (12 - @) (15
At 30 September 2018 and 1 October 2019 R2018E9A308 &
2019F10A18 209 1,545 55783 4840 217 62,5%
Transfer to right-of-use assets ERFRELSE - - (32,083) (1934) - (34017)
Additions AE - 61 58 - - 119
Disposals HE - (69) (456) (1,950) - (2475)
Transfer to non-current assets held for sale EEERERE 2 EREEE 29 (80) - (15) (79) (202)
At 30 September 2020 #2020F9A30H 180 1457 23302 941 139 26019
Accumulated depreciation ZIIE
At1October 2018 R018%F10A18 4 687 11937 2640 4 15351
Charge for the year FRRX % 453 7204 1,090 2% 8817
Disposals e - - (80) (146) - (226)
Wite offs HER - - @ - 2 (0)
At 30 September 2018 and 1 October 2019 1201859 A308 2
2019E10A18 67 1,140 19077 3584 68 23936
Transfer to right-of-use assets BERCEREEE - - (12471) (839) - (13310)
Charge for the year FRER 23 394 2912 68 17 3414
Disposals e - (37) (437) (1,859) - (2333)
Transfer to non-current assets held for sale  EREHEHE 7 IEREEE (18) (51) - (19) (60) (144)
At 30 September 2020 720209 4308 72 1446 9,081 939 25 11,563
Accumulated impairment losses ZHRERR
At 1 October 2018 01861018 - - - - - -
Impairment e - - 2601 - - 2601
At30 September 2018 and 1 January 2019 R2018E9A308 K
20191 A1 - - 2601 - - 2601
Impairment (Note 10(b) REE ) - - 11620 - - 11620
At 30 September 2020 12020F9A308 - - 14,221 - - 14,221
Carrying amount BEE
At 30 September 2020 12020930 108 11 - 2 114 235
At 30 September 2019 #2019F9A30H 142 405 34105 1,256 149 36,057
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

18. Property, Plant and Equipment (continued)

The Group carried out reviews of the recoverable amount of its plant and
machinery in 2020 and 2019 as a result of the deterioration of the markets
of the Group's products. These assets are used in the Group's building and
structures segment. The reviews led to the recognition of an impairment
loss of approximately RM11,620,000 (2019: RM2,601,000), that has been
recognised in profit or loss. The recoverable amount of the relevant assets
of approximately RM235,000 (2019: RM36,057,000) has been determined on
the basis of their value in use using discounted cash flow method.

The carrying amount of property, plant and equipment of the Group
held under finance leases as at 30 September 2019 is approximately
RM20,707,000.

e B mRME
For the year ended 30 September 2020
B ZE2020F9A30R L FE

18. 9% - BEKRE (&)

BARAREERMSERER - AEEBERK
5 K % 88 FA 2020 22019 F K AT U Bl £ 58 © %
EEERARAEBNEFREES P - ZR
51 5| BB B E B 18 47 11,620,0000K 5 45 (2019
F 02601000 ER)  ERERER - 5H
B 2 A U (0] & B8 49 235,000 F 45 (20194
36,057,000/ F 1F) T ER HEEEIZFERRIRIA

TREEETE °
AEBP019FIA0BRERMELERTAFN

Y% - BB MR EREREE L 520,707,000k
1 o
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e B RRME
For the year ended 30 September 2020
B ZE2020F9A30R L FE

19. Right-of-Use Assets

19. EREEE

Disclosures of lease-related items: THERRAIE B A5 -
2020
RM’000
FTHER
At 30 September: Mo A308 :
Right-of-use assets FREEE
Land and buildings T REF 18,638
Motor vehicles VRE 256
18,894
Lease commitments of short-term leases EHHE R EAE 616
The maturity analysis, based on undiscounted cash flows, REAEEHEEEZRERRERE
of the Group's lease liabilities is as follows: EMBEAD T T ¢
Less than 1 year —F LA 4,619
Between 1 and 2 years —EMF 2,552
Between 2 and 5 years —“EHF 6,536
Over 5 years AFEUE 16,950
30,657
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets FREEENTERY
Land and buildings T REF 1,965
Motor vehicles VRE 607
Machinery and site equipment A N2 35 4 5% 4,074
6,646
Lease interests MERE 1,639
Expenses related to short-term leases LGNV g 878
Total cash outflow for leases HERS ML AR 9,163
Disposal of right-of-use assets BEFRAEEE 2,565
Impairment of right-of-use assets (Note 10(b)) EREEEREHZF100b) 12,016
The Group leases various land and buildings, machinery and site equipment AEBHESHEL M RIET B RIGHRE
and motor vehicles. Lease agreements are typically made for fixed URAE - HEHRBE R2E15FHEE H
periods of 2 to 15 years. Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis MR o MEGERIIREREEERS  UEEEE
and contain a wide range of different terms and conditions. The lease T EME R R M o T8 & 15 3% 30 18 5 00 (F (] 22
agreements do not impose any covenants and the leased assets may not # - BHEEETSRERRHERR -

be used as security for borrowing purposes.
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RE B RRHE
For the year ended 30 September 2020
B ZE2020F9A30R L FE
20. Investment Properties 20. BEYE
Investment
properties
under Investment
construction properties Total
EEREWHE REMHE BE
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
FHER FHERE THER
At 1 October 2018 2018510 A1H - - -
Additions NE 507 - 507
At 30 September 2019 and 1 October 2019 F2201999 8308 K%20195F1081H 507 - 507
Additions NE - 25,000 25,000
At 30 September 2020 #20205F9 4301 507 25,000 25,507
Goodwill 21. &
2020 2019
RM’000 RM'000
FHER THER
At beginning of year REY) 2,155 6,912
Impairment during the year (Note 10(b)) FERRIEATZFEI00)) (2,155) (4,757)
At end of year RER - 2,155

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Goodwill arising from business combination has been allocated to the

following cash-generating units ("CGU").

(TREEELEM]) -

KEXGAHNBECOEENTREELE

2020 2019
RM’000 RM'000
FHER TSR
BGMC Corporation Sdn. Bhd. ('BGMC Corporation”) BGMC Corporation Sdn. Bhd.
(BGMC Corporation |) - 2,155

As at 30 September 2020, the Directors performed a review of the
recoverable amount of goodwill and concluded that the recoverable
amount pertaining to the CGU of BGMC Corporation was less than its
carrying amount plus goodwill allocated. Accordingly, the related goodwill

had been impaired and recognised in the profit or loss of RM2,155,000 (2019: MEHF(2019%F : 4,757,000 F 4 ) °

RM4,757,000) had been impaired.

3§ 2020 BEBRERERERAR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR RRME

For the year ended 30 September 2020

BZE2020F9 A30H IEFE
21. Goodwill (continued) 21. BHE (&)
The recoverable amount of the CGU has been determined on the basis of BEEABMNAWRESEDIREREETE
value in use calculations. These calculations use cash flow projections based BT ZitEAENBEEEMLENRE
on financial budgets approved by the directors covering a 2-year period B3(2019%F : MEM)MBBEEFERBE S REE
(2019: 2-year period). The cash flows from the third to fifth year period B E=FHEZFRAFHNRSREIRES
are prepared based on best estimate of the Directors taking into account (Z<<<%FIEﬁEHX?%/m\,Z’j&§ﬂ;ZHﬂFﬁ EES RIS
existing secured contracts and estimation of contracts to be secured during A#1) (2019 : AERSA K R EZ M
that period (2019: existing secured contracts and estimation of contracts to H—JHX SHEETE ) M REEEHEL -
be secured during that period.).
The key assumptions for the value in use calculations as at the end of the RARERARGEABEFENERRRLOT
reporting period are as follows:
2020 2019
Growth rate Growth rate
for cash flows Discount  for cash flows Discount
between third rate Dbetween third rate
and fifth years applied and fifth years applied
E=FHE F=FHZE
ERFHN FHEHR
HeRg A WemE FTER A HY
BRE BRIR = ERE BLIR
CGU REEEEN
BGMC Corporation BGMC Corporation 1.90% 12.88% 1.90% 12.88%
(a) Growth rate (a) ERZ

The growth rate is forecasted after considering factors like general

market conditions, industry-specific and other relevant information

and does not exceed the average long-term growth rate for the

relevant industry.

(b) Discountrate

The discount rate applied to the cash flow projections are pre-tax and

reflect the weighted average cost of capital of the CGU.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR R MR

For the year ended 30 September 2020

HZE2020F9 8300 [FFE
22. Investment in Associates 22, REEE N TINVIRE
2020 2019
RM’000 RM'000
THERE THER

Investment in associates: RESE R AR E
At cost (RM2) B E OMEE)

Particulars of the associates are as follows:

BrE A RIFBEIIENT

Percentage of
Place of BA
establishment/ Paid-in/ Ownership interest/
Name registration issued capital  Voting power/ Profit sharing  Principal activities
Rl B BT FrEEER
=L REHE &S RERE BRI FEXK
2020 2019
Sparks Energy International Limited Cayman Islands RM2 45.1% 45.1%  Investment holding
("SPARK") (a)
Sparks Energy International Limited GESA= REH WA
([SPARK]) (3)
Machang Estate Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia - - - Property investment
("Machang Estate”) (b)
Machang Estate Sdn. Bhd. BIRA D - MERE
(Machang Estate) (b)
Machang Estate (II) Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia - - - Property investment
("Machang Estate Il) (b)
Machang Estate (Il) Sdn. Bhd. SRR - MERE

([Machang Estate Il ]) (b)

The financial statements of these associates are audited by auditor other
than the auditors of the Company.

A ERE N AR T IRR B AR R R ERAD LASD
EAZ BB

3§ 2020 BEBRERERERAR
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e EHRRME

For the year ended 30 September 2020

HZE2020F9 8308 [FFE

22. REENTINRE (8)

22. Investment in Associates (continued)

(a) SPARK (a) SPARK

Pursuant to a shareholders’ agreement dated 29 August 2019
entered into by BGMC Energy Sdn. Bhd., an indirect wholly owned
subsidiary, the Group subscribed 45.1% equity interest in a newly set
up company, namely Sparks Energy International Limited, a company
incorporated in Cayman Islands.

The principal objective of SPARK is to conduct the business of
investing in and managing the special purpose vehicle established
as wholly owned subsidiaries of SPARK in providing comprehensive
management services in relation to the development, financing,
construction, operation and maintenance of renewable energy power
plants, including the Kuala Muda Project and Machang Project (as
defined in (b)), investing and financing in renewable energy power
projects and such other business activities.

SPARK issued USD21.43 million (equivalent to approximately RM88.5
million) non-voting class 1 preference shares to DPI Solar 1 Pte Ltd, a
company incorporated in Singapore and a corporate shareholder of
SPARK for the purpose of financing the development and construction
of the Kuala Muda Project and Machang Project.

In connection with the shareholders’ agreement, BGMC Energy Sdn.
Bhd. also entered into an option agreements with each of the two
shareholders, namely BV Energy Sdn. Bhd. and Idiga Energy Sdn. Bhd,,
being companies incorporated in Malaysia. Pursuant to the option
agreements, BGMC Energy Sdn. Bhd. is granted the option to acquire
up to 2.5% equity interest in SPARK held by BV Energy Sdn. Bhd. and
Idiga Energy Sdn. Bhd., respectively. Each of the call option is granted
at a nominal value of HK$10 to BGMC Energy Sdn. Bhd..

The directors performed an assessment on the fair value measurement
of the call options and concluded that the fair value is not material.

Pursuant to the abovementioned shareholders’ agreement, a capital
commitment in the sum of approximately RM88.5 million is expected
to be contributed by the shareholders through the issuance of
ordinary shares in SPARK and other forms of financing in accordance
with the agreed proportion for the purpose of funding the Kuala
Muda Project and Machang Project.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR RME
For the year ended 30 September 2020
B ZE2020F9A30R L FE
22. Investment in Associates (continued) 22, RBE N RINIRE (&)
(a) SPARK (continued) (a) SPARK (&)
The capital commitment to be made by BGMC Energy Sdn. Bhd. BGMC Energy Sdn. Bhd. i#% 4R 45 A% B8 175 3% 1E
pursuant to the shareholders’ agreement is approximately RM39.9 H B R AVEA) 39908 BT 5 o 32K
million. This commitment is expected to be fully funded by a loan to PETEHAA DPI Solar (AT I3 sE A S M)A
be advanced by DPI Solar, a company incorporated in Singapore and AN PR E GO E R —Z IR ) B
also one of the shareholders to the abovementioned shareholders’ FARRRIHEZ([DPI Solar&E 5 ) 22
agreement, to the Company (‘Loan from DPI Solar”). BHED -
The cost of investment and the outstanding balance of Loan from DPI #HZE2020F9H30H & KA &DPI Solar
Solar as of 30 September 2020 is approximately RM2 (2019: RM2) and EFMBRED AR 2MERF (20194 -
RM7,766,000 (2019: RM22,596,000) (Note 36(d)), respectively. 2ME B ) K 7,766,000 #K F HF (20194 ¢

22,596,000 45) (F5E36(d)) ©

The summarised financial information of SPARK is set out below: SPARKZ A Z W IE E RPN T -
At 30 September: R9H30H
2020 2019
RM’'000 RM'000
FHER TMHER
Non-current assets ERBNEE 65,690 65,690
Current assets MENVEE 126,200 37,284
Current liabilities mEBaE (111,665) (14,733)
Net assets BEFE 80,225 88,241
Revenue Wz 1,728 -
Loss and total comprehensive loss for the year/period A, BiNE1E K & T 1B 4258 (8,016) (362)
Year ended 30 September: BZ9A30HLLFE :
2020 2019
RM’'000 RM'000
FHER THER
Net assets of SPARK SPARKZ B EFE 80,225 88,241
Excluding obligation for class 1 preference shares B IEFERIE LI 2 BT (88,603) (88,603)
(8,378) (362)
Proportion of the Group's interest in SPARK INEBFASPARK Z HEZS L 11 45.1% 45.1%
The Group’s share of net liabilities of SPARK R B E(GSPARKE B F R (3,778) (163)
The unrecognised share of loss for the year/period FNERRERELER (3,615) (163)
Cumulative unrecognised share of loss in SPARK RET AR IR E(GSPARKE 1B (3,778) (163)
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e EHRRME

For the year ended 30 September 2020

HZE2020F9 8308 [FFE

22. REENTINRE (8)

22. Investment in Associates (continued)

(b) Machang Estate and Machang Estate (l1) (b) Machang Estate and Machang Estate

On 25 July 2019, BGMC Holdings, an indirect wholly owned subsidiary,
entered into a subscription agreement with Kuala Muda Estate Sdn.
Bhd. ("Kuala Muda Estate”), Machang Estate and Machang Estate
(1) (collectively refers to “Land Companies”), respectively for the
subscription of 50% of RCPS in each of the Land Companies at a
total consideration of USD5,363,000 (equivalent to approximately
RM22,044,000).

The Land Companies are purchases of three pieces of land in Malaysia,
including the Kuala Muda land upon which the Kuala Muda Project
will be undertaken and the Machang Land upon which the Machang
Project (as defined below) will be undertaken.

Machang Project refers to the development of a 30MWa.c. solar
photovoltaic energy producing power plant on a piece of land
located at Daerah Jajahan Machang in Kelantan, Malaysia, which had
been awarded to Idiwan Solar Sdn Bhd, a company incorporated in
Malaysia.

The transactions had been completed as of 30 September 2019 and
the related salient features of redeemable convertible preference
shares (‘RCPS") are disclosed in Note 23.

As of 30 September 2020 and 2019, the conversion features of
the redeemable convertible preference shares in two of the Land
Companies, namely Machang Estate Sdn. Bhd. and Machang Estate
(1) Sdn. Bhd., (‘Machang Companies’) are currently exercisable. In
the event that the conversion being exercised, the Group has the
potential to own up to approximately 50% of Machang Companies. As
a result, the Company has concluded that it has significant influence
over Machang Companies and as such Machang Companies are also
the associates of the Group. However, these investments are not
accounted for using the equity method as the Group has not owned
any ordinary shares in Machang Companies as of 30 September 2020
and 2019.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR RME
For the year ended 30 September 2020
BZE20205F9 A30H IEFE
22. Investment in Associates (continued) 22, RBE N RINIRE (&)
(b) Machang Estate and Machang Estate (ll) (continued) (b) Machang Estate and Machang Estate
i (&)
The summarised financial information of Machang Companies which AEEW IR EHEARNEE AT
was not equity accounted for by the Group is set out below. WMEFERPEHLT -
At 30 September: A9H30H
2020 2019
RM’000 RM'000
FHEH FHRE R
Non-current assets ERBEE 26,199 24,472
Current assets MENEE 1,712 1,088
Current liabilities mENEE (17,795) (23,491)
Net assets BEFE 10,116 2,069
Revenue & 2,304 384
Loss and total comprehensive loss for the year/period A,/ BN E1E K& & &8
] (371) (1,760)

23. Investment in Redeemable Convertible Preference 23. ROELQ o EBELKRNIEE

Shares

2020 2019
RM’000 RM'000
FHEE FhER

Analysed for reporting purposes as: MEBREMSWTAE
Current assets MBEE 3,986 15431
Non-current assets EMENEE 1,708 6,613
Financial assets measured at FVTPL BAFEFABENSREE 5,694 22,044
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e EHRRME

For the year ended 30 September 2020

HZE2020F9 8308 [FFE

23. Investment in Redeemable Convertible Preference
Shares (continued)

Pursuant to a subscription agreement entered into by BGMC Holdings, an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary, the Group subscribed 50% of the RCPS
in each of the Land Companies for a total consideration of USD5,363,000
(equivalent to approximately RM22,044,000).

Land Companies will acquire land for lease to BGMC Bras Power Sdn. Bhd., a
subsidiary of the Group and Idiwan Solar Sdn. Bhd., a company incorporated
in Malaysia, for the development of solar photovoltaic energy production
plants in Malaysia, including the Kuala Muda Project and Machang Project.

The salient features of RCPS are as follows:

(@) the Land Companies shall issue and BGMC Holdings shall
subscribe the RCPS at the value of USD1 each for a total amount of
approximately USD5,363,000;

(b) any payment to be received by the Land Companies under this RCPS
shall be utilised solely for the purpose of purchasing of the land;

(c) subject to the availability of distributable profits, the RCPS shall yield
a fixed cumulative dividend of twenty percent (20%) per annum from
the date which the RCPS has been subscribed by BGMC Holdings;

(d) BGMC Holdings shall, at its option, be entitled to convert all or any part
of the RCPS into ordinary shares at any time after the Land Companies
having been registered as the landowner in the document of title
of the land on the basis of each RCPS being equivalent to 4 ordinary
shares. Such number of ordinary shares that issued on conversion
shall be credited as fully paid and rank pari passu in all respects with
the ordinary shares then in issue in the Land Companies;

(e)  the Land Companies may be entitled at any time at its sole discretion
cancel the RCPS and pay BGMC Holdings the cancellation payment, i.e.
principal and accrued interest;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

23. Investment in Redeemable Convertible Preference

Shares (continued)

()

BGMC Holdings shall have the right to receive notice of any general

meeting of the members and to attend such meeting but shall have

no right, unless otherwise permitted under Companies Act, 2016 in

Malaysia, to vote or to move or second any resolutions at any general

meeting of the Land Companies, except that BGMC Holdings shall

have one (1) vote for each RCPS fully paid up with conditions as stated

in the subscription agreement;

0]

(i)

(iif)

(iv)

(vi)

during such period as any Fixed RCPS Dividend or any part
thereof that has been declared for payment remains in arrear
and unpaid, such period starting from a date falling not later
than twelve (12) months after the due date of the relevant sum
of the Fixed RCPS Dividend;

upon any resolution which varies or is deemed to vary the rights
attached to the RCPS;

upon any resolution which creates or issues (i) shares ranking in
priority to or pari passu with the RCPS in relation to participation
in profits or assets of the Company or (ii) equity share capital
except for the RCPS which is not in all respects uniform with the
Ordinary Shares;

upon any resolution which would result in a change in the
dividend policy of the RCPS which deviates from the terms as set
out under this Agreement;

appointment of a receiver or an administrator over the
Company’s assets, and (in the case of voluntary liquidation) an
application for the appointment of a liquidator, determining
the liquidator's remuneration or making any other insolvency
decision whereby the Company may be wound up; or

upon any resolution for the winding up of the Company.

e B mRME
For the year ended 30 September 2020
B ZE2020F9A30R L FE

23. AA R ATERE K RVIRE (&)

BGMC Holdings 8 REUER I R AE I AR K
SRBEETHFEEEAS  HEEN T
NEMERIIRRE KGR R KB A M R
RER - RIFESKAT2016F R FES
1TEFA] - MBGMC HoldingsH8 st &A% & 412
A RE B AT EEIRMB ST IR S — (N R FRORRE -
BEREREFTH AR ;

() CEIREAIEE A E DR SR E LR
P BB E AT B0 0 A A4 R S RS
HERAEIR - BRAHIRE B AERAE E AT
BOAERELRRESHEIBAR
TZODEA AR R Fiest

(i) EFLRIEEE A IED A ERETR
PP A RERIE (L ADRZSR -

(i) HERBITORSEARFREMF
RAEO A EREERELEEES
B R F 4 2 1 B £ 3 () SR B AR (1
B IEAE 2 BT BB —
A BB 0 A] SR B S B MV E(DR AR

(iv) P REEEN ] A [ A] B A (8 ST A AR R
SR HIR B A B A5 35 P8 IR
MVE(REER -

V) BMARREEZETEEAIEEA
(B ERBRIEN) RREREIFR
A BEBRAF SR EAEAM
WRERTE (AIARBRIREER) + &

vi) BEAARBFROEMARSR -
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HZE2020F9 8308 [FFE

23. Investment in Redeemable Convertible Preference
Shares (continued)

() Inthe event of winding-up or return of capital of the Land Companies,
RCPS holders have the right to receive, in priority to holders of
ordinary shares, the cash payment in full of the subscription price of
the RCPS after the payment and discharge of all debts and liabilities
of the Land Companies and the costs of winding-up or such capital
reduction exercise;

(h)  RCPS holders shall have no voting rights save for matters relating to,
among others, the variation of the rights attached to RCPS, a change
in dividend policy, the creation of equity share capital except for
RCPS which is not in all aspects uniform with ordinary shares and the
winding-up of the Land Companies;

(i) Without the prior written consent of BGMC Holdings, the Land
Companies shall not, among others, sell, pledge, charge, mortgage,
transfer, dispose of or otherwise subject to any security interests or
encumbrances to any of its properties or assets, including the land;
and

() The RCPS is redeemable by Land Companies for cash based on

USD1.00 per RCPS at any time after the date of allotment and issue of
the RCPS.

During the year ended 30 September 2020, RM16,350,000 (2019: Nil) of
RCPS were redeemed.
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B ZE2020F9A30R L FE
24, Intangible Assets 24, B EE
Intangible
Intangible assets work-in-
assets progress Total
ETHRIR
BREE WEKEEE e
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
FHE R THE R TR E R
Cost 2%
At 1 October 2018 720185104 1H 35,148 - 35,148
Additions NE - 3,309 3,309
At 30 September 2019 7201989 H30H 35,148 3,309 38,457
Transfer e 2,760 (2,760) -
Disposal k= (1373) - (1373)
Transfer to non-current assets held for sale BEEEEIFHEHE 7 IERENEE (9,507) - (9,507)
At 30 September 2020 7202099 A30H 27,028 549 27,577
Accumulated amortisation B
At 1 October 2018 2018510411 23,880 - 23,880
Amortisaton for the year AN EHESH 1,742 - 1,742
At 30 September 2019 201949 A30H 25,622 - 25,622
Amortisaton for the year REF 776 - 776
Transfer to non-current assets held for sale R ZEIH{EHE 2 IERBIEE (2,377) - (2,377)
At 30 September 2019 720199 H30H 24021 - 24,021
Net book value BREFE
At 30 September 2020 7202059 H30H 3,007 549 3,556
At 30 September 2019 7201959 H30H 9,526 3,309 12,835

The Group's intangible assets, which arose from acquisition of subsidiaries,
have finite useful lives, mainly consisting of the following:

(i)

(i)

Rights on construction contract amounting to approximately
RM 1,897,000 (2019: RM1,920,000) represents right on the unbilled
portion of construction contracts secured when BGMC Holdings, an
indirect subsidiary acquired its subsidiaries in 2016 and are billable
upon completion of the construction work in subsequent years. The
amortisation period ranges from 4 to 5 years as determined based on
the progress to complete the construction work; and

Rights to management service income amounting to approximately
RM Nil (2019: RM7,606,000) represents right to receive management
service income from a concession agreement to carrying out the
property management services on a university. The amortisation
period is 20 years.

Intangible assets work-in-progress represents accounting and project
software under development.

BARA A FHRRE KB E AR M AE
BENEETZBEN NEIA

0]

(i)

#91,897,000 #K 7 HF (20194 : 1,920,000 #k
HRE)NEESWENTIEMERB R R
BGMC Holdings 20164 Yk 5 EFff B /A B16F
BMEREANRMREIDHER - EE
TRAREBFEER TR - #iH
NFNERF - HERERTRERTHEE
Br &

HZEMERF (20194 © 7,606,000/ F #5) B
BB RIS ARER T T REMEE
T AR 755 H B 10 2 T U B 12 AR IS UL A K9
TEF o #IHER A0 ©

ETPTRRNEEERMETNGT RIAR
LISEE
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HZE2020F9 8308 [FFE

25. Trade and Other Receivables, Deposits and Prepaid 25. E 5 R EEWEIE RSB FEN

Expenses B X
2020 2019
RM’000 RM'000
FHEE FhER
Trade receivables: E 5 EWGRIA
Third parties =K 74,118 345,369
Related parties RAE T 3,156 7,871
Less: Provision for loss allowance B R RS (15,272) (1,832)
62,002 351,408
Retention receivables: FEYUR E?-f
Third parties E=7 1,521 4,614
Related parties RaiER 8,499 8412
10,020 13,026
Other receivables: HAth e U skIE
Third parties E=5 9,264 13177
Related parties RgiE T 1,515 2,805
Less: Provision for loss allowance R EiEREE (1,500) (1,500)
9,279 14,482
Stakeholders’ sum D& BRE - 26,800
Refundable deposits AR BF 4,799 5,061
Prepaid expenses AR 2,002 5610
Goods and services tax receivable FEU S o R AR SR 12 85
88,114 416,472
Analysed for reporting purposes as: MERENDWA
Current assets MENEE 80,428 139,114
Non-current assets ERBEE 7,686 277,358
88,114 416,472

202059 A30H ' BREFE=HE FEWFIAE
TER AT s EE LR Y R UG ,ﬂf%i%(zo
£ 1 274,793,000 F ) ©

Included in trade receivables from third parties are receivables arising
from concession agreements amounted to approximately RM Nil (2019
RM274,793,000) at 30 September 2020.
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25, Trade and Other Receivables, Deposits and Prepaid

Expenses (continued)

Details of trade receivables arising from the concession agreement and

renewable energy power purchase agreement are set out in Note 8.

As of 30 September 2020, trade and retention receivables from contracts
with customers amounted to approximately RM192,074,000 (2019:
RM364,434,000).

Stakeholder’s sum represents amount held by a professional firm in trust
for the Group which will be released to the contractors directly for the
construction activities of the Kuala Muda Project.

Related parties refer to:

(@) companies in which certain directors of the Company or siblings of
certain directors are also directors and have control; and

(b) Machang Companies.

Amounts owing by related parties included under trade receivables and
retention receivables are unsecured and interest-free.

Amounts owing by related parties included under other receivables which
arose mainly from expenses paid on behalf by the Group, are unsecured,
interest-free and repayable on demand.

Trade receivables of the Group comprise amounts receivable from sales of
goods and services rendered in connection with contract customers. The
credit period granted to the customers ranges from 30 to 90 days (2019: 30
to 90 days).

No interest is charged on the outstanding balance.

The credit period on retention receivables is 24 months (2019: 24 months)

after completion of construction.

As of the end of the reporting period, there was significant concentration of
credit risk arising from amounts owing by five (2019: five) major customers
which accounted for 79% (2019: 90%) of total trade receivables. The
extension of credit to and the repayments from customers are closely
monitored by the management to ensure that they adhere to the agreed
credit term and policies.

e B mRME
For the year ended 30 September 2020
B ZE2020F9A30R L FE

25. ES R EMBWRIE - RERFEN

A< ()

KB 5T 1 S REPPAH) & 5 B Wk 1B 2 FIB
HAMIEES

MR2020F9A308 - RKEEFALONE S EIW
FIB K E YR B S A #9192,074,0000KF 45 (2019
£ : 364,434,000KF 45) ©

AR ERE - RERQRAEET AR
AEERBENTHE  Z2BREMMNEEERR
MRS E R BT ARA -

BRETT1s -

(@) ARBETEZHETESLBEKES
EERBEENEORA] K

b) HERA] -

STAE SRR R B IRE S RET &R
RERERRRRE

FEAEMBURANBEES ERFAETEEE
BAKEXNZAX - REERR  REREE

REBESERFBEBIEREOEEERERE
NEPIREHREHEKRZE - RTEFPME
EHIN 305290 H (20194F : 305890H ) °

PR B ERWET RS -

FEWRFESHEEH A% T %248 A (20194 :
24(E A ) °

RRERR - RERAR(2019F : AR)FER
PHEIZENEERBBEESEY  HEFHEK
FRIBHAFATI%(2019%5F : 90%) » B IR B ) L%
BEEEHERIFEENER  BIRHESET
EMEE G REBCE
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HZE2020F9 8308 [FFE

25. Trade and Other Receivables, Deposits and Prepaid 25. E 5 R EEWEIE RSB FEN
Expenses (continued) B (&)

REMEPRRIEZEEARZS 2 B 5 EWFIE
arising from the concession agreements) presented based on the invoice (TEERTHREEZERGE  SHNBRES
date (net of provision for loss allowance of trade receivables) at the end of TEUN RTEEEBME ) BRI DT T -

each reporting period:

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables (excluding receivables

2020 2019
RM’'000 RM'000
FHERE FhER
0to 30 days 18,585 43,579
3110 90 days 7,038 7,440
Over 90 days 36,379 25,596
62,002 76,615
Reconciliation of loss allowance for trade receivables: B S REWF AR E R 2 Bk
2020 2019
RM’'000 RM'000
FHERE FER
At 1 October 1,832 1,538
Increase in loss allowance for the year FABEEEIL N 13,440 294
At 30 September 15,272 1,832
Reconciliation of loss allowance for other receivables: E b e IR R R 2 R
2020 2019
RM’'000 RM'000
FHERE FhER
At 1 October R10A1H 1,500 -
Increase in loss allowance for the year FREIEREE N - 1,500
At 30 September R9A30H 1,500 1,500

HZE2019F M2020F0A30H I FEB S R EM
FEU A 2 R ERT A RS M 56 o

Details of impairment assessment of trade and other receivables for the
year ended 30 September 2020 and 2019 are set out in Note 6.
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HZE2020F9 A30H ILFE
26. Deferred Tax 26. IEFEFIIE
Deferred Tax Assets/(Liabilities) EERBEEE (88)
2020 2019
20205 20194F
RM’000 RM'000
TMES TMHER
Deferred tax assets RIERIAE B - 3,602
Deferred tax liabilities EIEFIBEAE (429) (11,751
(429) (8,149)

TRARRNFRFEAAEBEREBRTHR
HEENMABNREZE -

The following are the major deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised by
the Group and movements thereon during financial years.

Accelerated Unabsorbed
tax  Concession Intangible Unused  tax capital Contract
depreciation  agreement assets  taxlosses  allowance assets Total
& FBA AR
BERE  REEE  BYEE  HEER EA%BE BESK st
RM000 RM000 RM000 RM000 RM000 RM000 RM000
TiER  THEE  OTHEE TS THEE TS TR
At T October 2018 018510718 2,660 8,388 754 (920) (953) (624) 9,305
Deferred tax charge/(credit) RERREANETNE
recognised in profit o loss A%/(E%) 801 3156 (321) 44 (1927) (3309) (1,156)
At 30 September 2019 R2019%9A30A 3461 11,544 433 (476) (2880) (3933) 8,149
Deferred tax charge/(credit) REREANELHE
recognised in profit o loss R/ (E%) (3472 24% 4 476 2880 3933 6,269
Transfer to Bz
Liabilites directly associated S FTBAE
with non-current assets held for sale BERFENEE 1 (14,000) - - - - (13,989)
At 30 September 2020 R202059A308 - - 429 - - - 429

As at 30 September 2019, the Group has unused tax losses and unabsorbed
tax capital allowances of approximately RM1,983,000 and RM11,992,000,
respectively, available for offset against future taxable profits of the relevant
subsidiary. Deferred tax assets has been recognised in respect of such tax
losses and tax capital allowances.

MR20195F9A30H - AEBERBAHRIABIER
RIRANE R R B8 5 BIE) /1,983,000 F FF &
11,992,000/ & 15 + AT SEFERA P B A B AR 2K
JERBIEF c BIEMBEEC RZSERIBESE
RERGFEBERER

3§ 2020 EFREFPRERERAT 185



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e EHRRME

For the year ended 30 September 2020

HZE2020F9 8308 [FFE

26. Deferred Tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences,
unused tax losses and unabsorbed capital allowances to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which
the deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses and unabsorbed
capital allowances can be utilised. As at 30 September 2020, the estimated
amounts of unused tax losses, unabsorbed capital allowances and other
deductible temporary differences arising from contract assets for which
deferred tax assets have not been recognised in the consolidated financial
statements due to uncertainty of its realisation, are as follows:

26. JEFERIE ()

TEAR R IEART G F R A BE G 72 LA S AT 4054
TRERE  ADBREBERRARMNE LR
BT 2B MEERERE - K
FHIEEE AWM ERRHERENEEM
EENEMANBEREEEREEHIEEL
EE o 1R2019%F90 A308 + AEEIRA I EE
RERGEVBRERERECHIBEENRS
ABIEBERRRMNE R BB 2EN
T

2020 2019

RM’000 RM'000

FHES FER

Unused tax losses REVAIEEE 180,318 58315
Unabsorbed capital allowances RN E R B EE 24,188 4877
Contract assets BHEE 17,117 10,518
221,623 73,710

The unused tax losses, unabsorbed capital allowances and other deductible
temporary differences arising from contract assets are available for offset
against future chargeable profits.

Under the Malaysia Finance Act 2018 which was gazetted on 27 December
2018, the unused tax losses of subsidiaries incorporated in Malaysia
amounting to approximately RM 180,318,000 (2019: RM60,298,103) as at
30 September 2020 will be imposed with a time limit of utilisation. Any
accumulated unused tax losses brought forward from year of assessment
2020 can be carried forward for another 7 consecutive years of assessment
(i.e. from year of assessments 2021 to 2027).
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EE2020F9A30H L5 E
27. Share Application Monies 27. R EBEBERE
2020 2019
RM’'000 RM'000
FHER THER
Non-current assets: IERBEE -
Share application monies (a) &7 R A R IE () 2,886 2,886
Current liabilities: MENEE -
Share application monies (b) & {n ER B R IE(b) (54,270) (37,230)

On 29 August 2019, BGMC Corporation, an indirect wholly owned subsidiary
entered into a subscription agreement with Sparks Energy 1 Sdn. Bhd.
("SE1"), to which SE1 will subscribe for 86,000,000 redeemable preference
shares of RM1 each to be allotted and issued by BGMC Corporation for a
total consideration of RM86 million (“RPS”).

The proceeds from the subscription of the RPS to be issued by BGMC
Corporation Sdn. Bhd. to SE1 can only be used by BGMC Corporation Sdn.
Bhd. solely for the purpose of funding its subscription of the redeemable
convertible preference shares to be issued by BGMC Bras Power Sdn. Bhd.,
an indirect subsidiary.

As of 30 September 2020, share application monies amounting to
approximately RM54,270,000 (2019: RM37,230,000) had been received by
BGMC Corporation Sdn. Bhd..

The salient terms and conditions for RPS to be issued by BGMC Corporations
is shown as below:

(@) Pursuant to shareholders’ agreement entered into by BGMC Energy
Sdn. Bhd. for investment in SPARK, BGMC Energy Sdn. Bhd. had paid
approximately RM2,886,000 as share application monies for the
purpose of subscription of ordinary shares to be issued in SPARK as at
30 September 2020 and 2019.

(b) Pursuant to a subscription agreement entered into by BGMC
Corporation Sdn. Bhd. (“the issuer”), an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary, with SET, a company incorporated in Malaysia, which is
also an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of SPARK, BGMC Corporation
Sdn. Bhd. had received approximately RM54,270,000 (2019:
RM37,230,000) as share application monies from SE1 for the purpose
of issuance of RPS. During the year, the Group issued 31,730,000 RPS
of RM31,730,000 to SET.

F2019F8 H29H - fE# 2 & Mt & & AIBGMC
Corporation 2, #2Sparks Energy 1 Sdn. Bhd.([ SE1)
FIA R - IR - SETEAAAR(ESOE B
MRE 45 58 88 BB BGMC Corporation it & & 317 &
A% TE {811,000k 5 45 # 86,000,000 A% 7] &[] 48 4% A%
([TEEEER]) -

SE1 328 FIBGMC Corporation Sdn. Bhd. 21T Ay A]
HE [0 12 5 AR ) P15 3} 18 R A] FBBGMC Corporation
Sdn. Bhd. F VE # <F E 7R B [ £ Y /B & F1BGMC
Bras Power Sdn. Bhd.&) A] & [@& S % ©

# & 202089 A30H * BGMC Corporation Sdn.
Bhd.E URER IS 19 R 55 2K TE 54,270,000 5 45 (2019
£ 1 37,230,000/ HF) o

BGMC Corporations i 8 17 &Y 7] f& [B8 55l 1) &
ZRAR G TAUR ¢

@ ARIEBGMC Energy Sdn. Bhd. 5t 1% & SPARKE]
SRR W 0 FR20199F9 A308 © BGMC
Energy Sdn. Bhd. B 37 15 #92,886,000 4 7
EARMDEBIRE  URBETFETHN
SPARKE A% o

(b) 4R #& BGMC Corporation Sdn. Bhd. ( [ % 1T
ADN(EREE2ZEWBAR)ESE(—FE
RERE R M ZIE AR - TR ASPARK
HREEE2EME QR RE S -
BGMC Corporation Sdn. Bhd. £ U& Z SE1 &9
#954,270,000 4% & ¥ (2019 € : 37,230,000
MER) DB FRE - TR EE
BRR - AEEBRANFEMSEIEITT
31,730,000 & A A BB BB S A o
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HZE2020F9 8308 [FFE

27. Share Application Monies (continued)

The salient features of the RPS are as follows:

(i)

(i)

(iff)

(iv)
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the RPS is redeemable by the issuer for cash based on the redemption
value. The issuer may redeem the RPS at the discretion of its board
provided that no redemption shall take place or prior to such date
which is one year after the commercial operation date;

the issuer may at any time at its sole discretion cancel the RPS and pay
SE1 the cancellation payment;

subject to the availability of distributable profits, the RPS shall yield a
fixed cumulative fixed dividend of 7.5% per annum from the date on
which the RPS has subscribed by third party;

the RPS shall not be convertible into ordinary shares of the issuer
and SE1 shall have no rights, unless otherwise permitted under the
Companies Act, 2016, to vote or to move or second any resolutions at
any general meeting of the issuer; and

the RPS is transferrable in that SE1 may at its sole and absolute
discretion sell and transfer the RPS to any RPS transferee by giving no
less than ten (10) business days prior written notification to the issuer
notifying the issuer of its intent to sell and transfer the RPS to such RPS
transferee. The issuer shall do all things necessary to facilitate and give
effect to any such transfer of the RPS intended by SE1 to any such RPS
transferee.

BGMC International Limited

27. RIDEFEH(E)

(i)

(i)

(i)

(iv)

AIERELER EZREENT

AIAE B e A ] E N B E B BT AN
REEO - FTARREEZE@NERE
BOAERELR  EXREESERDRER
W EEBHZ A NMSELER

1T AR BERS B IS S 44 1 BB B e AR M A
SE1Z (SRl %

RF A ER A D km A - 7] S BB %Al
SEBEE=HREAIEOE LK BESE
REBETERFTETKET5% ;

A ERME R TS EIRARIT AT AR
RSEITERRBEITANEMRERAE L&
EREKRAEFMIRESR © E2016FRF]
ETRFTRERRIN: K&

SEIRERERBERBRBETABLTORN
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A EEEHENREEAERELRTE
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HZE2020F9 8300 [FFE
28. Derivative Assets/(Liabilities) 28. (THETEEE (&)
2020 2019
RM’000 RM'000
FHEH FHE4
At FVTPL: BAFERTABR
Derivative assets (i) PTHEIEEE( = 2,365
At FVTPL; BAFER ABR
Derivative liabilities (i) PTAT AA &) - (2,700)

Pursuant to the abovementioned shareholders’ agreement (as disclosed
as Note 22), one of the shareholders, namely DPI Solar, a company
incorporated in Singapore, is required to subscribe 21.43 million preference
shares to be issued by SPARK.

In connection with the shareholders’ agreement, the following call and put
options agreements has been entered into:

() DPI Solar has irrevocably agreed to grant to BGMC Energy Sdn. Bhd. a
call option which may be exercised by BGMC Energy Sdn. Bhd. at its
sole discretion to purchase up to 45.1% of the preference shares of
USD1 each issued by SPARK and held by DPI Solar.

The call option may be exercised by BGMC Energy Sdn. Bhd. during
the date of first issue of the option shares by DPI Solar and ending
on 18 months thereafter, subject to BGMC Energy having repaid all
amounts owing to DPI Solar under the Loan from DPI Solar.

BRI R ik (A 22/ i8R ) » Hh—
Z %R (BIDPI Solar » FAFT AN M A ZRI A A])
JETREESPARKIE B2 1THY21 438 B RRE TR -

SR WZEM S - B NI KRH

5

()  DPI SolarE2 AT 45i[El[A] & #% T BGMC Energy
Sdn. Bhd.5R & Bt - AT ERBGMC Energy Sdn.
Bhd. 2 B BTTE AR B HSPARKEE T M
DPI Solar¥§ A H) & % 45.1% 8 1 £ TR B
Felg

52 % HA# 7] FRBGMC Energy Sdn. Bhd. 7ADPI
Solar & R EITHRRERR th B BBE E 1% 1818 A
HARTT(E » ZBFBGMC Energy B3 E R #EDPL
Solar& F 45 R DPI SolarH BT 8 & 5814 77 7]
1E& -
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HZE2020F9 8308 [FFE

28. Derivative Assets/(Liabilities) (continued)

(i)

The Company has irrevocably agreed to grant DPI Solar a put option
which may be exercised by DPI Solar at its sole discretion to require
the Company to purchase 45.1% to up to 50.1% of the preference
shares of USD1 each issued by SPARK and held by DPI Solar. The
Company may at its sole and absolute discretion nominate another
entity to be the registered owner of the preference shares of USD1 or
part thereof.

The put option may be exercised by DPI Solar at any time during
the date of first issue of class 1 preference shares by DPI Solar and
ending on 18 months thereafter, but no earlier than the date falling
six months after the date on which DPI Solar has fully subscribed and
paid for the preference shares of USD1 each.

The Company is required to recognise the fair value of the put option
which is not exercisable yet as of the reporting date, because DPI
Solar has the right to require the Company or its nominee to pay
the counterparty cash or another financial asset in exchange for the
preference shares. As at 30 September 2020, a fair value of RM Nil (2019:
RM2,700,000) is recognised in the consolidated financial statements.

28. fTHETREE (&FE) (&)

(i)

KR BB A] e [F] & 3% F DPI Solard@
HA%E - ATEDPI Solar 2 BB 1TIE A ESR
AN A8 B FRSPARKEE 7T K FHDPI Solards &
HI451% 2 &% 50.1% &A% 1 ETTRME TR o
AARAZEBEEES —BEBAEBR
ETHBERIEI S OEMAERA -

5250 B 7] FHDPI SolarfADPI Solar & R 31T
HARENR (D B B E H 1% 1818 A HA R T/ B R
171F - WETE T HADPI Solar 2 R HE & 2
NERELELRAHRBRAEAEAR -

ARRERREZ®RE AR ARITERS
HEM A FEE - AADPIBEERANR
FERBARARGHFZNREHHME
BE B AR EVE ST iy o Bl E20209F9 A 30
B TAER (20194 © 2,700,000/ F 45)
BN FEERERE S RERER o

29. Inventories 29. 78
2020 2019
RM’000 RM'000
FHEE TMHER
Unsold completed units: REEBETEKER
At cost TR 7,720 15,440

Cost of inventories recognised as an expense during the year amounted to
approximately RM7,720,000 (2019: RM4,156,000).
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30. Contract Assets/(Liabilities)

e B mRME
For the year ended 30 September 2020
B ZE2020F9A30R L FE

30. BNEE (8F)

As at As at As at
30 September 30 September 1 October
2020 2019 2018
R9A30H 79 H30H M10A1R
20204 20194 2018%F
RM’000 RM'000 RM'000
FHEH FHER FHRE R
Unbilled revenue of construction contracts (a) BEASHOREZREG) 136,344 207,661 198,782
Retention receivables of construction contracts (b) EEA LM EWIREEDB) 87,831 93,970 86,679
Receivables arising from concession agreements R s s 2= 4 HO FE U R IE 120,052 - -
Total contract assets BREEET 344,227 301,631 285,461
Contract liabilities aHaE (5,315) (7,120) (11,724)

(a)

Unbilled revenue included in contract assets represents the Group's
right to receive consideration for work completed but not yet billed
because the rights are conditional upon the satisfaction by the
customers on the construction work completed by the Group and the
work is pending for the certification by the customers. The contract
assets are transferred to the trade receivables when the rights become
unconditional, which is typically at the time the Group obtains the
certification of the completed construction work from the customers.

Retention receivables included in contract assets represent the
Group's right to receive consideration for work performed and not
yet billed because the rights are conditional on the satisfaction of the
service quality by the customers over a certain period as stipulated
in the contracts. The contract assets are transferred to the trade
receivables when the rights become unconditional, which is typically
at the expiry date of the period for the provision of assurance by the
Group on the service quality of the construction work performed by
the Group. The due dates for retention receivables are usually upon
obtaining certificate of practical completion or issuance of certificate
of completion of making good defects.

Typical payment terms which impact on the amount of contract assets

recognised are as follows:

The Group’s construction contracts include payment schedules which

require stage payments over the construction period once certain specified

milestone are reached. As of 30 September 2020, the Group received an
upfront deposit of 7.2% (2019: 7.2%) of total contract sum as part of its
credit risk management policies from a contract with a customer.

FTEANEESBN —RIIRFRRET

FABKBENARERENRmEASE
FLE SERE W AR B R IRH TR E R
#r - RAREREENASEPHAKE
ik ZETRATHEREMIELS
FEPRE o W\ ERREN 2RI RS
(ERAEEARTCHATRELETIZE
BEFPRA) ANEESBEBEEIRE
Wskog e

FARHNBEENREERESEARERD
B4 T2 BB i R R4 A -
REEENTIATFRE QT —BHE
HIWim R RIS E R BIRIT © K AERERN
PRIGHRHICEERAK BB AEE AR
iR TRNRGEERME R BHE
ERBH)  AHEESBBEE SRR
FOH - R ERE - RIEDMGERRTE
EFBFHRTEILEESWE -

AEBENRESHBESINEREE  H2KE
EEBENEREREERROBEIN - ©
2020F9 A30F * AEBEE-BEPHA KK

1A

AL FE72% (20195 1 7.2%) HY Al HR %

T FREEERREERRN—#D
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e B RRME
For the year ended 30 September 2020
B ZE2020F9A30R L FE

30. Contract Assets/(Liabilities) (continued)

The Group also typically agrees to a retention period ranging from

30. SNEE (BE) (&)

REE—RIFE BN T 1218 A 224 A RE

AT RERT AN
ZRESH A R YR

12 months to 24 months for 5% of the contract value. This amount is 8 RESBELHEHERESY -

included in receivables until the end of the retention period at the Group's WEIE  HEREE LR -

entitlement to this final payment is conditional on the issuance of certificate ZEENFOENBRAREFPELEEESE R
of making good defect by the customer. 1k e

The Group classifies these contract assets as current assets because the AE B EZ

Group expects to realise them in its normal operating cycle ranging from 1

to 2 years.

Retention receivables are unsecured, interest-free and are expected to be

collected as follows:

BHEEE -

JE U R B
A emE

FRNEENBRARBEE BA
AEBEEARNTFI1 2261 —

A

e AEEE - 2R REHKIZ T

2020 2019
RM’'000 RM'000
FHER THER
Within 1 year A 18,983 46,126
1 year to 2 years 1EZFE 21,919 41,065
More than 2 years 2FLAE 46,929 6,779
87,831 93,970
Significant changes in contract assets and contract liabilities during EEEEHNEERGHEBNERES !
the year:
2020 2019
RM’'000 RM'000
FHER THER
Contract liabilities at the beginning of the REIER B R
period recognised as revenue AHBaE 4,614 6,706
Contract assets (other than retention sums) REAE R 2 B 5 FERGRIER
at the beginning of the period transferred BHEE(TNEERES)
to trade receivables 87,518 122,167
Retention sums receivables included in contract REAFF AGREETEES
assets at the beginning of the period transferred B HRIIANELIRE ©
to trade receivables 8,720 4,951
The following table shows the movements in lifetime ECL that has been TRETERBRIRY S EmEERF SR AES

recognised for contract assets in accordance with simplified approach set

outin IFRS 9.
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30. Contract Assets/(Liabilities) (continued)

31

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR R MR

For the year ended 30 September 2020

HZE2020F9 8300 [FFE

30. SNEE (BE) (&)

RM'000

TSR

At 1 October 2018 20185107 1H 1,062

Reversal of impairment MERIEECE (30)

At 30 September 2019 720195F9 H30H 1,032

Impairment VEREN 19,222

At 30 September 2020 7202099 H30H 20,254

. . = E2

Fixed Deposits 31. EHER

2020 2019

RM’'000 RM'000

FHER FHRE S

Fixed deposits with licensed banks ERRIRTT 2 T EATE K 39,124 39,658

As at 30 September 2020, fixed deposits carry interest at fixed rates
ranging from 1.6% to 2% (2019: 2.65% to 4.35%) per annum, with maturity
period ranging from 30 to 365 days (2019: 30 to 365 days). Included in
fixed deposits as at 30 September 2020 are pledged fixed deposits of
approximately RM22,768,000 (2019: RM31,757,000) and restricted fixed
deposits of approximately RM 16,356,000 (2019: RM7,901,000) for borrowings
as disclosed in Note 36(a), (b) and ().

72020F9 A 308 + EEAF SR E R ENT1.6%
2% (2019%F : 2.65%%4.35%) 18 BIEAR N
F30RZE365K(2019% : 30RE365K) ° EH
FRBIER2020F9 8308 EEMN T HERFR
#922,768,000#R 5 45 (20194F © 31,757,000#K 2 45F)
K2 52 BRIl 7E BRATF 30491 6,356,00000 5 15 (20194F
7,901,000 E 1) - FIBERMIEE36() « (b) RO

==
B
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e EHRRME

For the year ended 30 September 2020

HZE2020F9 8308 [FFE

32. Cash and Bank Balances

32. RERWITHEER

2020 2019
RM’000 RM'000
FHER THER
Cash at banks and on hand TERRFERS 5,617 24,275
The Group’s cash and cash equivalents at each reporting date are REERSHREAMNBESRRSSEEMAIN
denominated in the following currencies: TEEHE :
2020 2019
RM’'000 RM'000
FHER TR E
Hong Kong Dollar BT 584 142
United States Dollar ETT 66 218
Ringgit Malaysia RPN E R 4,967 23915
5,617 24,275
Included in cash and bank balances are restricted bank balances of & RIRTTAMRBIERITABRN TN T /(2019

approximately RMNil (2019: RM7,488,000) representing designated accounts
to secure the performance bonds for certain construction contracts of the
subsidiaries and term loan as disclosed in Notes 36(b) and ().

For the year ended 30 September 2020 and 2019, the Group performed
impairment assessment on bank balances and concluded the probability
of defaults of the counterparty banks are insignificant and accordingly, no
allowance for credit loss is provided.

33. Non-Current Assets Held for Sale

On 16 November 2020, the Group announced to dispose of part of the KAS
Engineering at the consideration of RM93,787,000. The assets and liabilities
attributable to that segment, which are expected to be sold within twelve
months, have been classified as a disposal company held for sale and are
presented separately in the statement of financial position. The disposal
company is included in the Group’s concession and maintenance segment.

The net carrying amount of the relevant assets and liabilities are expected
to exceed the proceeds of disposal and, accordingly, approximately
RM11,150,000 impairment loss has been recognised on the classification of
the operation as held for sale.
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F 1 7,488,000 EHF) + IBEAMB AR E TEE
AHBERYVRES REHERNIE TR,
SIS AMRE36(0) RO E -

BHE2020F9A308 L F[E - AEEEIRITEH
EITREFE  YRAEFRTEONER S
TEKX - At - BESEEEIBHREE -

33. BHMEHEZHERBEE

M2020F 11 A16B - REBEE MUK E
93,787,000/ & ' L € &0 59 KAS Engineering ° 5%
’\*BJETEQF&EE%EHHHﬂMr 8 A A

ERHERFELENEE QR WRE B
/R%%EP% B o I E QTR AREE R
RERREEDE -

a*ﬁf‘zﬁ%SE&EEE’JEEE%@%EEW‘L&%W%
FIE - A E RO AR ENEEE EKER
MEJES% 8#911,150,000/FF 45 -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e IR

For the year ended 30 September 2020

BZE20205F9 A30H IEFE
33. Non-Current Assets Held for Sale (continued) 3B. FELEZFERBEE(E)
The major classes of assets and liabilities comprising the disposal company BEHERT (HR2020F9A30H 5B AFELD
classified as held for sale at 30 September 2020 are as follows: EVNTEEENAEENNT
RM'000
TMHER
Property, plant and equipment Yz - BB MR 58
Right-of-use assets FREEE 202
Intangible assets EEE 7,130
Trade and other receivables, deposits and prepaid expenses B NEHMEWIE - e MBS 270,482
Tax recoverable AT EI IR 1,027
Fixed deposits TE BITE R 18,300
Cash and bank balances R& RIRTTEER 7,105
Impairment loss on non-current assets held for sale BHEREZIERDEENREER (11,150)
Total assets classified as held for sale SEARIEHE 2 EERTE 293,154
Trade and other payables, and total for liabilities B o REMBENFIENA LA EA
associated with assets classified as held for sale BELEEEERNAaGEER (199,367)
Net assets of disposal group PEEBCEEFE 93,787
=h
34. Trade and Other Payables 34. B R H RN FE
2020 2019
RM’'000 RM'000
FHER FHRE S
Trade payables 2 S ENHIE
Third parties F=5 160,070 146,509
Related parties Eﬁﬁw 45,273 5149
205,343 151,658
Retention sum payable ERRFES
Third parties E=F 35,597 36,007
Related parties E2):pa 12,944 13,326
48,541 49333
Other payables: H bR
Third parties £=5 31,645 5,680
Amount owing to an associated company e il /N e O 5,144 -
Accrued expenses FEETRAS 95,991 48478
Goods and services tax payable FEAST P 5 M AR A FR 2,665 2,684
389,329 257,833
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For the year ended 30 September 2020

HZE2020F9 8308 [FFE

34. Trade and Other Payables (continued) 34. EZ R EMBEN IR (E

Amount owing to related parties (as defined in Note 25) included under
trade payables and retention sum payables are unsecured and interest-free.

Amount owing to an associated company is unsecured and interest-free.

Trade payables comprise amounts outstanding for trade purchases and
ongoing costs. The credit period granted to the Group for trade purchase
ranges from 30 to 60 days (2019: 30 to 60 days).

The credit period on retention sum payables is 24 months (2019: 24
months) after completion of construction.

Included in retention sum payables as of 30 September 2020 are amounts
totaling approximately RM3,820,000 (2019: RM5,412,000) due for payment
more than 12 months.

Included in other payables as at 30 September 2020 is amount owing to
a director, amounting to RM13,643,000 (2019: RM250,000), is unsecured,
interest-free and repayable on demand.

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables presented based on the
invoice dates.

EIJ/\T?%J&“ﬁf?xlﬁ&ﬁﬁf%ﬁ@ﬂ’]iikﬁéﬁﬁ
(E& RME2s) FEREERL 2R

BR—EBERRZRBEREEALRE -

B 5 EMNRIERERE ZIRE LI ER A&
BEMNZIE AEBRE S FEERNEER
NF30E60H (20194 : 30E60H) ©

ERHREBESEEI AL T %2418 A (20194 :
24f@A) »

R2020F9 A30BMEMNRESBERI12(EA
1% FERT R T A $£3,820,000 4K F 45 (20194
5412,0000KF4F) o

20209 4308 M EM B FIBRIEL R —%
BENIE 0 &% 513,643,000 F 45 (20194 -
250000/ E 45) - BEIKIF - £ 8 RIZERE
;ﬁ °

ERNBERAH B ZRMATRNRRDOITT

2020 2019

RM’000 RM'000

THEE TG

0-30 days 0Z30H 34,096 37,276
1-90 days 31290H 45,672 16,320
Over 90 days 90B M 125,575 98,062
205,343 151,658
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For the year ended 30 September 2020

HZE2020F9A30H IEFE
35. Obligations Under Finance Leases 35. MEHERIE
Lease  Present value of
payments lease payments
2019 2019
HENR
FAERK RE
2019%F 20195
RM'000 RM'000
FHER FER
Within one year —E PN 6,669 6,394
In the second to fifth years, inclusive F_ERF  BEEEMT 1,688 1,608
After five years AFEUE 628 619
8,985
Less: Future finance charges B RRBMEMRY (364)
Present value of lease liabilities HEBFEIRE 8,621 8,621
Less: Amount due for settlement within 12 months B 12 AR EEENERE
(shown under current liabilities) (NrsaEr~rE25) (6,394)
Amount due for settlement after 12 months R12ME R B EEREIHAZIE 2,227

36

It is the Group's policy to lease certain of its property, plant and equipment
under finance leases. Interest rates underlying all obligations under finance
leases as at 30 September 2019 are fixed at respective contract rates

ranging from 2.34% to 3.45% per annum.

Obligations under finance leases were secured by property, plant and
equipment under finance leases, personal guarantee of a director of the
Company and jointly and severally guaranteed by the Company and/or the

subsidiaries.

Borrowings - Secured

HEMEHEE TNETYE  BEREEA
AREBMBE - R2019F9A30BREHE ~NATE
EEREEFEETE AN 234%E345%.2 %
BHIFIE o

MEHEAGEHREVETYE  BELRE

H# - ARF—REEZNEAAREREALRT
R,/ b B 1 B 2[R R AR B AR

36. BB —2EF

2020 2019
RM’000 RM'000
THEE RRUN=Es
Bank overdrafts () RITHEz (@) 5,413 11,697
Term loan (b) FEHER®) - 204,666
Multiple facilities (c) Z & () 56,108 62,479
Loan from DPI Solar (d) R B DPI Solar B 7 (d) 7,765 22,596
Total @t 69,286 301,438
3§ 2020 BEBRERERERAR
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e EHRRME

For the year ended 30 September 2020

HZE2020F9 8308 [FFE

36. Borrowings - Secured (continued)

Summary of borrowing arrangements are as follows:

(a

(b)

198 ANNUAL REPORT 2020

Bank overdrafts are secured by facility agreements for a sum of
RM5,500,000 (2019: RM15,500,000) as at 30 September 2020,
memorandum of deposit over certain fixed deposits of the Group
of approximately RM21,016,000 (2019: RM21,016,000) as at 30
September 2020 and corporate guarantee by the Company and/or
the subsidiaries.

Term loan was entered into in 2016 to finance the construction of
UiTM campus. It is secured by the following:

(i) master facility agreements;

(i) debenture creating a first fixed and floating charge over all
present and future assets of a subsidiary;

(i) assignment of all rights, title, interest and benefits of a subsidiary
under certain clauses of the concession agreement;

(iv) assignment of all rights, title, interest and benefits of a subsidiary
under:

—  the lease agreement entered into between a subsidiary
as lessee and UiTM as lessor in respect of the land for
constructing the UiTM campus (the “Project Land”); and

- the sub-lease agreement (“Sub-lease agreement”)
entered into between the said subsidiary as sub-lessor and
UiTM as sub-lessee in respect of the Project Land;

(v) assignments of all the present and future rights, title, interest
and benefits of subsidiary under the construction contract of the
project;

(vi) assignment over the designated accounts as stipulated in the
loan agreement. The pledged fixed deposits and restricted bank
balances as at 30 September 2020 are approximately RM Nil and
RM Nil (2019: RM10,300,000 and RM98,000), respectively;

(vii) assignment of all the present and future rights, title, interest and
benefits of a subsidiary under all Islamic insurance policies taken
out in respect of or rising from the project (excluding workmen's
compensation and public liability insurances);

(viii) corporate guarantee by BGMC Holdings and BGMC Corporation
Sdn. Bhd,, both are wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company;

BGMC International Limited

36. fEE —E2HEHF (&)

tEEZ BT

(@)

$R1745 X 120204F9 A 30 B 4248 45,500,000
ME 4 (20194 © 15,500,000 F 45 ) 2 &l

AtpeE

AREBEPH2020F9 8308 & T

TE HF 3R 2 17 FUE = 8%21,016,000 7K &5 45
(2019%F : 21,016000PhE 45 ) R AR T &~
ST E AR 2 EEREEE -

TEHIE AR 20165 T B BTl 2 UITMAR
EREERmE - HRTYEEHEF -

U]

(if)

(iff)

(iv)

(Vi)

(vii)

(vii)

BE X ek
H—EMBARME BRI RAREE
R AR EE S F B A EREE

AR A 195 15 SE 6N R — TP B
DR — R - A - S RF

N

Bt

1548 T 78 B s — B A Fa—
IRER] - FTERE - RER RS

—FHRB AR (EAREBAA)HE
UTM({EAE A FTHEE
B AABRAUTMIERZE
i ([TEE L)) s &

— LB AR(fEA>HFEA)
MUTM({EB D AT A ) FTLH
sHmHE(T2EBE])  "AE
ERAEE L

1B EIE A R A R — B AR
B B R RSN - B - e
Rz

BRIEERIBEMEEEEETERER, -
F2020%F9 A30H KB K1 T Bi1F 3K
RZRERITES DB ATHEHR
T 45 (20194 10,300,00048 7 45
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36. Borrowings - Secured (continued)

(b)

(continued)

(ix) irrecoverable letter of undertaking by the shareholders of the
Company to complete the project in accordance with the terms
of the concession agreement and to provide cash injection in
the event of cost overrun during construction period and cash
flow shortfall during concession period;

(x) irrevocable letter of undertaking from a subsidiary ensuring
that at least thirty percent (30%) of the construction and
maintenance works is to be sub-contracted out to bumiputra
contractors and at least sixty percent (60%) of the subsidiary’s
workforce is bumiputra employees; and

(xi) any other security or documents as may be required by Bank
Pembangunan Malaysia Berhad ("BPMP") and/or as advised by
BPMP’s solicitors for a facility of this nature.

Pursuant to a loan agreement (the “Loan Agreement’) entered into
between KAS Engineering Engineering, an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, as borrower and a financial institution (the
“Lender”) in connection with the grant of loan facilities (collectively,
the “Loan”) in an aggregate amount of RM269,370,000 by the Lender
to KAS Engineering, KAS Engineering is required to comply with,
among others, the covenant that restricts KAS Engineering from
lending any money or extending any advances and/or financings
to, among others, its related companies, except it is in the course of
ordinary business (the “Loan Covenant’). If KAS Engineering fails to
perform or comply with such covenant, the Lender may declare the
outstanding principal amount, accrued interest and all other sums
payable under the Loan immediately due and payable.

Subsequent to the financial year ended 30 September 2019, the
Company became aware that KAS Engineering has technically
breached the Loan Covenant in the Loan Agreement as KAS
Engineering has extended advances to its immediate holding
company, BGMC Corporation Sdn Bhd, total amounting to
RM11,500,000 during the year. As at the date of this report, the Lender
has not made any demand for immediate repayment of the Loan
under the Loan Agreement.

Out of the outstanding loan as of 30 September 2020 of approximately
RM180,822,000, RM 133,133,000 (2019: RM204,667,000, RM180,822,000)
was reclassified from non-current liabilities to current liabilities and
transferred to discontinued operation.

e B mRME
For the year ended 30 September 2020
B ZE2020F9A30R L FE

36. fEE —E2HEHF (&)

(%)

(ix) AN AIBCR AT EE H AT TR A GRE K
o MRS AT I IR TR IR B &
REERRNEBFRERSTER
REFFF R HIR SR ER -

) —FEME A R B & Al YR B &G
E BEBELED Z=T0C0%HE
EhfEIR B TIERRE B
TEETHMBRAREZEBETIELEH
D2 75T(60%) K

(xi) Bank Pembangunan Malaysia Berhad
('BPMP J) AT 8 25K 2 S BPMPE A
B RRE MEHEN A
et -

BIEARRRBEEZ2ENBE R FKAS
Engineering ( /& f& 3K 77 ) B2 — ) Bf 7% 1%
BUERFDIAIUHERRZE([E
RBFE) - REFHEE R E TKAS
Engineering 48 & %8 /5 269,370,000 M\ & 5§ &9
ERREE (5 B ) * KAS Engineering
RESF(EPaE)®RHE - HRFIKASER
SBRRHEE T (HPeE) A
A AR EBBERETERINIER
B ) ° fiKAS Engineering K A8 B 17 20 3&
THBEE  EXRFTLEEMERE TR
BERSHE BT RFAEEMENE
#E BN 2 B % JE AT o

REZE2019F9A30 B BEFERER
% -+ AN R 15 2B KAS Engineering B 1 17
FERERBZEROEREE - BKAS
Engineering A 9 A1 A H B B 15 A% A FIBGMC
Corporation Sdn Bhd 2 it B4 5% + 2 & 5
11,500,000/ F 45 « RANIRE B E - 50
MAEHEREEERMZRE TEFNE
3_‘2 °

E2020F9H3BMAKREEERY
180,822,000 #& & #F F 133,133,000 #& & #F
(2019%F : 204,667,000 75 ¥ 12.180,822,000
MNEF)BHIERBDEBEENSEATBDA
& WEAEK B -
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BZE2020F9 A30H IEFE
36. Borrowings - Secured (continued) 36. fHE — 2 (&)
(© Multiple facilities, comprising general financing line and blanket © ZIREBREABRBRERERHEESN R
contract financing line to finance construction projects, are secured MEHEEN—REELBERE  HiE6B
by facility agreements for a sum of approximately RM100,787,000 F(EEE S IR 496,359,000/ F 45 (2019
(2019: RM296,280,000), corporate guarantee by the Company and & 1 7901000 E ) BRE HZESED
memorandum of legal charge over deposit and letter of set-off over 100,787,000 2 55 (20194F : 296,280,0007K
fixed deposit of a subsidiary, by creating a sinking fund account FHE)  ARFMELRM D EERERER
of approximately RM6,359,000 (2019: RM7,901,000), pledged fixed EHREE R A R — MM B A R T 5
deposits and restricted bank balances of approximately RM22,768,000 FRIEEHNEEEES o EREERFR
and RM9,997,000 (2019: RM440,000 and RM7,390,000), respectively, Ko PR I SR 1T 4% 82 4922,768,000 48 & 45 K2
and assignment of considerations received from the customers. 9,997,000/ F 5 (20194F : 440,000/ 15 &
7,390,000 & 1) REZ D W E PR EER
%fﬂﬂ o
(d) During the year ended 30 September 2019, the Company entered d) REZE2019F9A30H T BFE » AAQA]
into a loan agreement with DPI Solar, a company incorporated in EADPI Solar (R FT AN sE M AL B A F]) FT
Singapore, for a loan amounting to USD14,288,000 (equivalent to S ER W - LAEUS B 5014,288,0003% 7T
approximately RM59,369,000). The said loan is subject to fixed interest (FEEH#959,396,000M F ) o« Fal EFA
at 6.5% per annum and with tenure of six months, commencing from BEFEFMNEesSw@H - /ENMEA - B
the date of the first withdrawal which was on July 2019. The Company HXIRELE B (BI2019F7 A) 85t - 2
has outstanding an amount of approximately RM7,765,000 (2019: 2020F9 4308 * R ARG REENSREL
RM22,596,000) as of 30 September 2020. 737,765,000 & 55 (20194F © 22,596,000 7K
T o
The said loan is secured by the following: USRI T 58 B (EEA

(i)  corporate guarantee provided by BGMC Corporation Sdn. Bhd,, () AEE2EWBEB X 3 BGMC

an indirect wholly owned subsidiary; Corporation Sdn. Bhd. #2 4t & 2 A #&
R 5
(i) anassignment and charge over a bank account to be maintained (i) FAfEE 2B B2 7 BGMC Energy
by BGMC Energy Sdn. Bhd., an indirect wholly owned subsidiary; Sdn. Bhd 17 & AR 1T AR P #8353 2 7
i
(i) an assignment and charge over the BGMC Holdings’s stake (i) BGMC Holdings 78 4= # 2 &) A & [8] A]
in the investment in RCPS in the Land Companies and Land EIRE SRR E R T AT A ER
Companies’ RCPS Subscription Agreements; and ATERE SRR E SRR
R &
(iv) a charge over the shares in associate owned by BGMC Energy (iv) BGMC Energy Sdn. Bhd. 7R B & /2 &) &
Sdn. Bhd. BHRMDEET °
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36. Borrowings - Secured (continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e M ERRMEE
For the year ended 30 September 2020
HZE2020F9 8300 [FFE

36. B — T (&)

The remaining maturity periods of borrowings as at 30 September 2020 and

202059 A30R K&2019%E9 308 £ E &

30 September 2019 are as follows: FHIIT -
2020 2019
RM’'000 RM'000
FHER FRE R
On demand or within one year REREES—FA 69,286 301,438
The weighted average interest rates per annum for borrowings as at end of RMEPRZEEIEFHFERNENOT
the reporting period are as follows:
2020 2019
RM’'000 RM'000
FHER THER
Variable rate: A AR K
Bank overdraft RITIBEX 6.60% 7.50%
Term loan TFHIER - 6.75%
Multiple facilities ZILRE 6.80% 6.00%
Fixed rate: EFEFE -
Loan from DPI Solar P& 5 DPI Solar# B 5K 6.50% 6.50%
FHR 2020 FBREERZRERAT 201



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B RRME
For the year ended 30 September 2020
B ZE2020F9A30R L FE

37. Lease Liabilities

37. FHEEE

Present value

Lease of lease
payments payments
HERR HAEMNKRE
2020 2019
RM’'000 RM'000
FHERE FhER
Within one year —E PN 4,619 3,385
In the second to fifth years, inclusive FEZhF - PREEEMSF 9,088 5192
After five years AFEUE 16,950 13,066
30,657
Less: Future finance charges W RIRB BRI (9,014)
Present value of lease liabilities HEBFERE 21,643 21,643
Less: Amount due for settlement within 12 months Ao 2B AR EEEN SR
(shown under current liabilities) (RNrREaE T~Ed) (3,385)
Amount due for settlement after 12 months 216 B & S E MR HAFRIE 18,258

At 30 September 2020, the average effective borrowing rate was 6.32%
(2019: Nil). Interest rates are fixed at the contract dates and thus expose the
Group to fair value interest rate risk.

It is the Group's policy to lease certain of its property, plant and equipment
under finance leases. Interest rates underlying all obligations under finance
leases as at 30 September 2020 are fixed at respective contract rates

MR2020F9A308 © FHEBRBEF X E632%
(2019%F : &) - FIXREHWBHETE - AEH
At FEIE AT ER KRR

TERmEHEE TNETYE  BEREES
REBBEE - 20209308 g EHE A
AYERBEFERXRE T AN P2.34% 2 3.30%(2019

ranging from 2.34% to 3.30% (2019: 2.34% to 3.45%) per annum.

38. Share Capital

& 1 234%E345%) 2 ZRHIFIR o

38. R4

The share capital as at 30 September 2020 and 30 September 2019

202099 A30H &% 2019%9 A30 H IR AR K

represents the share capital of the Company with details as follows: ARABRBA - 50T
Number of
shares Amounts Amounts
RGEE 5 G
HK$’000 RM’000
TERT FHESR
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each SREE0EILE B
Authorised: SEE
As at 1 October 2018, 30 September 2019 72018F1081H ~ 201999 H30H
and 30 September 2020 }2020F9 A30H 5,000,000,000 50,000
Issued and fully paid BEITREUE
As at 1 October 2018, 30 September 2019 72018%F1081H ~ 20199F9H30H
and 30 September 2020 202059 A30H 1,800,000,000 18,000 9,862
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e IR

For the year ended 30 September 2020

BZE20205F9 A30H IEFE
39. Reserves 39. #&
(@) Group (@) F£H
The amounts of the Group’s share premium and reserves and AEBRMEEMFEENEEEHCHEE7
movements therein are presented in the consolidated statement of REGAEZREMEERARIURLGA #
profit or loss, and other comprehensive income and consolidated wmEBEK o
statement of changes in equity.
(b) Company (b) &AF]
Details of movements in the Company’s reserves are as follows: RARHBEHOESFISHT ¢
Share Accumulated
premium losses Total
v =450 p et
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
THER FHERE THER
At 30 September 2019 7201959 H30H 135,571 (31,118) 104,453
Loss and total comprehensive loss REFEEK
for the year ZHBEBE - (35,013) (35.013)
At September 2020 72020F9 A30H 135,571 (66,131) 69,440
At 30 September 2018 720185930 135,571 (26,865) 108,706
Loss and total comprehensive loss REZEE R
for the year FHEERRE - (4,253) (4,253)
At 30 September 2019 7201959 A30H 135,571 (31,118) 104,453
The Company provides financial guarantees to banks for banking RREBENMBATRIRITRE MIRTTIR
facilities of its subsidiaries. The Company monitors on an ongoing TSR - NA R EERME N M
basis, the results of the subsidiaries and the repayments made by the XERMBARIMER - RANEERBA
subsidiaries. The maximum exposure to credit risk are equivalent to EERRHBAREEZME HEE AR
the amounts of the banking facilities utilised by the subsidiaries as of TRESRE -

the reporting date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e EHRRME

For the year ended 30 September 2020

HZE2020F9 8308 [FFE

39. Reserves (continued)

(c) Nature and purpose of reserves

(i) Share premium account

Share premium represents premium from the issue of ordinary

shares of the Company above par value in prior years.

(ii) Redeemable preference shares reserve

Redeemable preference shares reserve represents the value of

the unexercised equity component of redeemable preference

share issued by the Company.

(iii) Other reserve

(@)

204 ANNUAL REPORT 2020

The transfer of the difference between the nominal
amount of the share capital issued by the Company and
the nominal amount of the issued share capital of BGMC
Holdings after the Company became the ultimate holding
company of the Group upon the completion of the
reorganisation on 6 December 2016.

The repayment of amounts due to directors of
RM65,000,000 in BGMC Holdings through the issue of
additional shares by BGMC Holdings to BGMC Malaysia
Limited on 26 January 2017 as part of the reorganisation
requirements. The directors mentioned are the controlling
shareholders of the Group.

BGMC International Limited

39. f#1E (1&)
() FENMERARE

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

IR ADEE R

By aEEBEFERREERITA
NEVE BRI PTEEARE

AEE &L RS

A RE R EBE A AR EITH
B OB S B R A R R T TIE R AR B 0 1Y
BfE-

HitvfeE s

@ 2016F12AcAEATKELRR
AR AR E B SKER QR %
RN R)EET 2 IR TE B & BGMC
Holdings B B/ TRR AN (B 2 Z= 58

(b) 1EREHRERM2017F1H26H
38 3@ A BGMC Holdings [A] BGMC
Malaysia Limited 31T 8 SMNR 10 1E
i& JE 1~ BGMC Holdings & % 3/ I8
65,000,000 F 4 o FlEE R
REEZRRITER -



40. Notes to the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e M ERRMEE
For the year ended 30 September 2020
HZE2020F9 8300 [FFE

(a) Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities
Total liabilities from financing activities

(b)

40. FEREREBHRMEE

(a) MEFBFELABENES

Obligations Share Total liabilities

under finance Amountowing  application Lease fromfinancing

Borrowings leases  torelated party monies liabilities activities

& gr Kt RETBEL

g HERE BEFRE HERE HERE NERLE

RM000 RM000 RM000 RM000 RM000 RM000

TiEs TR TiRER  THER TR TaER

At 1 October 2018 R2018E10A1H 267575 18739 10,000 - - 296,314

Changes in cash flows RemEvEs 16,799 (11,033) (10,000) 37230 - 399
Non-cash changes FREE

- interest charged —BiHE 18,198 787 - - - 18,985

- exchange differences -ERER (1,134) - - - - (1134)

- addition — 210 - 128 - - - 128
At 30 September 2019 and 1201994308 &

1 Qctober 2019 201910718 301,438 8,621 - 37230 - 347,289
Changes in cash flows BHemgv 8y (51,330) - - 48770 (8092) (10652)
Non-cash changes FReE

~ impact of first adoption of IFRS 16 —BRRBERRBRE

ERF 6K E - 8621) - - 28310 19689
~interest charged —BHHE - - - - 1639 1639
~ Issuance of redeemable preferences - BIERELR
shares - - - (31,730) - (31,730)
- Liabilities directly associated with non- ~ — E#{EHE 7 FREEE
current assets held for sale ERRBmNAE (180,822) - - - (214) (181,036)
At 30 September 2020 142020F9430H 69,286 - - 54,270 21,643 145,199

Major non-cash transaction

() During the year ended 30 September 2020, the Group contra

trade receivables amounted to RM25,000,000 by investment

properties.

(i) During the year ended 30 September 2019, the Group acquired

property, plant and equipment amounted to approximately

RM128,000 under finance lease arrangements.

0]

(if)

(b) FEFRERS :

REZE2020F9A30B IEFE » &
LB EMEEIEE S EUNGRIE
25,000,000 F o

NEE2019F9A30R ILFE » A&

BEREREHETHWEE
B EE 128,000 o

K&t

£ 8§ 2020
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e EHRRME

For the year ended 30 September 2020

HZE2020F9 8308 [FFE

41. Operating Lease Commitments

At each reporting date, the Group had total future minimum lease

41, REHEAE

REBREEH - AEERBETAIHHELLHEE

payments under non-cancellable operating leases falling due as follows: ZARRRIEAER KRBT BIEISRMT ¢
2019
RM'000
TS
— Within one year ——F R 2,747
— In the second to fifth years inclusive —HBETF  BREEREMF 11,093
— After fifth years —RFE 16,950
30,790

Leases are negotiated for terms ranging from two to four years for office
premises and fifteen years for land for Kuala Muda Project and rentals are
fixed over the term of the relevant leases.

42. Capital Commitments

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had approved and contracted
for subscription of ordinary shares in an associate, purchase of intangible
assets, and investment properties under construction, as follows:

MAEYENEHEFHEERRN T RFEEN
F - N EE B i e H & F R REEE
A5 HeREREEFHAEE

42, BRI

RBEHR - AEECHE R AT AR — R
BRRMERER BEEVEE UREEZR
BEMENBRAT

2020 2019

RM’'000 RM'000

FHER TS

Approved and contracted for: BEHUERETA

Investment in an associate R—EEE R R E 37,014 37,014
Intangible assets mLEE - 3,361
Investment properties under constructions TEEMERE 3,539 3,539
40,553 43914
Less: Deposits paid B BENEe - (3,248)
Outstanding capital commitments REBAFSE 40,553 40,666

The settlement of outstanding capital commitments of the Group will be
made in cash upon subscription of ordinary shares in associate, delivery of
intangible assets and investment properties that has been approved and
contracted for.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e IR

For the year ended 30 September 2020

BZE20205F9 A30H IEFE
43, Related Party Transactions 43. AR5
In addition to the balances of the Group with related parties disclosed in B E P3R5 ~ 348227 AT 4 BR A 7K &2 () B
Notes 25, 34 and 27 above, the Group has the following transactions with FEESIN - REEMEE T (FERMF25)E
related parties (as defined in Note 25) carried out based on agreed terms TR G (RIS G T ETT) -
and condition.
2020 2019
RM’'000 RM'000
FHER THER
Construction revenue from related parties: R E B R EENE
D Pristine Medini Sdn. Bhd. D Pristine Medini Sdn. Bhd. (7,448) 49,034
B&G Global Property Sdn. Bhd. B&G Global Property Sdn. Bhd. 14,097 29,468
Construction cost paid to related parties: A FREEE 7 IR AN
Exa Power Sdn. Bhd. Exa Power Sdn. Bhd. 6,737 2,769
Building materials cost paid to related party: A T REES 5 AR EM B ¢
Correct Lifestyle Sdn. Bhd. Correct Lifestyle Sdn. Bhd. = 324
The remuneration of the directors and key management including chief FEENTEEEE(BEARAETETHAR)
executive of the Company is disclosed in Note 14. Z NI s 141 55 -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e EHRRME

For the year ended 30 September 2020

HZE2020F9 8308 [FFE

44, Subsidiaries 44, Mt A 7]

W, PP B A R SR IA B T - B N

The amounts due from/to subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and
have no fixed terms of repayment.

Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 30 September 2020 are as follows: 202094308 - B AR ZFIBWT ¢

208 ANNUAL REPORT 2020

Place of Percentage of
incorporation/ equity
registration Paid-up attributable to Principal
Name and operation capital the Company activities
£ A L B R EAE L
KEw BEARE RABFAL TEER
2020 2019
Directly Owned
=83
BGMC Malaysia Limited British Virgin Islands/ US$100 100% 100%  Investment holding
Malaysia
RRRAEE/ 1007T REER
Y it
Indirectly Owned
BEEE
BGMC Holdings Berhad Malaysia RM1,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
HRAS 1,000 % REEK
BGMC Energy Sdn Bhd Malaysia RM1 100% 100%  Investment in the solar power
infrastructure business
Y it IHE R REAGRESEERH
BGMC Corporation Sdn Bhd Malaysia RM10,000,000 100% 100%  Building construction and investment
holding
HRAD 10,000,000 ¥ BFRERREZR
Built-Master Engineering Sdn Bhd Malaysia RM750,000 80% 80%  Mechanical and electrical engineering
and investment holding
HRAD 750,000 K¢ BETRRREZR
Built-Master Elevator Engineering Sdn Bhd Malaysia RM750,000 80% 80%  Supply and installation of elevators
Y i 750,000MA ¥ HERTKER

BGMC International Limited



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR R MR

For the year ended 30 September 2020

BZE20205F9 A30H IEFE
44, Subsidiaries (continued) 44, B AT (&)
Place of Percentage of
incorporation/ equity
registration Paid-up attributable to Principal
Name and operation capital the Company activities
A% EME bR LUNG )3
B BARK BREABD TEXK
2020 2019
Indirectly Owned (continued)
mERE (&)
Headway Construction Sdn Bhd Malaysia RM6,750,000 51% 51%  Earthworks and infrastructure works
(Individually immaterial subsidiaries
with non-controlling interests)
(A EERER  ERGFEAMBAR) BRAD 6,750,000 ¥ TATRRERTR
KAS Engineering Sdn Bhd Malaysia RM5,000,000 100% 100%  Concession with the Government of
Malaysia for the construction of a
university building, and building
maintenance service provider for the
said university building
G 5,000,000 ¥ REMEABRER S LHASEE
R R ERERENSRAER
TR =R
BGMC Holdings (Indonesia) Sdn Bhd Malaysia RM1 100% 100%  Dormant
Y Vit IHER BE
BGMC BRAS Power Sdn Bhd Malaysia RM100,000 95% 95%  Development and construction relating
to provision of renewable energy
HRAD 100,000#AE 45 BRARUBERERNERNER
BGMC Estate Sdn Bhd Malaysia RM100 100% 100%  Holding of investment properties
Gl 100ME REREME
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BRI

For the year ended 30 September 2020

BZE2020F9 A30H IEFE
45. Contingent Liabilities 45. FAREE
@@ On 28 March 2019, the Company received a writ of summons (@ M2019%F3H28H @ AQAIEEERH
together with an indorsement of claim dated 19 March 2019 in the HA2019F3 19 MBERFTANEA
High Court of Shah Alam, Malaysia by 47 plaintiffs (‘Plaintiffs") against Sk RATBREA(TEREEANESK
Kingsley Hills Sdn. Bhd. as the first defendant and BGMC Corporation, oo eE AL - EdKingsley
an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, as the second Hills Sdn. Bhd. & % — # & A+ ifi BGMC
defendant. Please refer to the Company’s announcement of 28 March Corporation (R A A —fEEEZ2ENB A
2019 for further details of the litigation. A AE _WHEA c BEZFIANE—F
15 B2MARFHEA2019F3 728
HEQ% -
BGMC Corporation had filed an interlocutory application to strike BGMC Corporation}z i JEIE T + E3K
out the Plaintiffs’ case as well as a counterclaim against the Plaintiffs’ BIHRE AMBEMRERE AREHRBA
claiming for alleged additional liquidated ascertained damaged R(HERKAREEL TS REENETZE
(“LAD") absorbed in good faith and spirit of the full and final R MBS AN RINENRES
settlement agreement. The striking out application was first heard on ([BRHEEES]) - BEERFER20205F1H9
9 January 2020 and went for a continued hearing on 5 February 2020. HEIXRER - WH20209F2 A5 H#E#TT
Thereafter, the learned High Court Judge has set another date for Rl o g - & AREBER2020%5 A
further submission and hearing on 12 May 2020. The High Court has NEETHEEERARRKANBEE - &
allowed BGMC Corporation’s application and struck out the Plaintiffs’ %787 B it & BGMC Corporation B i 58 I
writ and statement of claim. 13 Plaintiffs have appealed against the BHEREANSKRERRE - 3RESFA
High Court’s decision to the Court of Appeal. The Court of Appeal has EREFEERSF AR FOREL L5F -
not fixed a date to hear the appeal as at this consolidated financial LR EERAN AR ABMRA L
statements. FFHEERRRER ©
Based on legal advice, the Directors are of the opinion that it is AR ZEREER  E F R AR BGMC
probable that BGMC Corporation has a meritable and arguable case to Corporation A B2 8 — {145 12 A S #Y B 5 Al
defeat the 13 Plaintiffs’ appeal. DiwiE - A L13RRE AT LSRR BGR -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

45, Contingent Liabilities (continued)

(b)

In the ordinary course of business, Built-Master Engineering Sdn.
Bhd. ("BME"), an indirect subsidiary of the Company, had awarded
a sub-contract for electrical work to a third party in 2018. The said
sub-contract was subsequently terminated by BME due to breach
of certain terms and conditions of the sub-contract on the part of
the third party. The third party initiated a legal action against BME
claiming, amongst others, the balance payment of approximately
RM733,000 and interest at 5% per annum from the date of the Writ,
i.e. 21 March 2018 until the date of the full and final settlement on
the basis that the termination was wrongful. BME has entered their
defence denying the claim and thereafter filed a counterclaim against
the said third party. On 22 July 2020, the High Court of Malaysia
granted judgment against BME and dismissed BME's counterclaim. On
6 August 2020, BME has lodged appeal against the said judgment and
the appeal is scheduled for hearing on 17 September 2021. BME had
decided against a conditional stay order dated 12 October 2020 (which
expired on 12 November 2020) wherein the Court proposed that the
judgment sum be placed in an interest bearing account pending the
disposal of the appeal.

The Directors are of the opinion that it is probable that BME has a
chance to overturn the High Court judgment at the Court of Appeal
and be successful in the counterclaim with the quantum to be fixed
by the Court.

e B mRME
For the year ended 30 September 2020
B ZE2020F9A30R L FE

45. HARKEH)

(b)

REFEBHRBEY  AAGREREBEAR
Built-Master Engineering Sdn. Bhd. ([ BME ] )
BER208FFENTENBETE=F - H#
RE=ZFERDBHE TERRGEH &
BMEBE R 4R 1E FIll DB o B=FRBEKR
IFBAEE @ WHBMER B AEFD - B
FK(EFBE)BLSREL 28 (B120185F
3SA2IBREEHT D K&K MR HES
HER) FIETE - Z49733,000/F FF ey
BREEE R F F K50 FE o BMEEEL T
B OOWREREREER - HeE LmE =5
RER - HR2020F 78228 FERALES
A EBMEEE #0A - BXBIBMERI R R
R o BVEE 7A20209F 8 A6 A ¥ il #1712
i EEF o EFRER2021FoA17ARES
32 - BMER ¥ B HIA20206F10 81288
T EFRAmS (BER2020F11A128/E
W) AR BRI RS EIF AT EERP L
HRIE AR -

EER7%  BMERIRE A E N LI AR

BREEREARAMRBRKY) - EEER
K TEENFRE

SE$R 2020
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e EHRRME

For the year ended 30 September 2020

HZE2020F9 8308 [FFE

45, Contingent Liabilities (continued)

(0)

212 ANNUAL REPORT 2020

As disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 30 June 2020,
a subsidiary of the Company, in the ordinary course of business, had
disputes with Customer A.

On 22 May 2020, Customer A served notices of termination of the
construction engagement, alleging that the Group had delayed
in completing the works under two contracts arising out of the
same project. Customer A had sought to forfeit the Group's two
performance bonds in the amount of approximately RM25.8 million.

On 27 May 2020, the Group has filed for an application for an
injunction in the Court and has obtained an ad-interim injunction
order dated 29 May 2020 against the forfeiture of the two performance
bonds by Customer A, pending the disposal of the said application by
the Court which is now fixed for hearing on 25 January 2021.

The Group has also initiated arbitrations on 30 June 2020 to dispute
the validity of the terminations by Customer A and claim against
Customer A for (i) losses of profit of approximately RM35 million
(i) return of retention sum of approximately RM4.4 million and (iii)
return of the sums under the two performance bonds amounting to
approximately RM25.8 million.

On 17 August 2020, Customer A issued a counterclaim of
approximately RM126 million in the arbitration proceeding against the
Group.

As at the date of this consolidated financial statements, no hearing has
been fixed and the final arbitration judgment on the dispute between
the Group and Customer A is expected to be granted not earlier than
2022.

The Directors are of the opinion that the Group has a good arguable
case to persuade the arbitrator to rule the facts in favour of the Group.

BGMC International Limited

45. HARKEH)

(@

NN B B HA20205 6 A30H AL
FTiise - NARE—ENEB AR IE &2
HiBREREESA LAY -

202055 A22H - BPABKEKR EEE
BHRBA - EBIEAEBETEETKFE 8
BETMHOEHRENTRE - TREARER
WAL ERMERBLREFSL258E B

e

202055 278 » NEBERVAF IR H 2L
IS HTE - WH2020F5 8298 MEFAR
IWERBOREFSISERELESS - Lt
A ERERE (RER2021F1 H25H
BeE) ©

REBINE 202056 B30 B BB HEL

HEPARIEAHNBREREEZ T3
UTHEBRZRFARLER : (afEEL
BEEMERNEERBN44BEBMNE
B R (i) RIEMD B AERS #2588 B

T

MR2020F8 A17H » EEAMEHREREFF M
REEREREBERN126EBNEE o

NAGAMEHRERAE - MAREHEAR
H o WAREEETPAY BASHS&T
HHRFEEE TR R 2022F K -

EERA ARBEYHHRIPEAELEF
RAEBENEERTEZBEES -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

45, Contingent Liabilities (continued)

(d)

On 20 November 2020, BGMC Corporation, being a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company and a member of the Group, received
a demand letter from a licensed bank in Malaysia (the “Bank”), in
which the Bank alleged that it had received a demand against a bank
guarantee from a beneficiary (the “Beneficiary”) being a customer of
BGMC Corporation, in the sum of approximately RM5.5 million, and
unless the Beneficiary withdraws its demand or the Bank is restrained
from performing its obligations, the Bank would effect payment of the
sum demanded to the Beneficiary on 24 November 2020.

Based on the demand letter from the Beneficiary to the Bank, the
said demand was related to a performance bond provided by BGMC
Corporation to the Beneficiary for a development project, for which
the Beneficiary alleged that BGMC Corporation has not duly performed
its contractual obligation. On 23 November 2020, through its solicitors,
BGMC Corporation filed an application (the “Application”) to the
Kuala Lumpur High Court against the Beneficiary, which restrains it
from receiving the sum demanded by the Beneficiary.

On 24 November 2020, the Kuala Lumpur High Court granted an
interim injunction in favour of BGMC Corporation, which restrained
the Beneficiary, their respective agents, employees and/or officers
from effecting the claims of the performance bond or receiving the
payment or part payment under the performance bond from the
Bank until the disposal of the originating summons filed by BGMC
Corporation against the Beneficiary, and it was further ordered that an
inter-parte hearing for the Application would be held on 29 January
2021.

e B mRME
For the year ended 30 September 2020
B ZE2020F9A30R L FE

45. HARKEH)

(d)

720204 11 A 20 B + BGMC Corporation
(KRAMEEMBRARIRAEERKE
AA)) RS RIS — RFF R ERTT ([ &R
THHEXRE  ZRTEBEERINER
BGMC Corporation & P B % 28 A ([ ¥ &
ADZBITERERASSAEENRER - I
ERIER M ARE H SRR IEZIRTTIR
REIBITERT - BRIZRITHN20205F
1MA24BRAZHEAZNRZEZRIFIE o

BEZmABZIBITHENRE @ 54
% 23K 2 EiBGMC Corporation [A] 5 2 A F2
HE—IERBBEENRAORZSEBR
% #& A T BGMC Corporation 7 i & & 17
HEREHB o 72020511 A23H - BGMC
Corporaton 2 BB A MM T ER 2 F
FEREE T REZHARKERF([H
wE) o BRERAIZEARBEZRRBK
I8 o

F20205F11 B24 8 - HER ®E AR v
7 BGMC Corporation ] E 55 I 2% 1 B2 By 22
#le ZBIFERA - HEERERY - &
B SmR B R RTIREBARE
SHERGWIM B HFIBL IO FIE - B
EIIBGMC Corporation[A] % & A HE 8 B9 5F 74
BRERRBIE - WiEE—F T2 R20214F1
A200BETEFEES -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e EHRRME
For the year ended 30 September 2020
HZE2020F9 8308 [FFE

46. Statement of Financial Position of the Company

(a)

214  ANNUAL REPORT 2020

Information about the statement of financial position of the Company

46. A B 2 AR R R

()

BRARRNRARERRZFBRARZ

at the end of the reporting period is as follows: BERNT
2020 2019
RM’000 RM'000
THEE TG
Non-current assets FREBEE
Investments in a subsidiary R—ENB AR ZIE 1 1
1 1
Current assets REEE
Other receivables HAth U GRIE 33 34
Amount owing from subsidiaries FEUR T B A Bl 5RIE 99,413 148,757
Cash and bank balances B4 NMIRTTAERS 651 360
Total current assets REBEEARE 100,097 149,151
Current liabilities REBAE
Other payables and accrued expenses H b fE OB R ERT RIS 893 729
Amounts due to subsidiaries LRI ENGIEE 12,137 8,812
Borrowings s 7,766 22,596
Total current liabilities REEEREE 20,796 32,137
Total assets less current liabilities EEABERABAR 79,302 117,015
Non-current liabilities FRBERE
Derivative liabilities TTAETARE = 2,700
Net Assets EEFE 79,302 114,315
Capital and reserves BAXRNFEE
Share capital &N 9,862 9,862
Share premium 10 m(E 135,571 135,571
Accumulated losses Z5HEE (66,131) (31,118)
Total equity DB 79,302 114,315

BGMC International Limited



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

47. Events After the Reporting Period

48

On 16 November 2020, the Group entered into a share purchase agreement
with AB Concession Venture Sdn. Bhd. to dispose of its entire shareholding
in a wholly owned subsidiary, KAS Engineering Sdn. Bhd. for approximately
RM93.8 million. On 30 December 2020, EGM has been held and the disposal
has been approved by the shareholders of the Company. For further details,
please refer to the Company’s announcement and the circular dated 11
December 2020.

Considerations in respect of COVID-19 (coronavirus) and the
current economic environment

The outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic has impacted economic activities
worldwide. Many countries have imposed restrictions on non-essential
services and business operations, and have also implemented travel
restrictions, border closures and other quarantine measures that have
significantly curbed the normal movement of goods, services and people.
For the financial year ended 30 September 2020, the impact of COVID-19
have been reflected in this set of financial statements.

As the situation is still evolving and will be affected by the degree to which
governments are able to contain the spread of the virus in countries where
the Group operates, the full impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on the
Group's performance for the financial year ending 30 September 2021
could not be reasonably ascertained when this set of financial statements
was authorised for issuance.

The Group and the Company are taking steps to proactively manage the

businesses and take the necessary actions to ensure that the long-term
business prospects of the Group and the Company remain stable.

Approval of Consolidated Financial Statements

The consolidated financial statements were approved and authorised for
issue by the Board of Directors on 31 December 2020.

e B mRME
For the year ended 30 September 2020
B ZE2020F9A30R L FE

47. REHIREE

48
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Five-Year Financial Summary

hFEBEE

For the year ended 30 September 2020

HZE2020F9A30H IEFE

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the past five
years, as extracted from the published consolidated financial statements or the

TXEIAEEREDFZEE  BEMABER
E - DRBEEARFCTE ZEA M RRIAR

Prospectus of the Company is set out below. g o
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
RM’000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
THER THE R THER FRESR TR E R
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(&&:5) (geE5) (#&&E5) (ge&E5)
Turnover from continuing RELEER
operations S 301,584 343,356 498433 690,093 505,366
Turnover from discontinuing BRI EER 2
operations = E 11,513 10,382 10,872 10,382 11,513
Total turnover BEFETR 313,097 353,738 509,305 700475 516,879
Profit/(loss) before taxation BRSNS (EE) (200,276) (53,012) (3,469) 70,350 86,630
Income tax PR (5,644) (2,264) (7,055) (19,746) (21,650)
Profit/(loss) and total REERF, (B8 &
comprehensive income e PN
for the year (198,257) (55,276) (10,524) 50,604 64,981
Profit/(loss) attributable to RRAEIEEB AEG
owners of the Company wH,(E8) (193,543) (53,063) (4,145) 51,861 62,919
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EENAE
Total assets BEHRR 839,052 893,711 878,188 933,913 669,550
Total liabilities BB 739,639 627,698 557,591 589,482 599,466
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